
 Marysville City Council Work Session 
October 2, 2017                                       7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

Work Sessions are for City Council study and orientation – Public Input will be received at the 
October 9, 2017 City Council meeting. 

 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
 
Approval of the  Agenda 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Presentations 
 
A. Snohomish Conservation District 
 
Discussion Items 
 
Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.) 
 
1. Consider the September 11, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes. 

 
Consent 
 
2. Approval of the September 27, 2017 Claims in the Amount of $2,137,959.82 paid by 
EFT transactions and Check Numbers 119644 through 119782 with no Check Numbers 
Voided.  
 
Review Bids 
 
3. Consider Awarding the Bid for the 2017 Emergency Generator Project. 
 
Public Hearings  
 
New Business 
 
4. Consider the Purchase of the 24’ x 40’ Modular Office Building for the Water 
Resource Division.  
 
5. Consider the Purchase of a Replacement Dump Truck, Replacement Step Van, and 
an Additional Crew Cab as Identified in the 2017/2018 Fleet Budget.  
 
6. Consider the 2016 Pavement Preservation Program with Cemex Construction 
Materials Pacific LLC, Starting the 45-day Lien Filing Period for Project Closeout.  
 
7. Consider the Purchase of Two 20 Hp Fairbanks Morse Vertical Turbine Solids 
Handling Filter Feed Pumps.  

1



 Marysville City Council Work Session 
October 2, 2017                                       7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

Work Sessions are for City Council study and orientation – Public Input will be received at the 
October 9, 2017 City Council meeting. 

 
8. Consider the Land Use Restriction and Real Property Covenant for the Qwulooth 
Area. 
 
9. Consider the USDA-APHIS Wildlife Services for the Fiscal Year ending September 
30, 2018. 
 
11. Consider the 2018 Yakima County Agreement for Jail Services.   
 
12. Consider an Ordinance Granting Astound Broadband, LLC dba Wave a 
Nonexclusive Telecommunications Franchise Agreement.  
 
13. Consider an Ordinance Granting MCIMetro Access dba Verizon Access a 
Nonexclusive Telecommunication Franchise Agreement. 
 
14. Consider an Ordinance Dedicating Right-of-Way for Public Use on State Avenue in 
the area of 116th.   
 
15. Consider a Resolution Establishing a Stay out of Drug Area (SODA) in the Smokey 
Point area.  
 
16. Consider an Interlocal Agreement with Snohomish Health District for the Purpose of 
Providing for a Per Capita Contribution by the City for Health District Services.  
 
Legal   
 
Mayor’s Business 
 
Staff Business  
 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Adjournment/Recess 
 
Executive Session 
 
A.    Litigation 
 
B.    Personnel 
 
C.    Real Estate 
 
Reconvene 
 
Adjournment 
 

2



 Marysville City Council Work Session 
October 2, 2017                                       7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

Work Sessions are for City Council study and orientation – Public Input will be received at the 
October 9, 2017 City Council meeting. 

Special Accommodations:  The City of Marysville strives to provide accessible 
meetings for people with disabilities.  Please contact the City Clerk’s office at (360) 363-
8000 or 1-800-833-6384 (Voice Relay), 1-800-833-6388 (TDD Relay) two days prior to 
the meeting date if any special accommodations are needed for this meeting.       
 

3



Index #1
 

4



September 11, 2017 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 

Page 1 of 2 

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Roll Call 7:00 p.m. 
Approval of the Agenda Approved 
Committee Reports  
Presentations  
Proclamation: Childhood Cancer Awareness Month Read 
Officer Swearing In:  Lateral Police Officer Carrie Foote and Custody 
Officer De Maramed 

Sworn In 

Marysville Pride Award: Belmark Homes Presented 
Audience Participation  
Approval of Minutes   
Consider Approval of the July 10, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes Approved 
Consider Approval of the July 24, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes Approved 
Consent Agenda  
Consider Approval of the August 18, 2017 Payroll in the Amount 
$1,008,137.81; Paid by EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 31030 
through 31067 with Check Number 31028 and 31029 Voided 

Approved 

Consider Approval of the Termination of Reserved Utility Easement and 
the Termination of Drainage Easement, recorded under AFN 
200209130616 

Approved 

Consider Acceptance of the Grove Street Improvements Project with 
SRV Construction, Inc., Starting the 45-Day Lien Period for Project 
Closeout 

Approved 

Consider Approval of the PUD Strategic Energy Management Funding 
Agreement for Wastewater Energy Coaching with Snohomish County 
PUD 

Approved 

Consider Approval of the August 30, 2017 Claims in the Amount of 
$1,068,192.44; Paid by Check Numbers 119111 through 119266 with 
Check Numbers 118027 and 118900 Voided 

Approved 

Review Bids  
Public Hearings  
Consider Approval of the Program Year 2016 Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation Report and Direct Staff to Provide a 
Summary of, and Response to any Comments Received During the 
Public Hearing into the Report, and Forward to the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development 

Held/Approved 

New Business  
Consider Approval of an Ordinance Approving, with Conditions, 
Transfer of Ultimate Control of a Franchisee from Wave Holdco, LLC to 
Radiate Holdco, LLC (Action will be Requested at the September 25, 
2017 City Council Meeting) 

No Action Taken 

Consider Approval of the Emergency Resolution Waiving Compliance 
with the City's Normal Bidding and Procurement Process for Addressing 
the City's Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations. 

Approved 
Res. No. 2421 

Consider Approval of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 5.02 of the 
Marysville Municipal Code (MMC) Governing Business Licenses and 

Approved 
Ord. No. 3064 

Item 1 - 1

5



September 11, 2017 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Adding a Section Providing for Summary Suspension of Business 
Licenses 
Consider Approval of an Ordinance Amending Marysville Municipal 
Code (MMC) Chapter 14.07 to Provide Reimbursement for Certain 
Capital Improvement Projects or a Credit against Capital Improvement 
Charges 

Approved 
Ord. No. 3065 

Legal  
Mayor’s Business  
Consider Approval of the Appointment to Civil Service:  Brad Thompson Approved 
Consider Approval of the Appointment to Salary Commission:  Brad 
Thompson 

Approved 

Consider Approval of the Reappointment to Planning Commission:  
Tom Thetford 

Approved 

Staff Business  
Call on Councilmembers  
Adjournment 8:12 p.m. 
Executive Session 8:20 p.m. 
Real Estate – two items Action on one 
Personnel – one item No Action 
Reconvened into regular session  
Adjournment 8:55 p.m. 
 

Item 1 - 2

6



DRAFT 

 
9/11/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 8 

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

 
Regular Meeting 
September 11, 2017 

 
 

Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Nehring called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and led those present in the 
Pledge of Allegiance. Pastor Greg Kanehan gave the invocation. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Hirashima gave the roll call. The following staff and 
councilmembers were in attendance. 
 
Mayor: Jon Nehring 
 
Council: Steve Muller, Kamille Norton, Jeff Seibert, Michael Stevens, 

Rob Toyer, Jeff Vaughan, and Donna Wright 
 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: Chief Administrative Officer Gloria Hirashima, Finance 

Director Sandy Langdon, Police Chief Rick Smith, City 
Attorney Jon Walker, Public Works Director Kevin Nielsen, 
Community Development Director Dave Koenig, Fire Chief 
Martin McFalls, Information Officer Connie Mennie, and 
Recording Secretary Laurie Hugdahl.  

 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Toyer, seconded by Councilmember Norton, to 
approve the agenda. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Committee Reports  
 
None 
 
Audience Participation 
 

Item 1 - 3

7



DRAFT 

 
9/11/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 8 

Jessica Beckstrand, 6427 38th Place NE, Marysville, introduced two young cancer 
survivors, one of which was her own daughter. She expressed appreciation for the 
many people and organizations that supported them in various ways throughout their 
cancer diagnosis and treatments.  
 
Preston Dwoskin, 11120 46th Avenue NE, Marysville, WA 98271, expressed concern 
about the bump being taken out at 116th near the school resulting in more people 
speeding. He requested more patrols in the city. He stated the need to put more first 
responders in the community as the budget allows.  
 
Alex Villalobos, 4922 104th Place NE, Marysville, WA, 98270, expressed concern about 
bricks being thrown through windows at schools and churches, including his own 
church. He asked what the City Council is doing about that. Chief Smith explained that 
police look at all crime that happens and then they put resources toward finding out who 
is doing the crime. He thanked Alex for bringing this up. 
 
Guinevere Cannon, 4618 58th Drive NE, Marysville, WA, expressed concern about the 
number of abandoned vehicles or parked vehicles in her neighborhood. She also 
expressed concern about natural growth areas that were turned back over to the Tribes.  
 
Mayor Nehring explained that the code enforcement team is focusing on abandoned 
vehicles throughout the city. He agreed that this is still an issue, but it is still being 
addressed as they are working their way through the city. They are also addressing 
other code enforcement issues in the city. 
 
Chief Smith agreed that police have been actively working on the abandoned vehicle 
issue. He gave an update on their efforts which have been very successful. He asked 
Ms. Cannon to meet with Assistant Chief Goldman to follow up. 
 
Presentations 
 
A.  Proclamation: Childhood Cancer Awareness Month  
 
Mayor Nehring read the proclamation into the record.  
 
B.  Officer Swearing In:  Lateral Police Officer Carrie Foote and Custody Officer De 

Maramed  
 
Chief Smith introduced the officers, and Mayor Nehring administered the Oath of Office 
to them both.  
 
C. Marysville Pride Award: Belmark Homes 
 
Mayor Nehring presented the Pride of Marysville: Best Business of 2017 Award to 
Aaron Metcalf of Belmark Properties for the renovation project he did with a property on 
State Street.  
 

Item 1 - 4

8



DRAFT 

 
9/11/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 8 

Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.) 
 
1.  Consider Approval of the July 10, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
Councilmember Norton stated she would be abstaining from the vote as she did not 
attend the meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Stevens, seconded by Councilmember Wright, to 
approve the July 10, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes. Motion passed unanimously 
(6-0) with Councilmember Norton abstaining. 
 
2.  Consider Approval of the July 24, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wright, seconded by Councilmember Vaughan, to 
approve the July 24, 2017 City Council Meeting Minutes. Motion passed unanimously 
(7-0). 
 
Consent  
 
9.  Consider Approval of the August 18, 2017 Payroll in the Amount $1,008,137.81; 

Paid by EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 31030 through 31067 with Check 
Number 31028 and 31029 Voided 

 
11.  Consider Approval of the Termination of Reserved Utility Easement and the 

Termination of Drainage Easement, recorded under AFN 200209130616 
 
13.  Consider Acceptance of the Grove Street Improvements Project with SRV 

Construction, Inc., Starting the 45-Day Lien Period for Project Closeout 
 
14.  Consider Approval of the PUD Strategic Energy Management Funding 

Agreement for Wastewater Energy Coaching with Snohomish County PUD 
 
21.   Consider Approval of the August 30, 2017 Claims in the Amount of 

$1,068,192.44; Paid by Check Numbers 119111 through 119266 with Check 
Numbers 118027 and 118900 Voided  

 
Motion made by Councilmember Toyer, seconded by Councilmember Muller, to 
approve Consent Agenda items 9, 11, 13, 14, and 21. Motion passed unanimously (7-
0). 
 
Review Bids  
 
Public Hearings 
 
12.  Consider Approval of the Program Year 2016 Consolidated Annual Performance 

and Evaluation Report and Direct Staff to Provide a Summary of, and Response 

Item 1 - 5

9



DRAFT 

 
9/11/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 8 

to any Comments Received During the Public Hearing into the Report, and 
Forward to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

 
Dave Koenig explained that this is the annual report to the HUD on what was 
accomplished during the last program year (July 1-June 30) and the $366,717 in 
funding that was spent. This hearing is part of the Citizen Participation Plan to allow 
citizens the opportunity to comment on what is in the CAPER before it is submitted to 
HUD.  
 
Mayor Nehring opened the public hearing at 7:38 p.m. and solicited public comments. 
Seeing none, the hearing was closed at 7:39 p.m. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to 
approve the Program Year 2016 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation 
Report and Direct Staff to Provide a Summary of, and Response to any Comments 
Received During the Public Hearing into the Report, and Forward to the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
New Business 
 
10.  Consider Approval of an Ordinance Approving, with Conditions, Transfer of 

Ultimate Control of a Franchisee from Wave Holdco, LLC to Radiate Holdco, LLC 
(Action will be Requested at the September 25, 2017 City Council Meeting) 

 
City Attorney Walker explained that this addresses the change in ownership from Wave 
to Radiate Holdco. Action will be taken at the next regular business meeting. 
 
15.  Consider Approval of the Emergency Resolution Waiving Compliance with the 

City's Normal Bidding and Procurement Process for Addressing the City's 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations. 

 
Director Nielsen explained that this was necessary to keep the wastewater treatment 
plants running and in compliance. 
 
Councilmember Muller asked about the timeline for looking into other items that may be 
a concern. Director Nielsen noted that staff would be coming back within a couple 
months.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Norton, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to 
approve Resolution No. 2421. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
16.  Consider Approval of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 5.02 of the Marysville 

Municipal Code (MMC) Governing Business Licenses and Adding a Section 
Providing for Summary Suspension of Business Licenses 

 
City Attorney Walker explained that this updates the enforcement mechanism for 
suspending and revoking business licenses. It adds some reasons for denying, revoking 

Item 1 - 6

10



DRAFT 

 
9/11/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 8 

or suspending a license. It also provides for a summary suspension of business 
licenses in very specific situations. 
 
Councilmember Toyer asked how often business licenses get suspended or revoked. 
City Attorney Walker replied it was very rare and hopefully the summary suspension will 
never be used.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Norton, seconded by Councilmember Muller, to 
approve Ordinance No. 3064. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
17.  Consider Approval of an Ordinance Amending Marysville Municipal Code (MMC) 

Chapter 14.07 to Provide Reimbursement for Certain Capital Improvement 
Projects or a Credit against Capital Improvement Charges 

 
Director Nielsen explained that this would provide for a credit against capital 
improvement charges for building certain improvements. This is a good public-private 
partnership.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to 
approve Ordinance No. 3065. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Legal 
 
Mayor’s Business 
 
18.  Consider Approval of the Appointment to Civil Service:  Brad Thompson 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wright, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to 
approve the appointment of Brad Thompson to the Civil Service Commission. Motion 
passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
19.  Consider Approval of the Appointment to Salary Commission:  Brad Thompson 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Norton, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to 
approve the appointment of Brad Thompson to the Salary Commission. Motion passed 
unanimously (7-0). 
 
20.  Consider Approval of the Reappointment to Planning Commission:  Tom Thetford 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to 
approve the reappointment of Tom Thetford to the Planning Commission. Motion 
passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Other Mayor’s Business: 

• He thanked Chief McFalls for organizing the 9/11 ceremony today. He also 
thanked Chief Smith and his personnel for supporting that event.  

Item 1 - 7

11



DRAFT 

 
9/11/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 8 

• Thanks to Parks, Police, Public Works, and Fire for all they did to put on Touch a 
Truck. He also thanked local service clubs such as Noon Rotary and Kiwanis 

• There will be a Chamber small business event this week at the Opera House. 
 
Staff Business 
 
Chief Smith: 

• Thanks to Chief McFalls and his crews for putting on the 9/11 Ceremony. 
• He thanked Northwest Baptist Church for sending over some lunch today to first 

responders.  
• He noted that police were very busy this morning which took a lot of time and 

resources to address. He thanked Preston Dwoskin, Alex Villalobos, and all 
citizens for their input.  
 

Sandy Langdon had no comments.  
 
Jon Walker stated the need for an Executive Session to discuss two items to consider 
the acquisition of real estate with action expected and one item to discuss collective 
bargaining agreements. Executive Session was expected to last ten minutes. 
 
Dave Koenig: 

• Planning Commission will be meeting tomorrow night to discuss residential 
density incentives and wetland buffers.  

• He spoke with someone from United Electrical about concerns with Marysville 
requirements. Their concern is that Marysville requires plans be submitted for 
smaller electrical permits. The state does not require plans for smaller permits.  
 

Chief McFalls thanked everyone in the community for their support and to the men and 
women in Police and Fire who are out on the front lines every day.  
 
Jim Ballew: 

• Touch a Truck was a great success despite the weather. He expressed 
appreciation to everyone involved in putting on the event, especially Andrea 
Kingsford.  

• He gave an update on the Ebey Waterfront Trail project under the 529 bridge. 
This will be a great feature once it’s done. 

• The Chamber small business summit will be going on at the Opera House along 
with a dozen other events this month. 

• There will be a Park Board Meeting on Wednesday night. 
• Diversity Committee will be meeting on Monday.  

 
Kevin Nielsen: 

• He expressed appreciation for the firefighters fighting the wildfires.  
• Public Works is busy doing annual programs.  
• He commended Belmark for the transformation of the building.  

Item 1 - 8

12



DRAFT 

 
9/11/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 8 

• Mayor Nehring passed along appreciation from a citizen to the Public Works 
crews for cleaning up graffiti underneath I-5 and 528 even though that is a state 
issue. 

 
Gloria Hirashima: 

• She thanked Police and Fire for the 9/11 ceremony today and for the work they 
do every day. 

• She enjoyed Touch a Truck. 
• The RFA Committee is looking for a new date for the next meeting. 
• The RFA packets will be going out to all councilmembers each month. 
• The City is in the process of trying to fill the HR Director position. 
• There have been some wonderful hires coming in to other positions.  

 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Jeff Vaughan thanked Alex for coming to the microphone to talk as a Boy Scout and 
commended him for his poise.  
 
Donna Wright: 

• She thanked Police and Fire for the 9/11 Ceremony. She commended first 
responders for all they do. 

• She has noticed that the barbecues at Comeford Park are being well used. 
 
Jeff Seibert: 

• He stated he has not gotten anything regarding the RFA in his email. 
• He expressed appreciation for the 9/11 remembrance. He referred to disasters in 

Texas and Florida and spoke to importance of emergency management plans.  
 
Michael Stevens thanked Mayor Nehring for the proclamation regarding Childhood 
Cancer. 
 
Rob Toyer welcomed new officers.  
 
Steve Muller: 

• He also welcomed new officers.  
• He spoke to the importance of remembering 9/11.  
• He missed Touch a Truck this year.  
• Thanks to the first responders for keeping everyone safe. 

 
Kamille Norton: 

• It was heartwarming to see the families here tonight and hear how much the 
community has supported them in their fight against cancer.  

• She thanked Police and Fire for the work they do and for the ceremony this 
morning. 

 
Adjournment/Recess 

Item 1 - 9

13



DRAFT 

 
9/11/17 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 8 of 8 

 
Council recessed from 8:12 to 8:17 p.m. before reconvening in Executive Session. 
 
Reconvement 
 
Executive Session  
 
Council reconvened in Executive Session to discuss two items related to the acquisition 
of real estate with action expected and one item related to collective bargaining 
agreements. Executive Session was expected to last ten minutes. 
 
A.    Litigation 
 
B.    Personnel – two items 
 
C.    Real Estate – two items 
 
Executive session extended 25 minutes. 
 
Executive session ended and public meeting reconvened at 8:55 p.m. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Wright, to 
authorize the Mayor to sign purchase and sale contract to acquire 1624 1st Street in 
Marysville. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2017. 
 
 
_________________________ ________________________  
Mayor Recording Secretary 
Jon Nehring Laurie Hugdahl 
 

Item 1 - 10

14



Index #2
 

15



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: October 9, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM: AGENDA SECTION: 
Claims 

PREPARED BY: AGENDA NUMBER: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

APPROVED BY: 

MAYOR ICAO 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

Please see attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the 
September 27, 2017 claims in the amount of $2,137,959.82 paid by EFT transactions 
and Check No. 119644 throut:!:h 119782 with no Check No. voided. 
COUNCIL ACTION: 

Item 2 - 1

16



BLANKET CERTIFICATION 
CLAIMS 

FOR 
PERIOD-9 

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DO HEREBY CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE 
MATERIALS HAVE BEEN FURNISHED, THE SERVICES RENDERED OR THE LABOR PERFORMED 
AS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND THAT THE CLAIMS IN THE AMO UN T OF $2,137,959.82 PAID 
BY EFT TRANSACTIONS AND CHECK NO.'S 119644 THROUGH 119782 WITH NO CHECK NO. 
VOIDED ARE JUST, DUE AND UNPAID OBLIGATIONS AGAINST THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
AND THAT I AM AUTHORIZED TO AUTHENTICATE AND TO CERTIFY SAID CLAIMS. 

AUDITING OFFICER DATE 

MAYOR DATE 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED COUNCIL MEMBERS OF MARYSVI LLE, WASH I NGTON DO HEREBY 
APPROVE FOR PAYMENT THE ABOVE MENTIONED CLAIMS ON THIS 9th DAY OF OCTOBER 
2017. 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNC I L MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER 

COUNCIL MEMBER 

Item 2 - 2

17



DATE: 9/27/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: I TIME: 9:05 :35AM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 9/21/2017 TO 9/27/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
119644 CHICAGO TITLE INSURA EARNEST MONEY-15261ST STREET GMA- STREET 2,500.00 
119645 CHICAGO TITLE INSURA CLOSING FUNDS-1526 1ST STREET GMA - STREET 314,397.73 
119646 CHICAGO TITLE INSURA EARNEST MONEY-1624 1ST STREET GMA-STREET 2,500.00 
119647 FIRST AMERICAN TITLE CLOSING FUNDS-521 DELTAAVE NON-DEPARTMENTAL 558,721 .36 
119648 REVENUE, DEPT OF SALES AND USE TAXES CITY CLERK 0.47 

REVENUE, DEPT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 3.16 
REVENUE, DEPT OF GOLF COURSE 4.73 
REVENUE, DEPT OF RECREATION SERVICES 7.98 
REVENUE, DEPT OF ER&R 13.43 
REVENUE, DEPT OF POLICE ADMINISTRATION 38.64 
REVENUE, DEPT OF CITY STREETS 91 .32 
REVENUE, DEPT OF INFORMATION SERVICES 214.95 
REVENUE, DEPT OF GENERAL FUND 451 .94 
REVENUE, DEPT OF WATER/SEWER OPERATION 520.82 
REVENUE, DEPT OF GOLF ADMINISTRATION 1,952.04 
REVENUE, DEPT OF STORM DRAINAGE 6,130.41 
REVENUE, DEPT OF GOLF COURSE 13,542.08 
REVENUE, DEPT OF SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 31 ,721.31 
REVENUE, DEPT OF UTILADMIN 73,597.07 

119649 CHICAGO TITLE INSURA CLOSING FUNDS-1624 1ST ST GMA - STREET 315,954.90 
119650 ALFIER, CHARLES RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 200.00 
119651 ALLEN, CHRISTINA GENERAL FUND 100.00 
119652 AMERICAN PLANNING APA, CHAPT/WA & AICP MEMBERSH EXECUTIVE ADMIN 698.00 
119653 APS, INC. POSTAGE SUPPLIES CITY CLERK 48.55 

APS, INC. EXECUTIVE ADMIN 48.55 
APS, INC. FINANCE-GENL 48.55 
APS, INC. PERSONNELADMINISTRATIOI 48.55 
APS, INC. UTILITY BILLING 48.55 
APS, INC. LEGAL-PROSECUTION 48.55 

119654 ARAMARK UNIFORM UNIFORM SERVICE SMALL ENGINE SHOP 6.55 
ARAMARK UNIFORM EQUIPMENT RENTAL 72.22 

119655 BANK OF AMERICA PARKING REIMBURSEMENT EXECUTIVE ADMIN 3.00 
119656 BANK OF AMERICA POLICE ADMINISTRATION 3.00 

119657 BANK OF AMERICA REGISTRATION REIMBURSEMENT CITY COUNCIL 15.00 

119658 BANK OF AMERICA TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT POLICE ADMINISTRATION 19.00 
119659 BANK OF AMERICA SUPPLY REIMBURSEMENT DETENTION & CORRECTION 21 .81 

119660 BANK OF AMERICA ADVERTISING COMMUNITY CENTER 11 .99 

BANK OF AMERICA RECREATION SERVICES 45.00 

119661 BANK OF AMERICA REGISTRATION REIMBURSEMENT LEGAL-GENL 220.00 

11 9662 BANK OF AMERICA SUPPLY REIMBURSEMENT ENGR-GENL 196.37 

BANK OF AMERICA UTILADMIN 196.37 

119663 BANK OF AMERICA TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 78.75 

BANK OF AMERICA UTILADMIN 338.94 

119664 BANK OF AMERICA REGISTRATION REIMBURSEMENT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 550.00 

119665 BANK OF AMERICA REGISTRATION EXECUTIVE ADMIN 665.00 

119666 BANK OF AMERICA SUPPLY REIMBURSEMENT WATER/SEWER OPERATION -23.69 

BANK OF AMERICA EQUIPMENT RENTAL 46.75 

BANK OF AMERICA EQUIPMENT RENTAL 46.75 

BANK OF AMERICA WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 283.93 

BANK OF AMERICA ROADSIDE VEGETATION 486.08 

119667 BANK OF AMERICA TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT UTIL ADMIN 491.24 

BANK OF AMERICA UTILADMIN 565.74 

119668 BANK OF AMERICA SUPPLY REIMBURSEMENT GENERAL FUND -38.09 

BANK OF AMERICA POLICE PATROL 104.35 

BANK OF AMERICA COMMUNITY SERVICES UNIT 123.94 

BANK OF AMERICA POLICE TRAINING-FIREARMS 149.00 

BANK OF AMERICA DETENTION & CORRECTION 171.55 
Item 2 - 3

18



DATE: 9/27/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 2 
TIME: 9:05 :35AM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 9/21/2017 TO 9/27/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
119668 BANK OF AMERICA SUPPLY REIMBURSEMENT K9 PROGRAM 180.65 

BANK OF AMERICA POLICE ADMINISTRATION 242.09 
BANK OF AMERICA DETENTION & CORRECTION 350.28 

119669 BEEM JR, JIMMIE A WATER/SEWER OPERATION 88.26 
119670 BILLING DOCUMENT SPE BILL PRINTING SERVICE UTILITY BILLING 1,777.83 
119671 BLODGETI, ANTHONY WATER/SEWER OPERATION 10.58 
119672 BRADLEY, KELLEE ENTERTAINMENT 10/19/17 OPERA HOUSE 300.00 
119673 BSN SPORTS, INC BASKETBALL SUPPLIES RECREATION SERVICES 864.78 
119674 CADMAN MATERIALS INC PAY ESTIMATE #1 ARTERIAL STREET-GENL 289,487.25 
119675 CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON CAR WASHES PARK & RECREATION FAC 4.50 

CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON ENGR-GENL 4.50 
CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON ENGR-GENL 4.50 
CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON POLICE PATROL 225.00 

119676 CC EDWARDS CONST HYDRANT METER REFUND WATER-UTILITIES/ENVIRONM -194.80 
CC EDWARDS CONST WATER/SEWER OPERATION 1,150.00 

119677 CENTRAL WELDING SUPP EAR PLUGS ER&R 85.10 
119678 CHAMPION BOLT GLOVES PARK & RECREATION FAC 32.58 
119679 CLEAN CUT TREE & STU TREE REMOVAL PARK & RECREATION FAC 272.75 

CLEAN CUT TREE & STU PARK & RECREATION FAC 490.95 
119680 CNR INC IP LICENSES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 165.83 

CNR INC UTILADMIN 165.83 

CNR INC ENGR-GENL 165.83 

CNR INC COMPUTER SERVICES 391 .68 

119681 COMCAST CABLE SERVICE-KBCC BAXTER CENTER APPRE 60.84 

119682 COOLINGS, JEFFERY REFUND BUSINESS LICENSE FEES GENL FUND BUS LIC & PERMI 65.00 

119683 COOP SUPPLY COMPOST PARK & RECREATION FAC 8.72 

COOP SUPPLY HANDLE AND HOSE PARK & RECREATION FAC 23.76 

COOP SUPPLY POSTS AND STAPLES GMA-PARKS 150.39 

COOP SUPPLY K-9 FOOD K9 PROGRAM 167.99 

COOP SUPPLY K9 PROGRAM 186.54 

119684 COPIERS NORTHWEST PRINTER/COPIER CHARGES UTILADMIN 104.06 

COPIERS NORTHWEST GENERAL SERVICES - OVER~ 104.07 

COPIERS NORTHWEST WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 125.12 

COPIERS NORTHWEST PROBATION 136.38 

COPIERS NORTHWEST LEGAL - PROSECUTION 142.55 

COPIERS NORTHWEST UTILITY BILLING 171 .28 

COPIERS NORTHWEST CITY CLERK 191 .05 

COPIERS NORTHWEST FINANCE-GENL 191.05 

COPIERS NORTHWEST EXECUTIVE ADMIN 195.26 

COPIERS NORTHWEST POLICE INVESTIGATION 362.55 

COPIERS NORTHWEST DETENTION & CORRECTION 492.50 

COPIERS NORTHWEST PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 593.42 

COPIERS NORTHWEST OFFICE OPERATIONS 2,052.22 

119685 CORRECTIONS, DEPT OF INMATE MEAL CREDIT DETENTION & CORRECTION -1,744.1 2 

CORRECTIONS, DEPT OF INMATE MEALS DETENTION & CORRECTION 91 .68 

CORRECTIONS, DEPT OF DETENTION & CORRECTION 3,605.83 

119686 COSTA, RIETIA INSTRUCTOR SERVICES RECREATION SERVICES 18.00 

119687 CUSTOM COMFORT HOMES HYDRANT METER REFUND WATER-UTILITIES/ENVIRONM -426.80 

CUSTOM COMFORT HOMES WATER/SEWER OPERATION 1,150.00 

119688 DELL PC SUNNYSIDE FILTRATION PLAt 1,423.51 

119689 DONNELSON ELECTRIC GAZEBO OUTLETS AND LIGHTS GMA-PARKS 327.30 

DONNELSON ELECTRIC GMA-PARKS 1,395.28 

119690 DYER, CAROLA WATER/SEWER OPERATION 47.96 

119691 E&E LUMBER TAPE PARK & RECREATION FAC 3.97 

E&E LUMBER IRRIGATION REPAIR PARTS GMA-PARKS 4.56 

E&E LUMBER SHIMS PARK & RECREATION FAC 6 .90 

E&E LUMBER SLIP CAPS GMA-PARKS 7.38 
Item 2 - 4

19



DATE: 9/27/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 3 TIME: 9:05:35AM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 9/21/2017 TO 9/27/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
119691 E&E LUMBER PINE PARK & RECREATION FAC 7.42 

E&E LUMBER CONCRETE PARK & RECREATION FAC 8.37 
E&E LUMBER SHIMS AND CAULKING PARK & RECREATION FAC 9.71 
E&E LUMBER IRRIGATION REPAIR PARTS GMA-PARKS 11 .67 
E&E LUMBER FASTENERS PARK & RECREATION FAC 13.22 
E&E LUMBER BRACES AND HARDWARE SOURCE OF SUPPLY 13.82 
E&E LUMBER FASTENERS PARK & RECREATION FAC 16.06 
E&E LUMBER STUD FINDER AND PUTTY WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 22.81 
E&E LUMBER WASP SPRAY PARK & RECREATION FAC 25.08 
E&E LUMBER TAPE PARK & RECREATION FAC 31.39 
E&E LUMBER CLEANER PARK & RECREATION FAC 33.55 
E&E LUMBER FLEX HOSE ROADWAY MAINTENANCE 36.65 
E&E LUMBER BAR, BRUSH AND HARDWARE MAINT OF GENL PLANT 39.18 
E&E LUMBER CONCRETE GMA-PARKS 40.14 
E&E LUMBER EXTENSION POLES AND BRUSHES PARK & RECREATION FAC 42.47 
E&E LUMBER PAINT, TRAY, TAPE AND FOAM COV PARK & RECREATION FAC 43.39 
E&E LUMBER CONCRETE AND BRUSHES PARK & RECREATION FAC 52.29 
E&E LUMBER LEVER PARK & RECREATION FAC 52.36 
E&E LUMBER PAINT, TRAYS AND COVERS PARK & RECREATION FAC 56.87 
E&E LUMBER THREADED ROD AND FASTENERS PARK & RECREATION FAC 57.72 
E&E LUMBER FASTENERS, PUTTY, WEATHERSTRIP PARK & RECREATION FAC 90.30 
E&E LUMBER POWER BIT AND TAPE PARK & RECREATION FAC 116.73 
E&E LUMBER DOOR UTILADMIN 272.70 
E&E LUMBER PAINT AND SUPPLIES PARK & RECREATION FAC 403.23 

119692 EMERALD HILLS COFFEE AND SUPPLIES BAXTER CENTER APPRE 45.40 

119693 ENERSPECT MEDICAL AED BATTERY EXECUTIVE ADMIN 133.57 
119694 EVERETT STAMP WORKS STAMP OFFICE OPERATIONS 98.63 
119695 FE DEX SHIPPING EXPENSE GMA-STREET 11.94 
119696 FIRESTONE TIRE CREDIT EQUIPMENT RENTAL -23.79 

FIRESTONE TIRES EQUIPMENT RENTAL 465.80 

119697 FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065125170927115 STREET LIGHTING 49.77 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065774950927115 STREET LIGHTING 49.77 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065836350725085 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 56.10 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI UTILADMIN 56.11 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065831360617105 MUNICIPAL COURTS 68.45 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065962121015935 MAINT OF GENL PLANT 68.45 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065827660617105 MUNICIPAL COURTS 79.74 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065976670111075 OFFICE OPERATIONS 79.74 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #25300981920624965 SEWER LIFT STATION 85.62 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATI ACCT #36065191230801 065 WATER FILTRATION PLANT 99.96 

119698 GALLS, LLC UNIFORM-FOOTE POLICE PATROL 5.61 

GALLS, LLC POLICE PATROL 17.40 

GALLS, LLC UNIFORM-BURNETT, D POLICE PATROL 88.32 

GALLS, LLC UNIFORM-FOOTE POLICE PATROL 181.12 

GALLS, LLC UNIFORM-BURNETT, D POLICE PATROL 198.58 

119699 GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENDER PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 

GRIFFEN, CHRIS PUBLIC DEFENSE 300.00 

119700 GRITTON, DENISE REIMBURSE MILEAGE FINANCE-GENL 254.66 

119701 HAGGEN INC. SMALL BUSINESS SUMMIT EXPENSE EXECUTIVE ADMIN 267.26 

119702 HD FOWLER COMPANY INVOICE PAID IN ERROR SOURCE OF SUPPLY -984.35 

HD FOWLER COMPANY IRRIGATION REPAIR PARTS GMA-PARKS 49.73 

HD FOWLER COMPANY GMA-PARKS 53.35 

HD FOWLER COMPANY GMA-PARKS 77.75 

HD FOWLER COMPANY GMA-PARKS 195.03 

HD FOWLER COMPANY METER BOX AND LID WATER DIST MAINS 965.40 

HD FOWLER COMPANY BRASS HARDWARE WATER/SEWER OPERATION 1,014.95 

HD FOWLER COMPANY SUNNYSIDE WELL PARTS SOURCE OF SUPPLY 1,185.81 
Item 2 - 5

20



DATE: 9/27/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 4 TIME: 9:05:35AM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 9/21/2017 TO 9/27/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
119703 HE MITCHELL CO TAILPIECES MAINT OF GENL PLANT 3.27 

HE MITCHELL CO LOCKS MAINT OF GENL PLANT 119.33 
HE MITCHELL CO DOOR LEVERS PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 187.65 
HE MITCHELL CO MATERIALS MAINT OF GENL PLANT 462.42 

119704 HOME DEPOT FLOOR MATS SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 248.68 
119705 HSBC BANK USA NA AS WATER/SEWER OPERATION 84.67 
119706 HUGGINS, JOHN WATER/SEWER OPERATION 14.31 
119707 HUNT, ROBERT WATER/SEWER OPERATION 97.29 
119708 ITH, SONOCH GARBAGE 202.07 
119709 J. THAYER COMPANY RECYCLE BINS COURT FACILITIES 58.85 

J. THAYER COMPANY CLEANER ER&R 81.87 
119710 KAISER PERMANENTE PRE-EMPLOYMENT SCREENING POLICE ADMINISTRATION 2,122.00 
119711 KBDB GROUP LLC WATER/SEWER OPERATION 134.64 
119712 KEATON, SANDY RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 100.00 
119713 KELLOGG VILLAGE HOME BEAUTIFICATION GRANT PROTECTIVE INSPECTIONS 5,000.00 
119714 KIM, JAMIE S. PUBLIC DEFENDER PUBLIC DEFENSE 390.00 
119715 KRAMER, JACQUELINE WATER/SEWER OPERATION 26.53 
119716 LABOR & INDUSTRIES USER LICENSE-ZARETZKE POLICE PATROL 75.00 
119717 LADD FARM & GARDEN REFUND BUSINESS LICENSE FEES GENL FUND BUS UC & PERM! 65.00 
119718 LAKE INDUSTRIES ROCK STORM DRAINAGE 103.40 
119719 LANCASTER, HOLLI RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 200.00 
119720 LASTING IMPRESSIONS HATS PARK & RECREATION FAC 194.42 

LASTING IMPRESSIONS SHIRTS ER&R 538.95 
119721 LES SCHWAB TIRE CTR TIRES ER&R 1,605.08 
119722 LOWES HIW INC STRAPS SOURCE OF SUPPLY 26.90 
119723 MAPLES, JAMES PER DIEM 10/6-10/8 POLICE TRAINING-FIREARMS 160.00 
119724 MARYSVILLE PRINTING BROCHURES OPERA HOUSE 87.28 

MARYSVILLE PRINTING FLYERS RECREATION SERVICES 415.46 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING RECREATION SERVICES 415.46 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING BUSINESS CARDS POLICE PATROL 568.90 

119725 MARYSVILLE SCHOOL FACILITY USEAGE-ACE RECREATION SERVICES 72.00 

MARYSVILLE SCHOOL FACILITY USEAGE-TMS RECREATION SERVICES 120.00 

MARYSVILLE SCHOOL FACILITY USEAGE-GROVE RECREATION SERVICES 546.00 

MARYSVILLE SCHOOL FACILITY USEAGE-ACE RECREATION SERVICES 1,275.00 

119726 MARYSVILLE, CITY OF UTILITY SERVICE-1518 1ST ST GMA- STREET 59.83 
MARYSVILLE, CITY OF UTILITY SERVICE-1529 3RD ST IR WATER SERVICES 191.63 

119727 MCCOY, CHARLOTIE M WATER/SEWER OPERATION 5.13 

119728 MCRAE, BLAINE & WEND WATER/SEWER OPERATION 20.89 

119729 MODERN ICON HARNESSES AND COLLAR GENERAL FUND -57.33 

MODERN ICON K9 PROGRAM 687.33 

119730 NATIONAL BARRICADE SIGNS AND STANDS TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 395.74 

NATIONAL BARRICADE TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 1,244.73 

119731 NAVIA BENEFIT FLEX PLAN FEES PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 66.40 

119732 NORTHSTAR CHEMICAL SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE WATER FILTRATION PLANT 908.00 

NORTHSTAR CHEMICAL WATER QUAL TREATMENT 1,354.40 

NORTHSTAR CHEMICAL WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 4,102.16 

NORTHSTAR CHEMICAL WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 4,372.73 

119733 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE SUPPLIES ENGR-GENL 22.35 

OFFICE DEPOT POLICE PATROL 45.88 

OFFICE DEPOT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 80.58 

OFFICE DEPOT STORM DRAINAGE 86.19 

OFFICE DEPOT UTILADMIN 98.18 

OFFICE DEPOT POLICE PATROL 107.53 

OFFICE DEPOT UTILADMIN 134.23 

OFFICE DEPOT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 150.21 

OFFICE DEPOT POLICE PATROL 584.22 

119734 OWEN EQUIPMENT RUDDER PUMP, SCREEN AND GASKET EQUIPMENT RENTAL 15,917.27 
Item 2 - 6

21



DATE: 9/2712017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 5 TIME: 9:05:35AM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 9/21/2017 TO 9/27/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
119734 OWEN EQUIPMENT SWEEPER REPAIR #H002 STORM DRAINAGE 37,814.93 
119735 PARTS MASTER BITS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 204.84 
119736 PATRICK, KRISTIN WATER/SEWER OPERATION 333.92 
119737 PETTY CASH- PW PARKING AND LICENSING REIMBURS PURCHASING/CENTRAL STOF 6.00 

PETTY CASH- PW EQUIPMENT RENTAL 44.75 
PETTY CASH- PW EQUIPMENT RENTAL 44.75 
PETTY CASH- PW EQUIPMENT RENTAL 44.75 

119738 PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES GOLF COURSE -41.62 
PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 1.87 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PRO-SHOP 29.32 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 31.46 
PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 38.92 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 46.01 
PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 51.69 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 56.24 
PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 56.24 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MAINTENANCE 65.07 
PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL MAINTENANCE 83.63 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PRO-SHOP 89.00 
PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 101 .86 
PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 106.98 
PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 126. 71 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 143.44 
PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 159.29 
PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 180.20 
PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 186.41 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MAINTENANCE 193.60 
PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 225.54 
PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PRO-SHOP 313.33 
PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 369.22 

PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 461 .97 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PRO-SHOP 590.20 
PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 722.15 
PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL MAINTENANCE 723.85 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MAINTENANCE 753.57 

PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE 1,008.53 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 1,027.30 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 1,075.77 

PGC INTERBAY LLC PRO-SHOP 1,680.00 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 1,756.14 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 2,030.79 

PGC INTERBAY LLC GOLF COURSE PAYROLL PRO-SHOP 6,257.93 

PGC INTERBAY LLC MAINTENANCE 9,305.82 

119739 PILCHUCK RENTALS LOWER RUBBER PADS SMALL ENGINE SHOP 28.32 

PILCHUCK RENTALS GEAR CASE ASSEMBLIES AND DEFLE SMALL ENGINE SHOP 266.60 

PILCHUCK RENTALS CLUTCH ASSEMBLIES SMALL ENGINE SHOP 269.89 

119740 PLATT ELECTRIC BLADES AND SMALL TOOLS TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 48.39 

PLATT ELECTRIC BULBS WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 188.52 

PLATT ELECTRIC LIGHTING PARTS SEWER LIFT STATION 441.29 

119741 POSTAL SERVICE POSTAGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 67.33 

POSTAL SERVICE UTILADMIN 91 .45 

119742 PROFORCE LAW ENFORC TASER CARTRIDGES POLICE TRAINING-FIREARMS 1,498.49 

119743 PUD ACCT #2051 -3624-5 SEWER LIFT STATION 15.90 

PUD ACCT #2024-6103-4 UTILADMIN 16.20 

PUD ACCT #2207-6180-7 OPERA HOUSE 16.44 

PUD ACCT #2023-7865-9 MAINT OF GENL PLANT 17.01 

PUD ACCT #2020-3113-4 PUMPING PLANT 17.17 
Item 2 - 7

22



DATE: 9/27/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 6 TIME: 9:05:35AM INVOICE LIST 
FOR INVOICES FROM 9/21/2017 TO 9/27/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
119743 PUD ACCT #2024-9948-9 COMMUNITY EVENTS 17.24 

PUD ACCT #2051-9537-3 PARK & RECREATION FAC 17.58 
PUD ACCT #2016-7213-6 SEWER LIFT STATION 20.63 
PUD ACCT #2016-6804-3 PARK & RECREATION FAC 25.17 
PUD ACCT #2021-7815-8 SEWER LIFT STATION 26.41 
PUD ACCT #2035-6975-1 STORM DRAINAGE 27.21 
PUD ACCT #2024-7643-8 SEWER LIFT STATION 28.58 
PUD ACCT #2023-6855-1 PARK & RECREATION FAC 31.36 
PUD ACCT #2207-9273-3 STREET LIGHTING 31.66 
PUD ACCT #2006-5074-5 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 32.23 
PUD ACCT #2026-9433-7 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 36.48 
PUD ACCT #2023-6853-6 TRANSPORTATION MANAGErv 40.55 
PUD ACCT #2027-9465-7 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 43.11 
PUD ACCT #2025-2469-0 PUMPING PLANT 44.74 
PUD ACCT #2030-0516-0 STREET LIGHTING 45.24 
PUD ACCT #2031-9973-2 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 45.91 
PUD ACCT #2034-3089-7 STREET LIGHTING 47.11 
PUD ACCT #2006-2538-2 SEWER LIFT STATION 49.56 
PUD ACCT #2021-0219-0 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 50.11 
PUD ACCT #2024-2648-2 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 51.56 
PUD ACCT #2008-2727-7 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 53.10 
PUD ACCT #2005-7184-2 TRANSPORTATION MANAGErv 56.56 
PUD ACCT #2023-6854-4 TRANSPORTATION MANAGErv 56.92 
PUD ACCT #2021-7595-6 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 57.79 
PUD ACCT #2035-1961-6 NON-DEPARTMENTAL 58.04 
PUD ACCT #2021-4311-1 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 59.65 
PUD ACCT #2020-0032-9 PARK & RECREATION FAC 61.39 
PUD ACCT #2022-8858-5 TRANSPORTATION MANAGErv 64.64 
PUD ACCT #2020-1258-9 PARK & RECREATION FAC 73.25 
PUD ACCT #2000-8403-6 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 74.90 

PUD ACCT #2007-9006-1 PARK & RECREATION FAC 76.57 

PUD ACCT #2010-2169-8 PARK & RECREATION FAC 87.78 

PUD ACCT #2052-3773-8 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 89.78 

PUD ACCT #2032-3100-6 TRANSPORTATION MANAGEIV 90.75 

PUD ACCT #2207-6117-5 OPERA HOUSE 97.56 
PUD ACCT #2024-6354-3 SEWER LIFT STATION 97.57 

PUD ACCT #2025-5745-0 STREET LIGHTING 102.54 

PUD ACCT #2052-3927-0 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 107.65 

PUD ACCT #2208-3888-2 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 125.12 

PUD ACCT #2010-2160-7 PARK & RECREATION FAC 171 .06 

PUD ACCT #2010-6528-1 PARK & RECREATION FAC 177.14 

PUD ACCT #2032-2345-8 PARK & RECREATION FAC 181 .56 

PUD ACCT #2054-1976-5 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 188.19 

PUD ACCT #2048-2122-7 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 198.48 

PUD ACCT #2002-2385-7 PARK & RECREATION FAC 226.65 

PUD ACCT #2004-7954-1 COMMUNITY CENTER 243.29 

PUD ACCT #2000-7044-9 TRANSPORTATION MANAGErv 252.25 

PUD ACCT #2012-4769-9 STREET LIGHTING 269.72 

PUD ACCT #2023-0972-0 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 324.12 

PUD ACCT #2211 -9254-5 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 332.88 

PUD ACCT #2026-8928-7 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 374.83 

PUD ACCT #2208-2414-8 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 567.77 

PUD ACCT #2005-8648-5 SEWER LIFT STATION 643.20 

PUD ACCT #2213-2008-8 SUNNYSIDE FILTRATION PLAI 1,060.86 

PUD ACCT #2008-2454-8 MAINT OF GENL PLANT 1,404.98 

PUD ACCT #2011-4725-3 PUMPING PLANT 2,777.30 

PUD ACCT #2003-0347-7 WATER FILTRATION PLANT 2,903.66 
Item 2 - 8

23



DATE: 9/27/2017 CITY OF MARYSVILLE PAGE: 7 
TIME: 9:05:35AM INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 9/21/2017 TO 9/27/2017 

CHK# VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT ITEM 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
119743 PUD ACCT #2014-6303-1 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 3,343.82 

PUD ACCT #2015-7792-1 PUMPING PLANT 5,471 .54 
PUD ACCT #2014-2063-5 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 7,532.49 
PUD ACCT #2020-7500-8 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 10,319.99 
PUD ACCT #2017-2118-0 WASTE WATER TREATMENT F 13,810.45 

119744 ROY ROBINSON SENSOR EQUIPMENT RENTAL 80.08 
119745 RUTH, MARIA MUDD ENTERTAINMENT 9/26/17 OPERA HOUSE 100.00 
119746 SEIBERT, JEFF REIMBURSE DC CONFERENCE EXPENS CITY COUNCIL 1,224.57 
119747 SHERWIN WILLIAMS PAINT AND RAGS PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 72.49 
119748 SHOVE, PETE PER DIEM 10/2-10/6 POLICE PATROL 265.50 
119749 SIX ROBBLEES INC WHEEL WEIGHTS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 68.45 
119750 SMITH, CINDY I WATER/SEWER OPERATION 34.40 
119751 SNO CO PUBLIC WORKS SOLID WASTE CHARGES SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 159,605.00 
119752 SNO CO TREASURER CRIME VICTIM/WITNESS FUNDS CRIME VICTIM 12,131 .76 
119753 SNO CO TREASURER INMATE PRESCRIPTIONS DETENTION & CORRECTION 0.99 
119754 SOUND PUBLISHING NOTICES CITY CLERK 40.13 
119755 SOUND PUBLISHING ADVERTISING OPERA HOUSE 135.00 
119756 SOUND PUBLISHING LEGAL ADS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 359.47 

119757 SOUND SAFETY JEANS-GIEBEL UTILADMIN 128.35 

SOUND SAFETY BOOTS-GIEBEL UTILADMIN 153.03 
SOUND SAFETY BOOTS-BALLOU SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 186.39 

119758 SOUND TRACTOR CABLE SMALL ENGINE SHOP 55.07 

119759 STAPLES OFFICE SUPPLIES MUNICIPAL COURTS 12.75 

STAPLES PROBATION 47.52 

STAPLES UTILADMIN 58.88 

STAPLES UTILADMIN 58.88 

STAPLES PROBATION 99.84 

STAPLES MUNICIPAL COURTS 142.58 

STAPLES PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 229.62 

STAPLES MUNICIPAL COURTS 299.55 

STAPLES MUNICIPAL COURTS 392.74 

119760 STATE AUDITORS OFFIC AUDIT PERIOD 16-16 NON-DEPARTMENTAL 874.04 

STATE AUDITORS OFFIC UTILADMIN 874.04 

119761 STATE PATROL BACKGROUND CHECKS PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATIOI 156.00 

STATE PATROL FINGERPRINT ID SERVICES GENERAL FUND 348.00 

119762 STEVENS, JULIET WATER/SEWER OPERATION 73.00 

119763 STONEWAY ELECTRIC SERVICE CHARGE MAINT OF GENL PLANT 29.74 

STONEWAY ELECTRIC PW SHOP LIGHTING MAINT OF GENL PLANT 1,982.41 

119764 SUPERION LLC TRAKIT USER LICENSES PUMPING PLANT 218.21 

SUPERION LLC STORM DRAINAGE 218.21 

SUPERION LLC UTILADMIN 327.30 

SUPERION LLC WATER DIST MAINS 327.30 

119765 SUPPLYWORKS JANITORIAL SUPPLIES UTILADMIN 233.39 

119766 SWEET, RALPH & LINDA WATER/SEWER OPERATION 116.57 

119767 TACOMA SCREW PRODUCT FUSE HOLDER EQUIPMENT RENTAL 66.21 

TACOMA SCREW PRODUCT CLIPS AND RETAINERS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 74.08 

TACOMA SCREW PRODUCT HARDWARE EQUIPMENT RENTAL 200.41 

119768 TERRY, SHAUN & AMBER WATER/SEWER OPERATION 346.53 

119769 THORNESS, WILLIAM R ENTERTAINMENT 10/24/17 OPERA HOUSE 100.00 

119770 TULALIP FUN COMMITTE RENTAL DEPOSIT REFUND GENERAL FUND 100.00 

119771 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES CLIENT MAINTENANCE COMPUTER SERVICES 2,945.70 

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES MUNIS OSDBA COMPUTER SERVICES 15,720.10 

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES LICENSING SUPPORT COMPUTER SERVICES 73,514.95 

119772 UNDERHILL, DAVID & V WATER/SEWER OPERATION 380.78 

119773 VINYL SIGNS & BANNER TRAIL SIGNS PARK & RECREATION FAC 259.22 

VINYL SIGNS & BANNER JUNK IN THE TRUNK BANNERS COMMUNITY CENTER 261 .84 

119774 WAAUDJOLOGY SRVCS TESTING EXECUTIVE ADMIN 40.00 
Item 2 - 9

24



DATE: 9/27/2017 
TIME: 9:05:35AM 

CHK# VENDOR 

119775 WA STATE TREASURER 
WA STATE TREASURER 

119776 WABO 
119777 WALTER E NELSON CO. 

WALTER E NELSON CO. 
WALTER E NELSON CO. 

119778 WEEWIE, MARCIAL 
119779 WELCOME COMMUNICATIO 
119780 WEST PAYMENT CENTER 

WEST PAYMENT CENTER 
WEST PAYMENT CENTER 

119781 WESTERN PETERBILT 
WESTERN PETERBILT 
WESTERN PETERBILT 

119782 WESTERN SYSTEMS 

REASON FOR VOIDS: 

UNCLAIMED PROPERTY 

INITIATOR ERROR 

WRONG VENDOR 

CHECK LOST/DAMAGED IN MAIL 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 9/21/2017 TO 9/27/2017 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

PUBLIC SAFETY & BLDG REVENUE 

REGISTRATION-DORCAS 
JANITORIAL SUPPLY CREDIT 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 

BATTERIES 
WEST INFORMATION CHARGES 

CABLE ASSEMBLY 
SWITCH 
SENSOR 
UPS REPLACEMENT PARTS 

PAGE: 8 

ACCOUNT ITEM 
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
GENERAL FUND 243.00 
GENERAL FUND 40,777.80 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- 60.00 
PARK & RECREATION FAC 
PARK & RECREATION FAC 
PARK & RECREATION FAC 
GARBAGE 
POLICE PATROL 
POLICE INVESTIGATION 
LEGAL - PROSECUTION 
LEGAL-GENL 
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 
ER&R 
STREET LIGHTING 

-237.23 
234.08 
559.14 

36.18 
578.60 
258.73 
425.49 
425.49 

22.68 
45.48 

222.54 
2,391 .09 

WARRANT TOTAL: 2,137,959.82 

Item 2 - 10

25



Index #3
 

26



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: October 9, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Contract Award: 2017 Emergency Generator Project 

PREPARED BY: DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 
Jeff Laycock, City Engineer 'V DEPARTMENT: 
Engineering 

v 

ATTACHMENTS: I 

Certified Bid Tab, Vicinity Map 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 
40220594.563000.W 1602 

$X 
40220594.563000.S 1601 
SUMMARY: 

The 2017 Emergency Generator Project includes furnishing and installing emergency generators 
at the following locations and as shown in the attached vicinity map: Cedarcrest Booster Pump 
Station, Carroll's Creek Lift Station, Cedarcrest Vista Lift Station and Kellogg Ridge Lift Station. 
Emergency generators will ensure operation of the facilities during power outages. 

The project was bid as one base bid - Cedarcrest Booster Pump Station and Carroll 's Creek Lift 
Station, bid additive 1 - Cedarcrest Vista Lift Station and bid additive 2 - Kellogg Ridge Lift 
Station. 

The project was advertised for an October 3, 2017 bid opening. The City received X bids as shown 
on the attached bid tabulation. The low bidder was X at $X - base bid, $X - bid additive 1, and 
$X bid additive 2. The engineer's estimate is $X - base bid, $X - bid additive 1, and $X bid 
additive 2. References have been checked and found to be satisfactory. 

Staff recommend award of the base bid, plus bid additive 1 and 2. 

Contract Bid: 
Management Reserve: 
Construction Total: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

$X 
$X 
$X 

Staff recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to sign and execute the 2017 Emergency 
Generator Project contract with X in the amount of $X including Washington State Sales Tax and 
approve a management reserve of $X for a total allocation of $X. 

Item 3 - 1

27



.... 
0 
0:: 

~ 
ll. 

w 

~_[ 
~ 
:r 
It .:c ... - • .___, 

d'..>: 
IS' ..... 

~~ 
z 

l T 

w 
z 
w 
?t 
0 
0:: 
M co 

WADE-RD-

' 

w 
z a. 
ii: 
l/J 

r-
w 
2 w 
~ 
:r ..... 
en 
co 

w 
z 
w 
~--.---..---! 
i.!.. 
l/J 
...... 

~ 

1·32Nl!l·S1"·NE 

I 

r ... Ht-r 
z w 

L--r--~ . 

<D 

~ 
' ~ 
{II 

~ 

:r 
l'
cn 

96TH·ST-NE 

2017 Emergency Generator Project •~l OTY OI .... ~··ua D<.cw .... •~· "'""""~" "" U (O< ... ~ '"'"'"' o•w• .... ~,,. o· M •m 
"' ' '"~l>< l • l<J< ••Y ,AAllCllUO • uU<N. ''""' l • .. l 'AlDO•• .... •l D • O •t,.nl..r •UO•; 
Qlt W>JW.•r¥ 11 Wlll a>loCl"p,G !'t<t ACCl/MC'f tuH l~C>' W MftlRo.t llCllOU.O tn -1 0f 

0. IA l>U•CTID M • USUCl> !ll•MrAAl\l,IMU "' l OUfflt<"Mm'O!l!Ull l>+IM OfA• D 
·~Of>< fO AC:lt!ITO-D Tlll: C~~Df ...... \\'!Ill >tU ... lll l ll<lMMD.,-.... '1'M < DAW<ll 
ID'AOOl .... l lfy J.l~G >OOM MYllllOO f'"0.\1 4 4,000 2.000 4 ,000 f eet 

Printed: September, 201 7 

Item 3 - 2

28



Index #4
 

29



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 10/09/17 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Authorization request to purchase a 24 'x40' Modular Office Building identified in the 2017118 
Budget 
PREPARED BY: DffiECTOR APPROVAL: 

Kari Chennault v DEPARTMENT: 

Public Works 

ATTACHMENTS: I 
NIA 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 
4014378.564000.1723 $131 ,000 

SUMMARY: 

This request is for purchase authorization for a 20 ' x 40 ' modular office building for additional 
space for the Water Resources Division. This modular building was budgeted for in the 2017-
2018 Biennial Budget and is being purchased through the Intergovernmental Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement. The Cooperative Purchasing Agreement was discussed and approved for 
use at the January 23 , 2017 Council meeting. 

The original budgeted amount was for $95 ,000 however through the process of identifying site 
placement and structural requirements due to the flood plain, there was an increase to the initial 
budget estimate. To respond to this overrun, staff have identified other budgeted projects within 
the division where there can be underruns, i.e. the Kellogg Prerotation Basin, budgeted for 
$175,000 and staff have identified a different pumping style that is expected to cost less than 
$100,000. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends City Council authorize the purchase of the 24 'x40 ' modular office building. 

Item 4 - 1

30



Index #5
 

31



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DA TE: 10/09/17 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Budgeted fleet purchases exceeding a total cost of $75,000 

PREPARED BY: DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 

Kari Chennault 

~ DEPARTMENT: 

Public Works 

ATTACHMENTS: I 
NIA 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

50100048.564000 $359,875.51 

SUMMARY: 

This agenda bill is to request the Councilmembers acceptance of the purchase ofrolling fleet, 
as identified in the 2017/2018 Budget that exceeds the purchase price of $7 5,000 as required 
by Resolution No. 2415 as adopted May 8, 2017. 

Vehicle and Description Budgeted Amount Actual Cost 
Cab and chassis for the dump truck $225,000 $164.441.33 
to be built to replace vehicle #252 
2017 Freightliner MT45 step van to $95,000 $111,203.63 
replace vehicle #502 
2017 Ford F550 Crew Cab 4x4 with $95,000 $84,230.55 
switch and go body 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff requests that Councilmembers authorize the Mayor to 
approve the purchases identified above for three pieces of rolling fleet. 

Item 5 - 1

32



Index #6
 

33



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: October 9, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Project Acceptance - 2016 Pavement Preservation 

PREPARED BY: DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 

Kyle Woods, Project Engineer ~ DEPARTMENT: 

Engineering 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Notice of Physical Completion, Vicinity Map 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 
10200030.548000.TB601 

$1,119,161.78 

SUMMARY: 

The 2016 Pavement Preservation Program included the resurfacing of streets and pavement repair 
as shown on the attached map. The program is funded by the Transportation Benefit District. 

The project was awarded to Cemex Constuction Materials Pacific LLC on May 23, 2016 in the 
amount of $1 ,063,608.65. Cemex completed the project on September 1, 2017 with a total project 
cost of $1,119, 161. 78, which was $55,553.13, or 5.2% higher than the original bid price. 

Work performed under this contract was inspected by City staff. The work was found to be 
physically complete in accordance with the approved plans and specifications. Staff recommends 
Council's acceptance of the project for closeout. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to accept the 2016 Pavement Preservation 
Program, starting the 45-day lien filing period for project closeout. 

Item 6 - 1

34



fMarOF sville 
YWASHINGTON 

9/1/2017 

Cadman Materials Inc. 
20700 44th Ave W, Suite 240 
Lynnwood, WA 98036 

PUBLIC WORKS 
Kevin Nielsen, Director 

80 Columbia Avenue 
Marysville, Washington 98270 

Phone (360) 363-8100 
Fax(360)363-8284 

Subject: 2016 Pavement Preservation Program - Notice of Physical Completion 

Dear Catherine, 

In accordance with Section 1-05.11 (2) of the Special Provisions, the 2016 Pavement Preservation 
Program was considered physically complete as of Friday, September 1, 2017. 

This notification does not constitute final acceptance. Recommendation for final acceptance will 
be sent to the City Council for approval at the first available council meeting. This date of final 
acceptance shall start the forty-five (45) day lien period for the release of your retainage bond 
upon receipt of the following. 

1. Certificate of Release from the Department of Revenue 
2. Certificate of Release from the Employment Security Department 
3. Certificate of Release from the Department of L&I 
4. Affidavit of Wages Paid (to be submitted by Cadman to the City) 

It was a pleasure working with Cemex on this year's Pavement Preservation Program. We look 
forward to working with you in the future. 

Sincerely, 

Kyle Woods 
Project Engineer 

S:\Eng\Projects\Miscellaneous\2016 Projects\Pavement Preservation\Construction\Notice of Physical Completion.doc 

-~---"·--·--------------

Item 6 - 2

35



I 
-i

lN
-3

-,
,_

~·
 1

-1
1.

"\ 

I 
'°' 

0 <
 

CD
 

:::!
... 

O
l 

'<
 

_2
41
l!
,~
VE
 

;o
 

CD
 

"O
 

O
l .,
 

"i0
-,1

.1.
l'l

.~ 
8

1
S

T
:A

V
f;

:N
E

 

2
3

R
O

A
V

E
1

1
€

 

67
T

H
 

A
V

E
 

N
E

 

77
T

H
, 

A
V

E
 
~
E
 

B
1

S
T

 A
V

E
 N

E
 

23
R

D
 

A
V

E
_ 

N
E

·-

51
5 z 

Ite
m

 6
 - 

3

36



Index #7
 

37



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 9, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Budgeted Filter Feed Pump Replacement purchases exceeding a total cost of $75,000 

PREPARED BY: DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 

Jeff Cobb 
\(}{1 -{Vr ~(\ DEPARTMENT: 

v 

Public Works 

ATTACHMENTS: I 

NIA 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

40142480.564000 $311 ,075.20 

SUMMARY: 

This agenda bill is to request the City Council acceptance of the purchase of Filter Feed Pump 
Replacements, as identified in the 2017/2018 Budget that exceeds the purchase price of 
$75,000 as required by Resolution No. 2415 as adopted May 8, 2017. 

Equipment Description Budgeted Amount Actual Cost 

2 - 20 Hp Fairbanks Morse Vertical $400,000 $311,075.20 
Turbine Solids Handling Pumps 
built to match existing soleplate and 
discharge head. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff requests that City Council authorize the Mayor to approve 
the purchases identified above for the two Filter Feed Pumps. 

Item 7 - 1

38



Index #8
 

39



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 10/09/17 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Land Use Restriction and Real Property Covenant 

PREPARED BY: DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 

Brooke Ensor 

~ DEPARTMENT: 

Public Works 

ATTACHMENTS: I 
Land Use Restriction and Real Property Covenant 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

NA $0.00 

SUMMARY: The Land Use Restriction and Real Property Covenant will encumber four City 
owned properties that are flooded daily within the Qwuloolt restoration project area. The Land 
Use Restriction and Real Property Covenant must be signed and recorded in order to receive 
advance wetland mitigation credits. The wetland mitigation credits can be used for future 
wetland impacts from City projects. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends that the Council authorize the Mayor to sign 
the Land Use Restriction and Real Property Covenant. 

Item 8 - 1

40



When Recorded Mail To: 

City of Marysville 
1049 State A venue 
Marysviile. Washington 98270 

DECLARATION OF LAND USE RESTRICTION 
AND REAL PROPERTY COVENANT 

Declarant: City of Marysville, a municipal corporation. 

Beneficiaries: State of Washington Department of Ecology; United States Anny Corps of Engineers. 

Assessor's Tax Parcel ID# and Brief Property Description: 30053400300800 SEC 34 TWP 30 ROE 
05RT-28A) I AC MILS OF CREEK IN SW COR NWI/4 SWl/4 and portions of30053300400200 
SEC 33 TWP 30 RGE 05RT-17A) 17.50 AC MIL OF THAT PART NEl/4 SEl/4 LY SLY OF 
CREEK & 12FT STRIP RUNNING PLL & ADJ TOW SD OF E LN SW!/4 NEl/4, portions of 
30053300401000 SEC 33 TWP 30 RGE 05RT-23) LOT 4 and portions of00918500099000 Section 
34 Township 30 Range 05 Quarter SE HARBOR VIEW VILLAGE BLK 000 D-00 - TRS 990 & 
992 & 994-996. 

This Declaration of Land Use Restriction and Real Property Covenant (the "real property 
covenant") is made this day of 2017, by City of Marysville 
("Declarant"), for the benefit of the State of Washington Department of Ecology; and the United 
States Ar1ny Corps of Engineers, referred to herein as ''the Beneficiaries". 

WHEREAS, the Declarant makes the following recitals: 

A. Declarant is the sole owner in fee simple of the real property located in Snohomish 
County, Washington, legally described on Exhibit A (the "Property"). A 1nap of the Property is 
attached to and made part of this real property covenant, as ExhibitB. 

B. The Property possesses natural, open space, ecological, and recreational values that are of 
great importance to Declarant and the Beneficiaries. 'fhese values are referred to herein as the 
"Conservation Values" of the Property. 

C. The Declarant is creating a real property covenant on this Property in accordance with the 
process described in the advance wetland mitigation agreement ("Wetland Mitigation Plan"), 

Pagelof14 

Item 8 - 2

41



approved by and developed in compliance with United States Army Corps of Engineers and 
State of Washington Department of Ecology and executed in April 2013 (Permit# NWS-2013-
209). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and the covenants, terms, conditions 
and restrictions contained herein, Declarant, does hereby establish a real property covenant on 
the Property as follows: 

1. Declaration of Real Property Covenant 

Declarant as fee simple owner of the Property voluntarily establishes this real property covenant 
in perpetuity over the Property, on the terms and conditions set forth, exclusively for the purpose 
of conserving the Conservation Values of the Property. It is the intent of the Declarant that the 
covenant shall supersede any prior interests the Declarant has in the property and shall run with 
the land and be binding on all current and future owners of any portion of, or interest in, the 
Property. 

2. Purpose 

It is the purpose of this real property covenant to ensure that the Property will be retained forever 
in a natural, open space and scenic condition and to prevent any use of the Property that will 
ilnpair or interfere with the Conservation Values of the Property. Declarant and the 
Beneficiaries intend that this real property covenant will confine the use of the Property to such 
activities as are consistent with the purpose of this real property covenant. 

3. Rights of the Beneficiaries 

To accomplish the purpose of this real property covenant the following rights may be exercised 
by the Beneficiaries: 

(a) To preserve and protect the Conservation Values: of the Property; 

(b) To enter upon the Property at reasonable times in order to monitor Declarant's 
compliance with and otherwise enforce the terms of this real property covenant in accordance 
with Section 9; provided that, except in cases where the Beneficiaries determine that immediate 
entry is required to prevent, terminate, or mitigate a violation of this real property covenant, such 
entry shall be upon prior reasonable notice to Declarant; 

(c) To conduct, with reasonable prior notice to Declarant, survey, site preparation, 
removal of invasive non-native riparian vegetation, installation of native plants, and other 
activities associated with wetland mitigation. Nothing herein shall be deemed to imply any 
obligation to perform such restoration activities; and 

(d) To prevent any activity on or use of the Property that is inconsistent with the 
purpose of this real property covenant and to require the restoration of such areas or features of 

Page 2of14 

Item 8 - 3

42



the Property that may be da1naged by any inconsistent activity or use, pursuant to the remedies 
set forth in Section 9. 

4. Prohibited Uses 

Any activity on or use of the Property inconsistent with the purpose of this real property 
covenant is prohibited. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following activities 
and uses are expressly prohibited, except as permitted in Sections 3 and 5: 

(a) Construction and l111provements. The placement or construction of any buildings, 
structures, or other improvements of any kind, including, without limitation, utilities, septic 
systems, communication lines, communication towers, storage tanks and pipelines. 

(b) Paving and Road and Trail Construction. The paving or covering of any portion 
of the Property with concrete, asphalt, gravel, crushed rock, wood shavings or any other paving 
or surfacing material or the construction of a road or trail. 

(c) Commercial Development. Any commercial or industrial use or activity on the 
Property, including, but not limited to, commercial recreational activities involving active 
recreation. 

(d) Agricultural Activities. Any domestic ani1nal grazing or agricultural activities of 
any kind; and application of biocides e'xcept when determined by the Beneficiaries to be 
necessary for the eradication of invasive non-native plant species and such application is by the 
narrowest spectrum, least persistent material appropriate for the target species. 

(e) 
plants. 

Introduced Vegetation. The planting or introduction of non-native species of 

(t) Waste Disposal. The disposal, storage, or release of yard waste, hazardous 
substances, rubbish, garbage, debris, unregistered vehicles, abandoned equipment, parts thereof, 
or other unsightly or offensive waste or 1naterial on the Property. The tern1 "release" shall mean 
any release, generation, treatment disposal, storage, dumping, burying, abandonment, or 
migration from off-site. The tem1 "hazardous substances" as used in this real property covenant 
shail mean any substances, materials, or wastes that are hazardous, toxic, dangerous, harmful or 
are designed as, or contain components that are, or are designated as, hazardous, toxic, 
dangerous, or hannful and/or v·.'hich are subject to regulation as hazardous, toxic, dangerous or 
harmful or as a pollutant by any federal, state, or local lav,', regulation, statute, or ordinance, 
including, but not li1nited to, petroleum or any petroleum product. 

(g) Active Recreation. Conducting or allowing activities, such as golf courses, ball 
fields, motocross, equestrian, campgrounds or any other activity involving individuals or the 
public or private clubs or associations engaging in organized active recreation. 

(h) Hunting. Conducting or allowing hunting activities, including construction of 
blinds, camping areas, access trails, and any other hunting related activities. 

Page3ofl4 

Item 8 - 4

43



(i) Signs. The placement of com1nercial signs, billboards, or other commercial 
advertising material on the Property. 

Q) l14ineral Development. The exploration for, or development and extraction of, any 
1ninerals or hydrocarbons. 

Q) Vehicles. The operation of motorized vehicles except as part of any wetland 
creation or maintenance activity. 

5. Reserved Rights 

Declarant reserves to itself and to its members and their personal representatives, heirs, 
successors and assigns, any use of, or activity on, the Property that is not inconsistent with the 
purpose of the real property covenant and that is not prohibited herein. Without limiting the. 
generality of the foregoing, Declarant specifically reserves the following uses and activities: 

(a) Maintenance, Monitoring and E1nergencies. The right to undertake activities necessary 
to maintain and monitor the Conservation Values and to public health, property 
improvements, or human safety, or which are actively required by and subject to 
compulsion of any govern1nental agency \Vith authority to require such activity. 

(b) Fence. \Vith reasbnable prior notice and approval from the Beneficiaries, which \vill not 
be unreasonably withheld or delayed, the right to install and maintain fences around the 
Property, and the Beneficiaries agrees not to remove or damage said fences. 

(c) Recreational Use. The right to allow passive recreational use and activities, such as bird 
watching, photography and the use of human-powered watercraft, provided that such 
passive recreational use does not include any of the prohibited uses set forth in Section 4 
of this real property covenant, and that such passive recreational use is otherwise 
consistent with the purpose and terms of this real property covenant. 

(d) Informational Signage. With reasonable prior notice and approval from the Beneficiaries, 
which will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, the right to install informational 
signage about the conservation values of the property, 

6. Responsibilities of Declarant Not Affected. 

Other than as specified herein, this real property covenant is not intended to impose any legal or 
other responsibility on the Beneficiaries, or in any way to affect any existing obligation of the 
Declarant as owner of the Property. This shall apply to: 

(a) Taxes. Declarant shall continue to be sOlely responsible for payment of all taxes 
and assessments levied against the Property. 

Page4ofl4 

Item 8 - 5

44



(b) Upkeep and A1aintenance, Costs, Legal Require1nents, and Liabilities. Declarant 
retains all responsibilities and shall bear all costs and liabilities of any kind related to the 
ov.rnership, operation, upkeep, and maintenance of the Property subject to the tenns of the 
Wetland Mitigation Plan. Declarantremains solely responsible for obtaining any applicable 
governmental permits and approvals for any construction or other activity or use permitted by 
this real property covenant and conducted by Declarant their agents or employees. 

(c) Remediation. If, at any time, there occurs, or has occurred, a release in, on, or 
about the Property of any hazardous substances, Declarant agrees to take all steps necessary to 
assure its containment and remediation, including any cleanup that may be requ'ired. Should 
Declarant become aware of the release of any hazardous substances on the Property, Declarant 
shall i1nmediately inform Beneficiaries. 

(d) Control. Nothing in this real property covenant shall be construed as giving rise 
to any right or ability in Beneficiaries to exercise physical or 1nanagerial control over the day-to
day operations of the Property, or any ofDeclarant's activities on the Property, or otherwise to 
become an operator with respect to the Property within the meaning of the COmprehensive 
Environn1ental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as a1nended ("CERCLA"), 
or the Model Toxics Control Act, as amended ("MTCA"). 

(e) Liability'. Beneficiaries, -except for the United States Army 'Corps of Engineers, 
and Declarant and their employees, agents, invitees, and heirs hereby release and agree to 
indemnify, defend and hold each other hannless from any injury, claim, damage, or loss suffered 
by Beneficiaries or Declarant or their employees, agents, invitees, or heirs on, around or with 
regard to the Property except to the extent of the party's or parties' negligent or unlawful actions. 

7. The Beneficiaries' Right to Restore the Property 

In the event that any of the Conservation Values of the Property are impaired, the Beneficiaries 
shall have the right, but not the obligation, to restore all or portions of the Property. 

8. Access 

No right of access by the general public to any portion of the Property is created by this real 
property covenant. 

9. Enforcement 

The Beneficiaries shall have the right to prevent and correct violations of the terms of this real 
property covenant as set forth below. Nothing in the foregoing precludes Beneficiaries fron1 
taking regulatory enforcement action. 

(a) Notice of Failure. If the Beneficiaries determine that the Declarant is in violation 
of the terms of this real property covenant or that a violation is threatened, the Beneficiaries shall 
give written notice to Declarant of such violation and demand corrective action sufficient to cure 
the violation and, where the violation involves injury to the Property resulting fro1n any use or 
activity inconsistent with the purpose of this real property covenant, to restore the portion of the 

Page 5of14 

Item 8 - 6

45



Property so injured to its prior condition in accordance \Vith a plan approved by the 
Beneficiaries. 

(b) Declarant's Failure to Respond. In addition to the rights granted in Section 3, 
including the right of entry, the Beneficiaries may bring an action as provided for in Section 9(c) 
below ifDeclarant fails to cure the violation within thirty (30) days after receipt of notice thereof 
from the Beneficiaries; fails to begin curing such violation within the thirty (30) day period 
under circu1nstances where the violation cannot reasonably be cured within the thirty (30) day 
period; or fails to continue diligently to cure such violation until finally cured. 

(c) The Beneficiaries' Action. The Beneficiaries may bring action at law or in equity 
in a court of competent jurisdiction to enforce the terms of this real property covenant, to enjoin 
the violation, ex parte as necessary and as allowed under the applicable civil rules, by temporary 
or permanent injunction, to recover any damages to which it may be entitled for violation of the 
tenns of this real property covenant or injury to any of the Conservation Values protected by this 
real property covenant, including da1nages for the loss of the Conservation Values; and to require 
the restoration of the Property to the condition that existed prior to any such injury. Without 
lin1iting Declarant's liability therefore, the Beneficiaries, in their sole and absolute discretion, 
may apply any damages recovered to the cost of undertaking any corrective action on the 
Property. All such actions for injunctive relief may be taken without the Beneficiaries being 
required to post bond or provide other security. 

(d) Immediate Action Required. If the Beneficiaries, in their sole and absolute 
discretion, detennine that circumstances require immediate action to prevent or mitigate 
significant damage to the Conservation Values of the Property, The Beneficiaries may pursue 
remedies under this Section 9 without prior notice to Declarant or without \Vaiting for the period 
provided for cure to expire. 

(e) Nature of Remedy. The rights under this Section 9 apply equally in the event of 
either actual or threatened violations of the terms of this real property covenant. Declarant 
agrees that the remedies at la\v for any violation of the terms of this real property covenant are 
Inadequate and Beneficiaries shall be entitled to the injunctive relief described in this Section 9 
both prohibitive and mandatory, in addition to such other relief to which Beneficiaries may be 
entitled, vvithout the necessity of proving either actual damages or the inadequacy of otherwise 
available legal remedies. The remedies described in this Section 9 shall be cumulative and shall 
be in addition to all remedies now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. 

(f) Costs of Enforcem_ent. Provided the Beneficiaries first provide Declarant with a 
Notice of Failure and Declarant fails to respond, all reasonable costs incurred by the 
Beneficiaries in enforcing the terms of this real property covenant against Declarant, including, 
without \imitation, costs and expe-nses of suit and reasonable attorney's fees and reasonable 
consultant's fees, and any costs of restoration necessitated by Declarant's violation of the terms 
of this real property covenant shall be borne by Declarant. The substantially prevailing party in 
a judicial enforcement action regarding this real property covenant shall be entitled to 
reimbursement of all reasonably incurred attorney's fees and litigation expenses. 

{g) The Beneficiaries' Discretion. Any forbearance by the Beneficiaries to exercise 

Page 6 of 14 

Item 8 - 7

46



rights under this real property covenant i11 the event of any violation of any terms of this real 
property covenant shall not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of such term or of any rights 
underthis real property covenant. No delay or omission by the Beneficiaries in the exercise of 
any right or remedy shall impair such right or remedy or,be construed as a waiver. 

(h) Acts Be_vond Declarant's Control. Nothing contained in this real property 
covenant shall be construed to entitle the Beneficiaries to bring any action against Declarant to 
abate, correct, or restore any condition on the Property or to recover damages for any injury to or 
change in the Property resulting fro1n causes beyond Declarant's control, including, without 
limitation, fire, flood, storm, and earth movement, nor shall Declarant be required to take steps to 
abate or mitigate injury to the Property resulting from such causes. 

10. Alternate Dispute Resolution 

If a dispute arises between the parties concerning the cqnsistency of any proposed use or activity 
with this real property covenant, the parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute through informal 
discussion. The parties may also agree to refer the dispute to mediation and shall select a single 
mediator to hear the matter. Each party shall bear its own costs, including attorney's fees, if 
mediation is pursued under this Section I 0. The parties shall share equally the fees and expenses 
of the mediator. 

11 . Notice and Approval 

(a) Notice. Whenever notice is required under this real property covenant, the party 
required to give notice ("Notifying Party") shall give reasonable written notice prior to the date 
the Notifying Party intends to undertake the use or activity in question. The notice shall describe 
the nature, scope, design, location, timetable, and any other material aspect of the proposed 
activity in sufficient detail to permit the other party to make an informed judgment as to its 
consistency with the purpose and tenns of this real property covenant. 

(b) Evaluation of Proposed Activities. The purpose of requiring the Notifying Party 
to notify the other party prior to undertaking certain per1nitted uses and activities is to afford the 
other party an opportunity to ensure that the use or activity in question is designed and carried 
out in a manner consistent with the purpose and terms of this real property covenant. 

12. Notice of Transfer of Property by Declarant and Successor and Assigns 

Anytime the Property itself, or any interest in it is transferred, or a legal claim is established by 
the Declarant to a third party, the Declarant, its successors and assigns, shall notify the 
Beneficiaries in writing at least 60 days in advance of such action and the document of 
conveyance, transfer or establishment shall expressly refer to this real property covenant. 
Declarant shall also include in the conveying document a notice in substantially the following 
fonn, as well as a complete copy of this Covenant: 

NOTICE: THIS PROPERTY IS SUBJECT TO A CONSERVATION 
COVENANT GRANTED BY THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE ON AND 

Page7of14 

--------

Item 8 - 8

47



RECORDED WITH THE SNOHOMISH COUNTY AUDITOR UNDER 
RECORDING NUMBER . USES AND ACTIVITIES 
ON THIS PROPERTY MUST COMPLY WITH THAT COVENANT, A 
COMPLETE COPY OF WHICH IS ATTACHED TO THIS DOCUMENT. 

Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Beneficiaries, Declarant shall provide Beneficiaries 
with a complete copy of the executed document \Vi thin thirty (30) days of the date of execution 
of such document. 

13. Terniination of Real property Covenant 

(a) Frustration oj'Purpose. This real property covenant 1nay only be terrilinated with 
the concurrence of the Beneficiaries in the event the purpose for this covenant can no longer be 
fulfilled due to circu1nstances beyond the Declarant's control but not to include a failure to 
enforce the terms of this restrictive covenant. In that event, concurrence with the termination of 

'this real property covenant must be received from Beneficiaries, 

(b) Econo1nic Value. The fact that the Property may become greatly more 
economically valuable if it were used in a manner that is either expressly prohibited by this real 
property covenant or inconsistent with the purpose of this real property covenant, or that 
neighboring properties may in the future be put entirely to uses that would not be permitted 
hereunder, has been considered by the Declarant in grantin·g this real property covenant. It is the 
intent of both Declarant and the Beneficiaries that any such change in the economic value of the 
Property from other use shall not be as·sumed to be circumstances justifying the termination or 
extinguishment of this real property covenant pursuant to this section. 

14. }vfod{fication 

This real property covenant 1nay be amended only with the concurrence of the Beneficiaries, 
provided that any such amendment shall be consistent with the purpose of the real property 
covenant and shall not affect its perpetual duration. All amendments shall be in writing, 
approved by the Beneficiaries and recorded in the real property records of Snohomish C-ounty, 
Washington. 

15. Inte1pretation 

This real property covenant shall be interpreted under the laws of Washington, resolving any 
ambiguities and questions of the validity of specific provisions so as to give maximu1n effect to 
its conservation purposes. A heading used at the beginning of any section or paragraph or exhibit 
of this Covenant may be used- to aid in the interpretation of that section or paragraph or exhibit 
but does not override the specific requirements in that section or paragraph. 

16. Perpetual Duration 

This real property covenant shall be a binding servitude running \Vith the land in perpetuity. 

Page 8of14 

Item 8 - 9

48



17. Notices 

Any notices required by this real property covenant shall be in writing and shall be personally 
delivered or sent by first class mail to the Declarant, at the following address, unless the 
Beneficiaries have been notified of a change of address. 

To Declarant: 
City of Marysville 
1049 State Ave 
Marysville. WA 98270 

18. Severability 

If any provision of this real property covenant is found to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, 
that finding shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of the remaining provisions. 

19. Entire Agree1nent 

This instrument sets forth the entire agree1nent of the parties with respect to the terms of this 
Agree1nent and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, understandings, or agreements 
relating to the terms of this Agreement, all ·of which merge herein. 

Page 9of14 

-------------~·-·--~-- -----

Item 8 - 10

49



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Declarant has set its hands on the date first written above. 

Declarant: 

City of Marysville 

By: _______________ _ 

Title: _______________ _ 

STA TE OF WASHINGTON ) 
) SS 

County of ) 

On this __ day of 2017, before me the undersigned, a Notary 
Public for the State of Washington, personally appeared ______________ _ 
who stated on oath that he is and authorized to execute the 
within instrument on behalf of said company and acknowledged said instrument as the free and 
voluntary act of the company for the uses and purposes mentioned therein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 
day and year hereinabove first written. 

Notary Public for the State of Washington 
Residing at, ___________ _ 
My Commission expires: ______ _ 

Page 10of14 

···--·-·-.-·---------··--------·-·----.. --------·-- ·--------------

Item 8 - 11

50



EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description 

The following parcels of real property located in Snohomish County, Washington: 

HETLAND MITl&ATION AREA HEST 2 

LE6AL DE5(;.RIPrlON 
TPN· 300534003001>00 
THAT PORTION Of THE NORTiil-4EST G'JARTER OF THE SCIJTHMEST GVARTER OF SECTION ~+. 
TOWNSHIP 30 NCRTH, RANSE 5 EAST, lf.l.M~ LT'INS SOUTI·IWESTERLY OF THE CENTERLINE OF 
JON.ES GREEI<:.. 

HETLAND MITl6ATION AREA HEST B 

LEEiAL DESC.RIPrlON 
TPN, 30053300401000 
THAT PORTION 50\IERNMENT LOT 4 IN THE 50.;'THEAST GUAF!.TER OF SECTION B,, TOriN5HIP 
30 NORTH, RANGE ~ EAS-r, Vj_M .. L llN5 EASTERL I OF THE FOLLO.HING DE~RIBED LINE; 

C.OMM!::NGINs AT Ttl!;: NORTl-lt:A..~T G(JRNJ::R or..:. ~AID 60'./El{NMf-NT l...OT 4: 
THt:Nct eoun-i 0 Dt6REt5 BB MINJTt'S 04 stc.OND5 Ht&T, ALON6 Ttll: tAS.T L!N8 OF SAID 
60VERNMENr LOT 4. A DISTANCE OF 1131.bl FEET TO A FCUND MONUMENr AT THE MEANDE~ 
C.ORNEt~ 
THL':NCE NORTH o DEGRl:XS ;,,::i MIN.l1ES 04 Sl:GOHOS EAST, A!-ONS SAID EAST 1-INE, A 
Dl~JTANGt:: or-~ :;l',30 ft~~T TO THt:.: TR.!Jf.: FOINT or~ Bt:elHNIN6 or- Ttll:- LIN!:: TO at: D~5c.Rlr1l:Oi 
TI-lfHGti NORTH 40 DF6RLE'5 BS MIN;rrEs 3B 5tC.ONl?S Ht5T A Pl5TAN.ct:' or 117.b;' t"ttT1 
THEHC.E NORTI·I 25 MINVTE5 14 MINUTES Bl SECONDS WESr A DISTAN~E OF 13.2b FEET; 
THENGE NOR1H 0 DEBREES 28 MINitlES 4B 5EGOND5 EAS1 A D!STANGE OF 3~.€11 FEET; 
THCNC~E NORTH 0 DC6'REE5 42 MINLJTl:.:0 oe si=c..oHDS t::Ar:ir A Dlf;ITAN::.C or 948'.12 FEE1i 
THl:;HGL~ NORTH I D!;SRl~r: :.?:3 MINlJTl:"S lb 5l;GOHD5 Wl3T A DISTAttc.e- or 1'}1},04 )'!;l:T1 
THCNc.t NORTI~ (j DE6REES so MIN~'11=:5 44 5EGOHD5 WE5T A DIST Anet or 2'f.eb l"ttT; 
TMENC.E NORTliv.IES'fERL y ALOMC> A 305.31 FOOT RADIUS rAN6ENflAL ~URV'E TO ·niE LEFT, 
PASSIN6 1HROIJ.SH A GB~TRAL AN6LE OF 41 DEGREES 52 MIN:.rres I& §EWNt.iS, AN .ARG
DIST/,N~I:: or 223.11 f-E:l~T ro A ~OIN:T IN THE Noi'!TH LINE or LINC OF SAID E...OVl:'RNHCNT LOT 
4 THAT Bl:AR<:i 1-iORTH f;b Dt'5Rl:t'"5 ;;>'! MINUTl'.5' 36 St:WNDS Hf~;.T A Dlf..TANC-12 OF ;>.oo.e.6 
FEET FROM THE NORTHEAST C.ORNER OF SAID 60\IERNMENT LOT 4 AND SAID LINE THERE 
TEF!MINAflNG. 

5AIP l-INt: Al-f)O !?!:INS- THE EA5Tf::RLI 1-INf;: Of A 1:,,00 fOOT HIDE kOAP ~t':Hf:NT. 

Page 11 ofl4 

Item 8 - 12

51



HETLAND MITl<SATION AREA Jo!EST I 

LE<7AL DESGRIPrlON 
TPN• Boo53S00400200 
lHAT PORTION Of" TliE NORTHEA5T GUA~TER OF THE S:A.ITHEA5T GIJARTEI< OF SEC-T!ON 03, 
TO}'iNSHIP 30 NORTH, RAN&E 5 EAST, rl.M~ LYINS SOUTHERLY OF .JONES GREEK, D:fSC.RIBED 
A$ lJNt: '..1:.' 131::!-0H AND l-TINe NORTtlE:MTI:Rl-i' QI- 'THI:: 1"0Ll..OH1Ns Dl::SCRll:>l::D l.JNl::1 

COMHENC..INS AT THE 50JTHEA5T C.ORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST GVARTER OF 111E SCUTHEAS-T 
G!UARTER; 
THENCE NORTH f.B DEGREES 2"1 HINU1E5 317 5EGONDS HEST, ALONG IHE SOJTH LINE OF SAID 
~1Jr::5DIVISION, A DISTANct:: 01" .200.86 rr:;r;r TO THI; TRU[:. l='OINT 01; l~t::61NN.IN6 at; TH[; J.INr; TO 
BE DESc.RllJt:P, SAID POINT BEIN5 A POINT IN A 303.3; f"OOT RAD!US OJR.VE C.ONC.Avt TO 
THE SOUTHY-EST, TI'IE C.ENTER OF HHIC:H BEARS 50JTH Be- DEGREES 16 MINUTES 58' 5Ec;OND5 
liESr FROM SAID POINT; 
1Ht::HGE NORlHERLY, ALONG SAID a;RVE, PAS51t~G lHRG"\JGH A C.ENTRl'L ,\NGl-E OF I OEbRf.E 
5b HINJll:-5 .34 S-f:C...ONDf~. AN AR.(;, Dl0TANcf OF ]0.':>3 r-r~r;T: 
lHl::NC.t: NORTI-l !53 Dl:::5RE'.1:5 41 HINUTES J5 SECONDS Hl:ST, TAN5t·NT TO SAID (..JJRVE, A 
Dl5TANC.E OF 21.BO FEET; 
'lHENGE NORiH 58 DEGREES 13 MINUtES 13 !?ECON05 HEST A IJISTANGE OF 322."IS FEEf1 
THEl-!GI: NORTH 60 DEGREE:S II MIHUTES 01 ~GONG'S HC~T A DIS-TANC..E CF 146,34 fl::ETJ 
Ti-IENGt: NORTI1 61 Pl26Rft:'~, Of} HINUffif, w SEC.OND5 HLST A DJ5TANC(;: or 241.10 1~r:r~TJ 
THENCE NOR.Tii 61 DE6REE5 42 MINUTES B"i SEC.OND5 lt'l~ST A DISTAl-lC.E OF 14.04 FEET; 
'TI·IENGE kESrERL "'( ALONG A 368.54 FOOT RADIUS rAN5ENTIAL CURVE TO iltE LEFr, PA551N6 
1HROUGI I A GEN1RAL ANSLE OF .2 !JE6REE5 56 MINJ1'E5 36 5EGONt:l5, AH ARG t:llS"l'ANCE OF 
lt.i.""1'1 t'ttT TO LINt '.JG' Dl::SCRIBl:D OCLOH. AND SAID LIN~ THl:Rt· TtF?MINATIN6o 

SAID LJNE ALSO BEINS THC EA.~T.ERLY LINC or A 15.00' HIDE RQ;\D EASt:MCNT. 

LINE 'JC' 

C..OMMl:NCIMG AT THC 50:iTHHE5T coRNt::i'!. OF THE NO\;!THt:A:':lT GJARTER OI" THC SOJTH!;Af1T 
OVARTl:~R Of 5AID SE'GTION f.lQ: 
THENGE NORTH 0 DE5REE5 411"11N.iTE5 ID SECONDS EAST, ALON6 THE 1--!EST LINE Of SAID 
9.JBDIVISION, A DISrANC:.E OF 2<!"/.01 FEET; 
lHEN&E NORTH b5 DE6RECS 54 H!NUTl:::S ::2i ~f:WNOS t::M>T /\ DISl"/\NGE Of 90.96 FEET; 
THt;NG-E NORTH 14 Pl::SREJ'.:5 ¥1 MIN.;~ o:i. eit:&CNDS f;A..'?T A Dl$TANCf.: or- 38-.0I r~r.r:r: 
THENGt: NORTH 25' Dt:GREIS5 ~ MIN;/rtrS 22 StGONDS FA5T A Dl5'TANGR or ;Y-1,5-4 FEGTJ 
TMENC.E NORTI·l 40 DE6REES 20 MINJTE5 315EGOND5 EAST A DISTANC-E OF 60.l!:i FEET; 
·1 HENC.E SOU11 I 81 LlE6REES 51 Mlt>f.}J'ES 34 5EWNU5 EAST A t>l51'.ANC:.E OF 193.68 FE:E1': 
THCHGE SOUTH 65 DEGP..CCS II HIHUTES 55 SEC.OHOS Et.ST A DISTAN.Gl: OI" 14.61 f-'"ECI TO 11-IE 
TRt,'E FOINT OF BE61NNIN:5 OF LINE '.X.' TO BE DESCRIBED; 
·n1ENGE NOR Di 44· DEGREES 4"1 MINJTE5 4b SECONDS EAST, ALONG rHE GENTER?LINE CF SAID 
,JONES C.REEK AND ITS SO~YIHWE5TERLY EX'IEN51aN, A D!5TANC..E OF 253,58 FEET; 
THENGf- NORTH ;?I Dt':SRf:!'::!:l- 51 MINLJTf:!_"::. !';t,. =JX;OND5 r:AS-T A, C...ONTINJIN$ Al.1JNG THf
C.t'NTE:r-<LINt: OF SAID C.Flt::l:k, A DISTANCE;; Of 1!12~0 rtITT; 
THENCE NORTH 42 DEGREES 40 MINJTES le> 5EC.OND5 EAST A DISTANCE OF 33.'l"T FEET, 
rHENC.E NOR'lll ·re, DE6REE5 !"I M!N'JTES 0'9 SECONDS EA5'1" A DISrANGE OF <f4.2b FEET; 
"!'HEN.CE SOUTH 8<1 OEGRE8; 46 HJNJ1E5 ~8 SEGON05 EA5l A Dl'S1'Ark::-I: Of 54..08 FEEl'; 
THl:JICf. 5CJl)TH 14 Df-6Rf:.F.S ~! MINIITT~S 4q Sl::COND5 t:ASr A DISTANCr~ Of 101,0b l'"t::t:T: 
THDNC.t SOIJTH 81 Dt:GRtE5 ,B"T HINLJTGS- 4'1 5t:C.VND5 t:A5T A Dl5TANC.f:: or 2;:l~.3".j PEtT; 
THENGE SOl!ll~ T~ DEGREES 17 MINUTES ;:ll 5EC.OND5 EAST A DISTANC-E OF 102."'13 FEET~ 
'JHENC.E ~r114<f DEGREES 1<1 MINJfE'S 4b 5EGOND5 EASI' A DtSrANC..E OF IOB.42 FEEi ro A 
f'OINl IN l'HC EA'Sl' LlNE OF SAID SL.BOIVISION THAT !~EARS NOR"IH 0 DEGREl::S 33 MIN.iTES 
04 ~jJ;C..GND5 r;A?J A Dl5TANc/; Oi" t.>54.64· r·t:f.T f'f{OM THr; 50.:irt1r:AST c,.QRNt~R- Of SAID 
5UBDIVl510N, AND SAID LINE" '.X.' TI JERE TERMINATING. 

NOTE": 1.,INF.: '.JC' !S THt: SO\JTHERLY LINt Of' fAR.e,t.L Cl A? $HOHN" ON" Tt-IAT R-ECORO Or' 
9.IRVEi PREPAFlED BY OSTER6MR.D-ROBINSON AND A550C.IATES FOR THE nJLAL!P TRIBES, 
RJ5::..0RDCO UNOER AUt.llTOR'S flLC N:.,MBCI< 20DI03lt!5004. 

Page 12ofl4 

Item 8 - 13

52



JAIETLAND MITIGATION AREA EAST 

LE6AL DESGRIPTIQN 
TPN: 00Cll8'5000Cl'GJOOO 
THAT PORTION 01~ TRAC:.T "IC\4, HARBOR Vll::H VILLAGE, AGC.Ol<DING TO THI:: PLAT Rl::GORDt:O UNDER 
A'JVITOR'S FILE NJMBER 2001020b5008, REVORDS Of SNOHOMISH C.OJN1Y, HA5HINSTON, DESCRIBEV 
AS FOLL.OHS· 

BEGINNIN0 AT THE NORTl-H,.-IEST CORNER Of SAil:- TRl\.C..T "1'14: 
THENCE': SD!s'TH 20 DE6RE1:5 12 MIHUTE.S 41 SECONDS v.l:Sr, AlON5 THI:: WEST!":~ y LINE' o~' SAIP TRACT 
<l<.!4, A [Jl5TAl'lC.E OF 141.341 
THENCE soun~ 41 DE6Rtx:5 20 Mlli\JTC:S 21 StGONDS ~ST A DST AN.GE OF 123."!Cl FEET; 
THENCE SOlifH 32 DEGREES 5C\ HINLi1ES 5.B SEGONOS HEST A DIS'!ANG.E OF 12b,3b FEE'I; 
nt:NcE 501.ITI-I A Dl5TANCE OF 00.65 FEET; 
THL:NCA: NORTH 51 Ot:6RIXS 44- MINlflES 55 SEC.ONUS l:AS1 A DISTANCE 01~ 22.25 FEET: 
THFNC.f NORTH 24 IJEGREE5 35 MINUTF.S 15 SEGONIJS EAST/, IJISTANCE Of 15.45 fEET1 
THEN.GE NORTH B D~GREE:, 25 Hli-IUTl::S ~b 5EC.OND5 HEST A DISTANC-l:: CF 22.00 l'Ll::T; 
rHENCE NORTH 6"1 DEGREL-5 5·7 MINUTES 50 SEC.ONDS EAST /\ DIS rANc~E OF 5.50 FEET1 
THENCE SOllTH 85 DE5REE5 :30 MINl;lf~S 15 5EC.oND5 E·AST A DISTANCE OF 12.8!:> f'EET1 
'I HENGE NORTH 50 DEGREES 2B MINJTES 40 SEGCNVS EAST A DIST ANGE OF [B.::S5 FEE::! r 
Tflf::NC.I:' NOF?TH I!;; Df"ERCl:'.S 3"! MIN:.!TI::S 50 5F-C-Oi'IDS Nr.:$-T A Dl5TANcF- Of B!J!> f'f.f:T; 
THENCE NORTH 6 DE0REES 10 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST A DIST ANGE OF 18',IO !"EETi 
THENC.E NOP.TH 11 DFSf<FES 44 MINUTES 25 'OF.CONDS EAST A !::>!STANCE OF 15.'15 FEET1 
THENGIO' NORTH B5 Dt::6RE:ES IB MINUTES 20 $1::C.ONDS E:AS-T A DISTANCE OF 26.30 r~t:l:.T; 
THENCE NORTH 14 Df.SREES 10 MINIJrES 00 SECONDS EAST A DISfANCE OF 24.00 FE'ETi 
THl:::'.Nce Nol<TH 4? DE6REE'.S 54 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCI':: OI'' 23.b!J i"EOIO'.T, 
THENCE NORTH 34 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 28.8>0 FEEi"; 
Tlif.'NGE NOF?:Tlt 28 Df-&f'f.f-S 51 MINtJTE5 55 5EGOND5 t;AST A D]5TANGF,; Of 18,35 FF-ET; 
1HENCE NORTH 51 DEGREES BO HINlJTES 50 SEGONDS EAST A OIS1'ANGL: or- 23.60 FEE1c: 
TllENCF NOP.TH B1 DEGREES .?I HllVTES 40 -:?f:CONDS EAST A IJISTANCE OF 4!i.IO FF::ETi 
THENGE NORTH 44 DEGREES 4"1 KINUlES 00 SEWNDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 23.00 l''l:ET; 
THENCE NOR-TH f/7 DEGREES 11 HINVfFS 40 SECONDS EAST/\ DISTANC,E OF 50.15 FEET; 
THE.Net:: NORTH "1B DE<SRE:ES 15 MINU11::5 35 S[GOND5 EAST A DISTANCE: or 15.65 FEE:T; 
THENCE NORTH ·13 DEGREES -42 MINUTES 50 SECONDS EASr A DISfANC.E OF fl0.:55 FEET1 
Tf-lf::NC:.t: NORTH 1"1 Dt:.6REF::S lo HINIJTE5 "10 SECOND$ !:'.AST A DISTANGE Of' 26.15 FP..P-r, 
THENC..E NORTH f>1 DEGREE& 13 MIN.IJ1'ES 50 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 11.20 FEET: 
Tllf.NGE NORTH:;. Df.SREF.5 '11 MINUTES 2!.> SECONDS EAsr A Dl5TANGE or £>.40 FF.ET; 
TH~NC..E NORTH 1& DL'-6Rt;ES II MINIJTf5 BO SEWNDS EAST A DIST ANGE 01~ I0.20 l~EET; 
TtlENGF 50UTH 56 DEGREES 50 MINl,..'TES 10 :3EC.0Nl?5 EAST A l'.:>ISTANCE OF f!J.50 FEET; 
THCNCE SOUTH DI DESREt::5 34 MINUTES bO SEC.OMD5 EAST A Dl5TANC.E. OP 31.lb P"EET; 
THENCE NOR.TH 2& DEGREES 51 MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST/\ DISTANCE OF 1100 FEET; 
THENC.E NoRTH 14 DEGREES '16 MINUTES '10 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF l•tao FEET; 
"JHEN(...E NORTH 42 DE6REE5 3'1 MINUTES 35 SEWNVS E'AST A DIS"lANVE OF l'l.80 FEET: 
THENCF- NORTll <\ DF:GREE5 BE> HINtJTES "1S SECOMDS EAST A DISTANCF. OF 11.00 ff.ET: 
1HENC.l1NORTH1}2 DE6REE5 30 MINUTES BO 5t:G.ONDS EAST A Dl51ANC.E: OF" t?<IJO l~t.:l?:T; 
THENCE NORTH '10 PEeREES 32 HINJTES 50 SECONDS EAST A DJ<.:>TANC.E OF 52.40 FFET; 
TH!:::NCE 50LITH 18 Df.::.6RE.t:S 43 MINJTl:::.5 35 5E:CONDS EAST A Dl5TANGt: or· 11.B'O f'l:l::.T; 
rHENCE NORTH ·10 DEGREES 10 MINJTES 00 SECONDS EA'Sr A DISTANCE Of 11.40 FEE'f; 
THENCE NORTH 0 DE5RF.1=:5 00 Mll>l\JTES -18 5EGOND5 v.lEST A Dl5TANCl::: OP 13.!$0 f'E.E.T TO A POINT IN 
THE NORTH LINE OF TRAC-T <4"14, SAID HARBOR VI~ VILLAGiE, SAID F'OINT BEAR5 5Qlllrl eoeo DE6REES 
04 MINLJTES -1'1 sr.:coHDS l'::A5T A DISTANC:.F.. OF B4"1.'l0 f't'Ol':T !"ROM Tiii': NORlllV>lf::ST C.OF.Nf-R Of SAID 
lRAC.T "'1"!4; 
THENCE NORTH 88' DE6RFFS 04 MINUTES '1'1 5-FCONDS v-!E5T, ALON6 SAil) NORTH LINF, A IJIST"ANCf OF 
344.<'IO f~ELT TO SAID NoRTH~ST GORNER. 

Page 13 of 14 

Item 8 - 14

53



EXHIBIT B 

Property Map 

Page 14ofl4 

Item 8 - 15

54



• 
j I 

l 
1 • l 

! 
! l 

I 

Item 8 - 16

55



' ·I ,, 
'i 

I 
l 

] ~ II . " - 'I 
~ '· 'l 

~I 

Item 8 - 17

56



Index #9
 

57



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AG~:NDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 10/9/2017 
~ 

AGENDA ITEM: 

USDA-APHIS-Wildlife Services Agreement, Work Plan/Financial Plan 

PREPARED BY: DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 

Matthew Eyer, Surface Water Administrator \}PJ DEPARTMENT: 

Public Works 

ATTACHMENTS: I 
Three copies of the USDA-APHIS Wildlife Services Work Plan/Financial Plan 
2013 Agreement - Agreement No: I 4-73-53-6173-RA 
BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

40145040.541000 $16.933.92 

SUMMARY: 

The USDA-APHIS Wildlife Services Cooperative Services Agreement (Agreement No: 14-73-
53-6173-RA) was signed and approved by the City in 2013. The Agreement is effective through 
Septem ber 30111 201 8. This reque.st is for the annual renewal of the Work Plan/Financial Plan 
between the USDA-APHIS and the City for assistance in providing wildlife management services 
for conflicts caused by beavers, coyotes and other nuisance wildlife. This assistance is in the form 
of educational infonnation or direct control. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to sign and execute the USDA-APHIS 
Wildlife Services, Work Plan/Financial Plan for the upcoming year. 

Item 9 - 1

58



WORK PLAN/FINANCIAL PLAN 

Cooperator: C'.ity of I\ilar)'sville 

Contact: tviatt E-yer, 360-363-8144 n1eyer@,i11ar)'Sville\va.go\' 
Jin1 Balle\V, 360-363-8402 jballe\\'@1narys\'illewa.ge}\' 
Karen I,atirner, l)epart1nent r..1anager 360-363-8277 
Officer Dave Vasconi, I\1arys·villc Pl) 425-754-8843 

Cooperative Service Agreement No.: 18-73-53-6173-RA 

WBS Code: AP.RA.RX53.73.0l78 

FMMI Shorthand Code: 8XWSWR5353REIMBURRX53730178 

Location: City of Marysville 

Date: October 16, 2017 tbrough September 30, 2018 

In accordm1ce witl1 t11e Cooperative Service Agreement (14-73-53-6173-RA, 2013) bet\vee111he City 
of Marysville m1d the lJnited States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Animal and Plant Healtl1 
Inspection Service (APTilS), Wildlife Services (WS), this Vlork Plan sets forth tl1e objectives, 
activities, and budget of the \.Vildlife control activities for t11e period of October 16, 2017 thro11gh 
Septen1ber 30, 2018. 

Program Objective/Goals 

APIJIS-WS objective is to provide assistance to the City of Marysville, \Vhen they experience wildlife 
conflicts caused by bea\'ers, coyotes and other nuisance \l.1ildlife. "fhis assistance may be in the fo1m of 
educatio11al information or direct control. If direct control is necessary, tl1e 1nost e±Iective and safe 
control tools and teclu1iques will be utilized. 

Plan of Action 

1. Tl1e objectives of this plan will be accomplished in the following-nmnner: 

2. APHIS-WS \Vill assign a Wildlife Specialist on an i11tem1ittent basis up to 320 hours and \Vill 
also provide tl1e vehicle, field supplies, and equipn1ent for tl1e project. 

3. APHIS-WS will conduct beaver control in areas of flooding, a11d monitor beaver activity in 
areas where beaver populations are reduced to ptevent re-infestation. 

4. APHIS-\\'S \vill conduct control of coyotes \Vhen coyotes are causi11g a hu1nan 11ealth a11d 
safety issue. 

5. Dai11age co11trol will be accomplished by the following 1netl1ods: 
a. Technical assistance to i1nprove and expand non-lethal methods (i.e. exclusio11, 

eli1ninate feeding, etc.) 
b. 'J"rappit1g 
c. Shooting 

Item 9 - 2

59



6. Brook Zscl1eile, t11e API-IIS-WS District Supervisor (360) 337-2778 i11 Po1Ilsbo \Vill supervise 
tl1is project. T11is project will be 111onitored by b.1ike I~innell, t11e State Director in ()Jyn1pia, 
(360) 753-9884. 

7. ;\PHIS-V/S will cooperate \Vith the \Vashington Departrnent of Fish at1d Wildlife, t11e lT.S. Fish 
m1d V./ildlife Service, county and local city gover11111ents, and other e11tities to ensure co11111liance 
with Federal, State, and local laws and regulatio11s. 

8. City of Marysville will be billed quarterly by APHIS-WS only for expenses shown in the 
Financial Plan and will not exceed tl1e Agree1nent Total. l)ersonnel (~'.on1pensation is defined as 
salary for all ]1ours \\"Orked, benefits, differentials, 11azardous duty allowa11ces, annuaJ leave, 
sick leave and awards. Tbe fi11ancial point of contact for this Work Plrull'Financial Plan is 
Roberta Busl1n1an, Adtninistrative Officer, (360) 753-9884. 

FINANCIAL PLAN 
For tbe disperse1nent of funds fron1 

City ofMru·ys·villc 
to 

USDA APIIIS Wildlife Services 
for 

Beaver Manage111ent 
From 10/01/2017 to 09/30/2018 

Cost Element 

Personnel Compensatio11 $ 
Vehicles $ . 
Supplies and Materials $ 
Subtotal (Direct Cl1arges) $ 

~-

Pooled Job Costs 11.00% $ 

Indirect Costs 16.15% $ 

Agreement Total $ 

Full Cost 

11,613.45 

1,300.00 

250.00 

13,163.45 

1,447.98 

2,125.90 

16,737.32 

'rhc distributio11 of the budget from this Financial Plan may vary as 
necessary to accomplish the purpose of this agrcen1ent, but may not 
exceed: $16,737.32 

Item 9 - 3

60



:V1aihng J\dd:ess: 
en y Of MAR YSVJLLE 
1049 STATE A VE. 
MAK'fSVJLLE, WA 98270 

----·-···--·------------~------·- ·····--~~-~-

lv1ayor 

UNl11oD STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRiCULTURE 
ANJMAL AND PLANT HEAL'f1l JNSPECTION SERVJCE 
\VILDLJFE SERVICES 

Director, \Vcste_m Region 

BiUU1g t\ddress: 
San1c 

Date 

Date 

~·-·-----

Date 

Item 9 - 4

61



Agreement No: l4-73-53-6 l 73-RA 
\VHS Element: 1\ l 1.RA.RX53.73.0l7S 

Shorthand Code: 4X\VSWR5353 REJ.:vtnl:J<RX5J730 l 78 

COOPERATIVE SERVICE AGREE~'ffNT 
REil\IBURSABLE 

hetween 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE (COOPE.RATOH.) 

and 
lJNITED ~TATES DEPARTMENT OF AGIUCULTURE 

ANIMAL ANO PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVl.C.E 
\VILDLJFE SF.R"1CES (WS) 

ARTICLE I - PURPOSE 

Th e purpose of this A1;?recment is to conctucc wildlife damage management \ WDM) activities to control beavers 
residing in and aruund the ci ty (lf l'vlarysviUe in order to rc:tluce human health and safety threats and property 
damage due to flood ing. 

ARTICLE 2 - AUTHORITY 

APHJS WS has statutory autl10rity uuder the Act of March 2, l 9.~ I (46 Stat. 1468; 7 U.~.C.426-426b) as 
amt:n<led, and the Act of Dm:cmb~r 22, l 987 (I 01 Stat. 1329-33 l, 7 U.S.C. 426c), forthe Secretary of 
Agrict:lture to cooperate with States, individuals, public and private ag:enci~s. orgunizations, and institutions in 
the control of wild mainmab and birds that are reservoirs for zoonntic diseases, or arc injurious or a nuisance to, 
nmong other things, agriculture, horticulture, forestry, animal husbandry, wildlife, and publk health l'lnd safety. 

ARTICLE 3 - MUTUAL RJ<:SPONSlBILITIES 

The Cooperator and WS agree: 

u. Tu 1.:onfor a nd p l<rn a 'vYDivf prugn:uu thal a ddr<.:S:se:s the nce<l for u umag ing <.:\111t1ic ts ..:au :se d by beavers in 

Marysvill e=, W /\. Bused on this consultation, WS will formulate annually. in writing, the program work 
plan and associated budget and present them to the Cooperator for approva l. 

b. Each year The Coopera tor and APHIS-WS must agre~ tu an<l sign the 11uuua! Work and Financia l Plans, 
which upon execution are incorporated into thi~ Agreement by reforence. 

c. When eitht:r or Che Coopt:rating parties address tl1e media or incorporate i.nformation into reports and/or 
publication:;, both Cooperating parties must agre1;, in writing, to have their identities disclosed when 
receiving dui.; cr~dit rdated tt) lhc activities covered by this agreement. 

d. That APH IS-WS has advi:>ed the Coopc=rntor that other private sector :;ervice provi<l~rn may be availabk 
to provide wildlife numngemrnt services und notwithstanding these oth1::r options, Cooperator requests 
that APHrS-WS provide wildlife management services as stated under the terms of this Agreement. 

Item 9 - 5

62



"fhe Cooperator agrees: 

Agrc~nt'lll No: :4°73-53~:5173-ltA 
WBS Elerr:.cnt: APJtA ltX53.73.CJ78 

Shorthnn<l ('.ode: 4X-\VSWR5353RElMBURR."\53730l73 

ARTICLE 4 ~ COOPERATOI< ll.ESPONSIBfLrflES 

a. Tc desigrui-;e Kari Cteunau:1, Pn::;gr:un Englr:cer1 City of "?viarysville, SO Co!rtinbi::l Aveh'.lC, WA, 9~270, 
360~363,-S277, as the authorized representative who shall bere;,yonsibJe thr coHaborative-iy 
ad!ninistering the activities conducted io th ls Agreement; 

b, 'fC reimb:irse.APH1S-YVS fOr ccsl!I, not to exceed tQe i'.nnuaHy (fpproved :cmount.sp-ecilied h: the Work 
and Financial Plrn. If cos\$ nre projected to.exceed H:_e arno\:rlt reflecieci i:J the-J4'inancial P:Rn, the Woi'k 
and Financial Pian shall -~e fo:.rrially revised a1!d signed by both_ parties before services rcsuld:ig in 
.addition<il costs are perfarme·d. Tht: Cooperator agrees to pay all costs of service submitted via an 
invoice ;.vi.thin 30 days-Of the date -0fthe submitted irlvc10j or invoices us sub-mittcd by APHIB··WS, Late 
;,ia)imcnts ate s'Jl:;ject to interest, pena1ries,_and aCrnfr1i.strative chctrges and c_o,5ts_ as set tbrd1 under the 
Debt Collection Iinprcvement Ac: cf 1996. !fthe Coo_peralo:: is delinquent in pilying t\e full a:uo_unt of 
~he due scrv-ice-cosi.s sub1n!tted by i-\PflIS-WS, and/or is delinquent in payfu.g the dtic late payments, 
a11d!or is delinquent in paying the interest, penn1tles, and/or sdmmlstrativti costs on any delinquent due 
servi;;e costs, APHIS~\VS will i:n:u:ediateiy cease to provide the respp,.ctive ~rvice associated ?.'ith the 
-submitted se~·vice costs. API11S~\VS will i:o'. reinst<:te or provide ~he raspectiye.service until alf Cw 
service costs, anc'Jor due :at~ payments, and/or dt1e inte1·est, per.atty, and/or adn1i:1ist.~ativc cOsts are frst 
paid in full. 

c. To provide a Tax ldentifieation N11:1iber or Social Seeu:rity Nu1nber in cot:1p:iance with the Debt 
CoHc;;tiori Imp:cven:cn: Act of 1996. 

d, As a t'-Ondition of this Agreen1ent, The Coope.i:ator ensures and certJf1I'£ that it is not currently deb<l!Icd or 
.suspended and is free of delm9Ueni Federal debt 

ARTICLES- WS I<ESPONSIBIUTIES 

WS agrees: 

.l]. l'o designete WS-Sta:e Director, Roger V/::icCn:fl: 720 O'Leary Street ~\V, Olyn.1pia, WA 985()2, 
(36\J} 753~9884 as tbe authorized reprCse::tativc w.no ::fr:all ?c ret.}lorisible fo:- :>::i;iab<'rntivcly 
adt11.inistering t.l.e ai;:tivitie$ .-;.onducled in this Aweerr-J_Cllf; 

'.;, 'The pe:fOrmance oi' ;vildlifc Camagc_manuger:ienr a;;.tions by WS ur.dcr this agreeme::lt is contffigen_~ 
LP<1n a detert1inatio:i b)' \VS tl1at-s\"1ch ttctlof'.s _are in con:prJau):e witll the National J3nyi:ronmentaI 
Po:icy Ac<:., Er.dangered Species. Act, and my 0L1er applicable e:1v-iroruteotal Statutes. WS \Viti -:i~t 
r.1ak.c a final decistop. to conduct retjuestc.d wildlife da1noge munngeraent actions. until ;t has 1uade tl1c-
determination of such coinpliance; - -

c, 'fo provide que!ifi(!d ::iersonnel ant~ otl1e; i:esource~ ::.e_;:css~ry lo itnp;err.eni: the approved WD!Yf 
activities deli:i.ea~ed i; the Work and f'i::ar.c'.a! P!a.• r<:feren..-:e<l irt 3.3 of this Agree1uent. 

d. ·ro bill the Cooperator for costs incu_rrcd in perforn1ing \.VDl\-1 activities as authorized in the approved 
i.tnnuui Work du<l 'Pir.;,i:ucial Plau ::.:> rn:1.y bo a."t\e..'ldeet 

... ··········----------- ------- -----

Item 9 - 6

63



1\grecn1el'.ll No: 14~73~5J,-{)L7J-H.A 
WBS Elcrneiit: Al\RA.R,XS3. 73.0-178 

Shor"JlanQ Code; 4XWSWR535JREI11JJlJRR..X53?30l 7'8 

e. 'f o notify the Cooperator if CDst_s al'e projected to exceed the ainounts !i'>tl:m:ated and ngrced upon ir. the 
Fina11cial Plan. WS 1vill cease providing goods or servii;es until a revision to \ht> Work and_ Financial 
Plc-.n, ·.as appropriate, have been agreed to and signed by. both pa;:ties to this 1\brreement 

f. J\_uth::irized rinditL'lg ri::pi:ese:i.tatives of t!'.;e Cooperator iliaE be accorded rensonsblc oppor:unity to 
i:rn~p_c:cl :lie ace ow.its 01td records of \V-S p;:cta-ining to su;:!h c1ab:.s for rcimbursc-:_ner.t to U)e exteni 
pe::roitted by Federa: laws aitd r~gult.tic.:.s. 

ARTICLE 6 - WS CONDIT.IONS 

Fer costs borne by WS, 'this agreement is contingent upon the passage cf the Agritfu[ture, I<ural Devclop1ncnt, 
and Related Agencies Approprieti~)ll Act for the current fiscal year from whicb expendin1res. may be legally met 
and shall not obligate AP HIS upo11. failnre of Congress- to so appropriate. ·1nis Agreement also rnay be reduced er 
tert;:;in;.ite<l if Congress prcviPes APtiIS funds only for a fin~te period U.1.de: a Con;inuhig Resul::.tior:. 

ARTICLE 7 - ASSURANCES 

Notllihg in this agrc\fillcut i:haU prevent any other-Stale, agency, Of!;,T<lriizaticn or individu11.l from entering-i;:i_to 
se_p<irate agre101nents with \V-S the C,o-opet('\.tor for the purpose of 1nunaging·\vildlife damage, 

ARTICLE 8-CONGRESSIONAJ, RESTRICTIONS 

Pursuant :o-Sectior. 22, Tit:e 4·i, lfn1ted States Code, na membet of or·deb~~ate to Cbng·ress shall be ad:nit:ed to 
any s'.lfU-c or part off:is 1greetnent or (C an.1·-·~e:ii to arise the:efrorr:. 

ARTICLE 9- APPLICABLE REGULATIONS 

AJJ \VDM cctivifies will be contlucted in aCcordance with applicable-Federal, State, and k1cal la'\\'S ilnd 
regulatinns. 

'Ibis agreement i1' :iot p. p:ocureinen! conirnct (:31 U.S,C. 6303), ~ol' is it ccnsiacred a g:ra1;t {31 U,S.C. 6304), In 
this agreemer.t,. APtiIS pr9vides. gc•:.:ids or 2crvlces on a cost recovery b24is to .nonf(;~;:ral recipients. 

ARTICLE IO - LIABILITY 

APIIIS assumes no liability for-uny aotions or activities conducted under lil.is agre:erncnt except to the extent the 
recourse or re1:nedlei; arc provided by Congress under-the Federal Tort Cla.Un;; A"t (28 USC 1346(b), 440l(b), 
2671-2680). 

Page 3 cf 4 

Item 9 - 7

64



Agr~t>'lTle::t N~)· 14-73~5 3-6 ~ 7 3~lV\ 
\.\·'BS E!crn.::1t: /i.P.RA .. RX.53.73.'Cl 7X 

Sflo:tl1::.'"'.d Code· 4;z\\"S\\'R535JllEJJ1BlJ1Zf.'.X53~'3017E 

l'lds /\g;reen1eot ~hail b.;::con1e cffuctire U11l)l1 the dut<:- of fin:1 t signatnre ·l.\nd sh al! ;;ontint;e tl~rough Sej}teniber.30, 
2n 18. l'his agreC1nc11t n1ay be a1nendcd at any lin11.: by 1nutuai -agre~1nent oftht: pa1iics in writi11g, 11 n1ay he 
tei·n1inoted by t:ither pflrly upoti 60 df!ys \t·ritten nurk:e to the uther party. Furlh,;r, in the ev~ut the Cooperator 
docs riot for nny :reason reiinbutse C'.Xp('!rHJX funds. \\1S i:' re!i<:"veci of tlle obi if!;fltion to continue any 011erc1 thlns 
under this ag:r-::.ei:Jcnt. 

ACTHORJZATION: 

crrv tJF lvIAR"'r'f;V1Ll.E 
MARYSVILLE. WA 
1'ax Ider1.tifl::ariru; NHmbcr: 91-600145<1 

UNlTED ST1-\TES DEPAR'f'tv1ENT OF t\GRJCUI~TURE 
ANTh•fAL r\l'J!) l'l,AN1' ttEAL'fl:l tNSl'ECTI<)N SERVlC'E 
\\'lLI)L!FE Sf!R.\'XC'ES 
'fax identifii.:aiion Niuriber: 4 l'-0696271 

Of1'~~-
Date 

~m __ _ 

Date 

Item 9 - 8

65



WORK PLANIFINANCIAL PLAN 

Cooperator:_ City oftv1_arysville 

contact: Jir:1 Ballew, 360-303-84C2 
Kari Chennault, Pr0grum Engineer 360-363-8277 

Officer !)ave v·asconi, Mary::iv11le PD 42-5-754-·8843 

CoojJertttive Service ".\green1ent No.: i"1-73-53-6173-R,.\. 

WBS Element: AP.RA.RX53.73.0!78 

!'MMI Sltorthand Code: 4XWSWR5353RE!MBURRX53730178 

Location:- cit)' of"Yiat)'SYille 

Date: October 1, 2013 through September 30, 2014 

[n accordance \Vltl1 L11e Coopera:lve Service A·gree1T!.ent between 'the city of:tvfarysville an<.1 tt~c 
United States Depart:ncc.t of Agricul!ure (USDA). Animal and ?1ant Health Inspection Service 
(APHIS)1 Wildlife-services (W&)1 tlns Work Pian sets forlh thc-:-1bjec!ives, activities, and budg..:t 
of the wi1dHfe control uctivities for the period -of October J, 20! 3 through September 30, 2014. 

Prog,rant ObjectiveJGoals 

APl:fIS~ WS objective is to provide assisln11ceto tlte City of Marysville, \vhet1 they cxperience
i,vildli fe conflicts caused by be&Vet'S1 co_yotes and otl1er nuhiance wildlife. This 1:1ssist~nce 1nay be 
in tl1e fbrm of educr..Iion;ii information or direct corJroL If direct control is 11.ecessary, the 1nost 
effective nr.d safe c()ntrol tools and techniques wiU-be utilized. 

Plan of Action 

The objectives of the wlldlifC con.'Tol acti·vities will be accomplished in the fol!D\\'i:ig nianner: 

1. WS will assign a Wildlife Specialists 011 iin .:intermittent hnsis up to 280 hours and will 
also provide the vr-J1icle1 field supplies, and equip111ent for tl1e project. 

2. WS will conduct aggressive control ir'~ ateas of flooding \Vi~h continued maintenance and 
monitoring in areas \Vhere beaver populations are reduced to prevent re~infest1ttion. 

3. WS will cond1oct aggressive co11trol i;:tf coyot('S Wl1en coyotes are causing a human health 
and safety issu_e. 

4. Dumuge control wilLl;;e accotnplisl1ed b-y the followfng methods: 

• 1'echnictil assistance to improve und expand non-lethal methods (i.e. 
exclusion. eliminate feeding, etc.) 

• Trappir~g 

o Shooting 

Item 9 - 9

66



5. l\l[att (:]eland i11 the \VS District Office (360) 337-2778 in l)oulsbo \Vil] supervise this 
project. This project \Vi11be111onitored by Roger \.\'oodruff, State Director, Olyn1pia, 
(360) 753-9884. 

6. \\rs \.\'ill cooperate \vith the vv·asl1ington Departn1ent of Fish and \Vilcllife, the U.S. Fish 
and \Vildlife Service, county a11d local city goven1ments, and other entities to ensure 
co1nplia11ce \vith Federal, State, ai1d local !r11Ns and regulatio11s. 

7. City of Mar)'ville will be billed quaiterly by WS only for the services rendered. not to 
exceed $15,000. Salf1ries and benefits are detined as con1pensation for all hours V.'orked, 
benefits, differentials. hazardous duty allo\vances, annual leave, sick leave and a\.vards. 
Yo11 will only be billed for expenses incurred. crhe fina11cifll point of contact for tltis 
\rVorlc Plan/Financial Plan is Roberta Busl1111an, Ad111inistrative Officer, (360) 753-9884. 

BUDGE'f 

IJistt::d belo\.V are the estin1atecl costs of the wildlife control progran1 outlined above: 

Salary & Benet1ts 
Vehicle Fuel 
Supplies 
S1.1btotal 
Overhead 
Pooled Equip Cost 

TOTAL 

Mayor,,,. '---~-"" ,, 
( 

$ l 0,850 
450 
497 

11,797 
1,905 
I 298 

~~15~Q.O~Q 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE 
WJLDLIFE SERVICES 

Director, \Vestern IZegion 

C2'.l:..Litt6 .. ?0!3 
Date 

J.1,q \\'.\ 
Datb° · 

Item 9 - 10

67



DOCUMENT TRACiaNG PAGE 
DO NOT REMOVE FROM THIS DOCUMENT 

D.A TE: 09/0412013 

COOPERATOR: Jim Ballew 
City of-Mazysville 
6915 Annar Road 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Fot correct and timely processing of this document, please ensure the following: 

1. Sign on-the COOPERA.TOR'S SIGNATURE line of the Work Plan/Financial Plan 
andior Agreement and return the all original documents tb our office at the following 
address: - · 

USDA-Al'IIIS-WILDLIFE SERVICES 
720 O'Leary Street NW 

Olympia, WA 98502 
Phone: 3601753-9884 FAX 3601753-9466 

2. If you would like to make a copy for your records pleas_e do so. 

3. We will mail an original back to you after it has been signed by our Regici_nal Director. 

4. Plea:Se callRoberta Bushman if you have any questions. 

Additional comments by WS office: 

Additional comments or instruC.tions by Cooperator: 

Wildlife 
Services 

Protecting People I Protecting Agriculture Protecting Wildlife 

Item 9 - 11

68



:\gre61Uent:No; 14.73-53~6173-RA. 
WBS Elcrnento AP RA.RXn 73.0178 

Shorthand Code: 4XW8WR5353REL.\>tBURRX53730l73 

COOPERAl'IVESERVICE AGRli:EME~'T 
REIMBURSABLE 

between 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE (COOPERATOR) 

-and 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTIIRE 

ANIMAL AND PLANT HEAL TH INSl'ECTION SERVICE 
WILDLIFE SERVICES (WS) 

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE 

The purpose ofthls ~"-g:eement is to-conduct wildlife damage n:anage.inent {WDM} _activities to contr(llbeavers 
resklin.g in ac.d t.round the city of 1fl1Jj'sviUc in order to reduce htirr.an bea!tb and safety threat; er,d proptny 
damage due m Cood:ng. 

APHlS \\1S has statutory aufu-0rity u.'ldcr the Mt of March 2, 1931 ( % Stat, r 463; 1 U.S.C.420-426b) as 
arr,ende.d, aurl the • .\ct of December 22, 1987 ( l-Ul Stnt, 1329~33 ! , 7 U.S.C. 426c)i fi>r the-Secrel.ary of 
Ai;ricultute to cooperate \vith States.,_ individuals, public and private agencies, organizations, and institutions in 
the control of Wild marru:nals and bitch> that .are reservoirs for- zoonotic diseases, or are injurious- or a nuisanc<rto, 
among other things, agriculbre, horticulture. fmest;y, anL-ncl h.isbaru.U:y, wHd!ife, and _public, hea!lb and safety, 

ARTICLE 3 - M!JT!JAL RESPONS!Bll,IT!ES 

The Cooperator ar,d WS agree: 

a. To confer aud plan -a \VDM pr-0gram, that addresses tJ1e need for managing wnfllcts caused by beavers in 
Mnry~villc_, WA. Based on this consultation, WS will formuJate annually, in writing, the progran1 work 
p!Uil and a.ssociated bLidgct and preser1t. them to the Cooperator for-approval. 

b. Each year 1·he Cooperator andAPHlS-\\'S ITTJ.st agree to and sign lhe annual Work a.'td.F~cial Plans; 
which Upen execution are incorporated iuto this Agree:nent by ref ere-nee. 

c. When either of the Cooperating paroes-address the media er incorporate infonnation into reports and/or 
pub!ic;.rtions, both Cooperating par'.ies ID1.lst agree, in writing, to have -their identities. disclosed when 
receiving .due credit related to tht: ac1l..-ities oo~red _~)y-thh~ agreemet:t. 

d. Tbat A!!HIS~\VS has advised the Coopei:ator that other ?rivate tieGtor service providers may be available: 
to provide wildlife maruJ.gement services and notwithstanding these other options, Cooperator request$ 
that APlIIS~\VS provide wildlife.management i;ervices as stated un.der !he terms Of this Agreement, 

Item 9 - 12

69



The Cooperator agrees: 

Agreen1ent No: 14-7.3-53-6173-RA 
WBS Element AP.RA,RX53.73.0l78 

Shorthand Code: 4XWSWR5353RE™BURRX53730178 

ARTICLE 4 - COOPERATOR RESPONSIBILITIES 

a. To designate Kari Chennault, Program Engineer, City ofMarysville, 80 Columbia Avenue, WA, 98270, 
360-363-8277, as the authorized representative who shall be responsible for collaboratively 
administering the activities conducted in this Agreement; 

b. To reimburse APHIS-WS for costs, not to exceed the annually approved amount specified in the Work 
and Financial Plan. If costs are projected to exceed the amount reflected in the Financial Plan, the Work 
and Financial Plan shall be formally revised and signed by both parties before services resulting in 
additional costs are perfonned. The Cooperator agrees to pay all costs of service submitted via an 
invoice within 30 days of the date of the submitted invoice or invoices as submitted by APHIS-WS. Late 
payments are subject to interest, penalties, and administr!ltive charges and costs as set forth under the 
Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996. If the Cooperator is delinquent in paying the full amount of 
the cine service costs subinitted by APH!S-WS, and/or is delinquent in paying the due late payments, 
and/or is delinquent ln paying the interest, penalties, and/or administrative costs on any delinquent due 
sc:rvice costs, APHJS-WS will immediately cease to provide the respective service associated with the 
submitted service cosls. APHIS-WS will not reinstate or provide the respective service until all due 
service costs, and/or due late payments, and/or due interest, penalty, and/or administrative costs are (list 
paid in full. 

c. To provide a Tax Identification Number or Social Security Number in compliance with the Debt 
Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 

d. As a condition o'f this Agreement, The Cooperator ensures and certifies that it is not currently debarred or 
suspended and is free of delinquent Federal debt. 

ARTICLE 5 - WS RESPONSIBILITIES 

WS agrees: 

11. 1·0 designate WS State Director, Roger Woodruff, 720 O'Leary Street NW, Olympia, WA 98502, 
(360) 7 53-9884 as the authorized representative who shall be responsible for collaboratively 
administering the activities couducted in this Agreement; 

b. lbe performance of wildlife damage management actions by WS under this agreement is contingent 
upon a detennination by WS that such actions are in compliance with the National Environmental 
Policy Act, Endangered Species Act, and any other applicable environmental statutes. WS will not 
make a final decision to con.duct requested wildlife damage manage.rnent actions until it has made the 
determination of such compliance; 

c. To provide qualified personnel and other resources necessary to implement the approved \VDM 
activities delineated in the Work and Financial Plan referenced in 3.a of this Agreement 

d. 'fo bill the Cooperator for costs incurred in perfonning WDM activities as authorized in the approved 
annual Wark and Financial Plan as may be amended. 

Page z. of 4 

Item 9 - 13

70



Agreement No: 14-73-53-6173-RA 
WBS Element: AP.RA.RX53.73.0178 

Shorthand Code: 4XWSVIR.5353REIMBURR.X53730I 78 

e. To notify the Cooperator if costs are projected to exceed the amounts estimated and agreed upon in the 
Finrmcial Plan. WS \Vill cease providing goods or services until a revision to the Work and Financial 
Plan,. as appropriate, have been agreed to and sii:,rned by both parties to this Agreement. 

f, Aulhorized auditing representatives of the Cooperator shall be accorded reasonable opportunity to 
inspect the accounts and records of WS pertaining to such claims for reimbursement to the extent 
permitted by Fi;:deral la\ vs and regulations. 

ARTICLE 6- WS CONDITIONS 

For costs borne by WS, this agreement is contingent upon the passage of the Agriculture, Rural Development, 
and Related Agencies Appropriation Act for tile cwrent fiscal year fro1n which expenditures may be legally met 
and shall not obligate AP HIS upon failure of Congc:ess to so approprulte. This Agreement also may be reduced or 
termlnated jf Congress provides APH1S funds only for a finite period unde.r a Continuing Resolution. 

ARTICLE 7-ASSURANCES 

Nothing in this agreement shall prevent any other State, agency, organization or individual from entering into 
separate agreements with WS the Cooperator for the purpose of managing wildlife damage. 

ARTICLE 8- CONGRESSIONAL RESTRICTIONS 

Pursuant to Section 22, Title 41, United States Code, no member of or delegate to Congress shall be admitted to 
any share or part of this·agrecment or to any benefit to arise therefrom. 

ARTICLE 9- APPLICABLE REGULATIONS 

All WDM activities will be conducted in accordance with applicable Fedetal, State, and local laws and 
regulations, 

This agreement is not a procurement contract (31 U.S,C, 6303), nor is it considered a grant (31 U,S.C. 6304). In 
this agreemen~ APHIS provides goods or services on a cost recovery basis to nonfederal recipients. 

ARTICLE JO- LIABILITY 

APHIS assumes no liability for any actions or activities conducted under this agreement except to the extent the 
recourse or remedies are provided by Congress under the Federal Tort Claims Act (28 USC 1346(b ), 240 I (b), 
267l-2680). 

Page3 of4 

Item 9 - 14

71



Agreement No: l 4-73-53-6173-RA 
WBS Element: AP.RA.RX53.73.0178 

Shorthand Code: 4XWSWR5353REIMBVRRX53730178 

ARTICLE 11 ·- AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE DA TE 

'lrhis Agreement shall become effective upon the date of final signature and shall continue through September 30, 
ip19. Th.is agreement may be amended at any time by Lnutual agreement of the parties in \vriting, It ruaybe 
lcrminated by either party upon 60 days written notice to the allier party. Further, in the event the Co Operator 
does not for any reason reimburse: expended funds, \VS is relieved of th.e obligation to continue any operations 
and.er this agreement. 

AUTHORIZATION: 

CITY OF MARYSVJLI.E 
MARYSVILLE, WA 
Tax Identification Number; 91-6001459 

UNITED STATES DEPAR1'MENT OF AGRICULTIJRE 
ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE 
WlLDLIFE SERVICES 
Tax Identification Number: 41-0696271 

S'fu:teDirector, W AJAK 

Dir~tor, Western Region 

Date ' 

Date 

Date 

Page4of4 

Item 9 - 15

72



WORK PLAN/FINANCIAL PLAN 

Cooperator: City of Marysville 

Contact: Jim Ballew, 360-363-8402 
Kari Chennault, Program Engineer 360-363-8277 
Officer Dave Vasconi, Marysville PD 425-754-8843 

Cooperative Service Agreement No.: 14-73-53-6173-RA 

WBS Elomeut' AP.RA.RX53.73.0178 

FMMI Shorthand Cod" 4XWSWR5353REIMBURRX53730178 

Location: City of Marysville 

Dnte: October 1, 2013 through September 30, 2014 

In accordance with the Cooperative Service Agreement between the City of Marysville and the 
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service 
(APHIS), Wildlife Services (WS), this Work Plan sets forth the objectives, activities, and budget 
of the wildlife control activities for the period of October I, 2013 through 'September 30, 2014. 

Progran1 Objective/Goals 

APHIS-WS objective is to provide assistance to the City of Marysville, wl1en they experience 
\Vildlife conflicts caused by beavers, coyotes and other nuisance wildlife. This assistance may be 
in the fonn of educational infonnation or direct control. If direct control is necessary, the most 
effective and safe control tools arid techniques will be utilized. 

Plan of Action 

The objectives of the wildlife control activities will be accomplished in the following manner: 

I. WS will assign a Wildlife Specialists on an intermittent basis up to 280 hours and will 
also provide t11e vehicle, field supplies, and equipment for the project. 

2. WS will conduct aggressive control in areas of flooding with continued maintenance and 
monitoring in areas \Vhere beaver populations are reduced to prevent re-infestation. 

3. WS will conduct aggressive control of coyotes when coyotes are causing a human health 
and safety issue. 

4. Damage control will be accomplished by the following methods: 

o Technical assistance to improve and expand non-lethal methods (i.e. 
exclusion, eliminate feeding, etc.) 

• Trapping 
.. Shooting 

Item 9 - 16

73



5. Matt Cleland in the \VS District Office (360) 337-2778 in Poulsbo will supervise this 
project This project will be monitored by Roger Woodruff, State Director, Olympia, 
(360) 753-9884. 

6. WS will cooperate with the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, the U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service, county and local city governments, and other entities to ensure 
compliance witI1Federal, State, and local laws and regulations. 

7. City of Marysville \'fill be billed quarterly by WS only for the services rendered, not to 
exceed $15,000. Salaries and benefits are defined as compensation for all hours worked, 
beneftts, differentials, hazardous duty allowances, annual leave, sick leave and awards. 
You will only be billed for expenses incurred. The financial point of contact for this 
Work Plan/Financial Plan is Roberta Bushman, Administrative Officer, (360) 753-9884. 

BUDGET 

Listed below are the estimated costs of the wildlife control program outlined above: 

Salary & Benefits 
Vehicle Fuel 
Supplies 
Subtotal 
Overhead 
Pooled Equip Cost 

TOTAL 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
6915 ARMAR RD 
MARYSVILLE, WA 98270 

~-' ,:;: 7 

$ 10,850 
450 
497 

1 l,797 
l,905 
1298 

$ 15.0QO 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
ANlMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE 
WILDLIFE SERVICES 

$?ate Director, \VA/AK 

Director, Western Region 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Item 9 - 17

74



Index #11
 

75



ClTY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL 'MEETING [}ATE: October 9 2017 
' AGENDA ITEM: AGENDA SECTION: 

-----{ 

Renewal of Jail Services Contl'act with Yakima Count)' 

PREPARED BY: ... AGENDA NUMBER: 
\Vendy \Vade1 -Commander 

c----·----------------
APPROVED BY: 

! BUDGET CODE: 
' 

! MAYOR 
i 

!CAO 
' 

------···44.MOUNT: ---1 
---····--------------------'---------·-····---' 

Macysvilte Police Department requests Council appro_ve the renewal of the Jail Services (~Ontract 
"vith Yakima County Jail to house senienced prisoners, 

Yakima County Jail prov·ides transpor\,ation to and D:om Marysville Jail to Yakima l~ounty Jail. 

Housing fees hav·e increased 4o/o from $57.20 to $59,85 a day per prisoner. Norn1ai medical 
expenses are included in the housing fee. -

City Att_ome)'. Jon \Valker, re\'iewed the _language contained in the contract and pre\;.lously 
approved it as to form. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recotntnends that Council autl1orize tl1e M·ayor to sign the 2018 Agreement for the 
:)-'akima CoUnry agreement for juil services, 

•COUNCIL ACTION: 

Item 11 - 1

76



Chief Rick Smil.h 
'.\farysvilk Police Department 
l 6a5 Gro"c Street 
Marysville, 'vVA 98270 

YAKIMA COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

111 NonhFrontStreet Yakima, Washington 98901 (509)574-1700 

September U'\ 20 1 i 

RE: 2018 Housing Agreement Renewal Notification 

Dear Chief Smith: 

Th.is letter \\~ ll scrw as your ollic.ial written notification of the inmate housing rate inrrcasc for the 
upcoming year. The increase is approximately -1% an<l is primarily due to an increase in our overall 
department services. Yakima County DOC will sec an annual increa.<;e of $680,000 in .Medical Services, 
$125,000 in Mcnl.al Health services, and a l% wage increase over the next lwo years (2018-2019). Th.is 
\.vill also allow us to align both the I..<Kal &. Non-Local agreements under lhe same sliding rate scale. 

I have inserted language thal provides a continuous lcrm iustcad of mmual renewals, except when there is 
a rate increase amVor language change. The new language reads as follows: This agreement wiU renew 
annually for up to 5 ye;us (December 31, 2022) unless there is wrilJ:en notification from one party to the 
other that they wish to terminate the contract at the end of the clllTC/Jt calendar year. Such notification 
wiU be sent to the receil'ing party no Jat:er than October r of the clllTC/Jt year." 

Endoscd you "~ll lind (2) originals agreement.<;. Please Jmn· them both signed and forwarded back to my 
attention al your earliest conn:nicnc:c. Once our Board of County Commissioners has signed L.hc 
agrcemenL-;, a fully executed original will be returned to you. 

I have chosen to send this nolicc out earlier this year in ;m effort to allow for any legal review and/or 
approval that may be required prior to signing. 

Please do not hesitate lo contarl me if you have <lilY questions. I ca.n be reached al 57,1--17 58, or you can 
contact Sandrn Bess at 571-170-1. 

l..<>oking forward lo another successful year of working- together! 

Respectfully, 

fa~:;21~ 
EC:sb 

C: City Notebook 
--- ------------- Service, Pride, lntegrif)' -------- --------

Item 11 - 2

77



AGREEMENT FOR INMATE HOUSING 2018 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR INMATE HOUSING (hereinafter "Agreement") is made and 
entered into by and between Yakima County (hereinafter the "County") and the City of 
Marysville (hereinafter the "City''). 

WHEREAS, RCW Chapters 39.34 and RCW 70.48 authorize the City and the County to 
enter into a contract for inmate housing, and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to transfer custody of certain of its inmates to the County to 
be housed in the County's corrections facilities during those inmates' confinement, and to 
compensate the County for housing such inmates, and 

WHEREAS, the County desires to house inmates who would be otherwise in the City's 
custody on the terms agreed herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, conditions, and promises 
contained herein, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 

1. Purpose. The purpose and intent of this Agreement is to establish the terms under 
which the County will house City inmates. 

2. Definitions. 

Business day means Monday through Friday excluding Yakima County standard holidays. 

Committing Court means the court that issued the order or sentence that established the 
City's custody of a City Inmate. 

Detainer - A legal order authorizing or commanding another agency a right to take custody of 
a person. 

City Inmate means a person subject to City custody who is transferred to County custody 
under this Agreement 

3. General Provisions. The County shall accept City Inmates according to the terms of 
this Agreement and shall provide housing, care, and custody of those City Inmates in the same 
manner as it provides housing, care and custody to its own inmates. 

The County shall manage, maintain, and operate its corrections facilities in compliance with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 

4. Right to Refuse or Return Inmate. To the greatest extent permitted by law, the 
County shall have the right to refuse to accept a City Inmate or to return a City Inmate to the 
City, if the Inmate has a current illness or injury that is listed in Attachment A - Medical 
Acceptability. The County shall provide notice to the City at least one business day prior to 
transport. 

5. Inmate Transport. County Transported: The County shall transport Inmates to and 
from the County's corrections facilities except when weather or other conditions beyond the 
County's control prevent transport. Inmate transport dates will be determined by the 
amount of inmates the City has housed with the County. 

Agreement for Inmate HQusing -- 2018 
Page 1 
Item 11 - 3

78



The County will pick up and drop off Inmates at a mutually agreed upoo destination. In the 
event the City wishes the County to pick up and/or drop off a City Inmate at another detention 
or correction facility, the City shall notify the county of the location of the Inmate for pick up 
and/or drop off. 

The City shall provide a written Inmate transport list to the County the business day prior to 
transport. At the time of scbeduling transport If possible, but no later than transport pickup, the 
City shall provide to the County the warrant or court order detaining Or committing the Inmate, 
as well as any order that specifies the Inmate's next court date or sentence to confinement. 

The City shall provide a complete copy of each Inmate's records in its possession to the County 
prior to transferring custody of the .Inmate to the County. The County will not assume custody 
of any inmate without a warrant or court order that commits the Inmate to confinement. 

City Transported: The City will provide the County a written transpart list to the County 
the business day prior to delivery. At the time of delivery, the City ·shall provide the County the 
warrant or court order detaining or committing the inmate as well as any order that specifies 
the Inmate's next court date or sentence to confinement. 

The City shall provide a complete copy of each Inmate's records In its possession to the County 
prior to transferring custody of the Inmate to the County. The County will not assume custody 
of any Inmate without a warrant or court order that commits the Inmate to confinement. 

6. Inmate Records. The Clty shall provide all medical records in its possession to. the 
County's transport officers prior to the Inmate's departure from the City's detention or 
designated detention facility. In the event the Inmate Is transported by the Clty, the City shall 
provide all medical records In Its possession to the County's booking officer. In the event 
additional information is requested by the County regarding a particular Inmate, the County and 
City will mutually cooperate to provide the additional Information needed. 

7. Inmate Property. The County shall accept and transport Inmate property In 
accordance with Attachment B - Property, and shall be responsible only for inmate property 
actually delivered into County possession. The County shall hold and handle each Inmate's 
personal property In the same manner it holds and handles property of other County Inmates. 
In the event a City Inmate is being transported from a City designated detention or correction 
facility, it will be the responsibility of the City to dispose of the Inmate's property not delivered 
and accepted Into County possession. When returning Inmates to the Clty, the County shall 
transport Inmate property according to the provisions of Attachment. B - Property, and It shall 
be the responsibility of the County to dispose of any of the Inmate's property not transported 
with the Inmate. 

8. Booking, Inmates shall be booked pursuant to the County's booking policies and 
procedures .. Inmates transported by the City that are not acceptable at booking, will be the 
responsibility of the City to transport back to City. 

Pursuant to RCW 70.48.130, and as part of the booking procedure, the Department of 
Corrections shall obtain general information concerning the Inmate's ability to pay for medical 
care, including insurance or other medical benefits or resources to which a City Inmate .rs 
entitled. The Information Is to be used for third party billing. 

The County and City will attempt to develop a process at City detention facililies for pre-booking 
Inmates who are being transferred to the custody of !;he County. 

Agreement for Inmate Housing •• 2018 
Page2 
Item 11 - 4

79



9. Classifkation. Inmates shall be classified pursuant to the County's classification 
policies and procei;!ures, and within the sole discretion and judgment of the County. The City 
shall provide Information Identified In Attachment C - Classification, of this Agreement. 

1(1. Housing. Inmates shall be assigned to housing pursuant to the County's policies and 
procedures, and within the sole discretion and judgment of the County. Provided however, that 
generally, if a City Inmate's classification qualifies him/her to be housed in the Yakima County 
Corrections Center, and there Is a bed available at the Yakima County Corrections Center, the 
Inmate shall be housed In the Yakim.a County Corrections Center. Exceptions to this general 
provision Include circumstances such as: 1) No women are housed at the Yakima County 
Corrections Center; 2) Inmates assigned to certain work crews must be housed. In the Main Jail 
or Anni;x; 3) Certain programs are available only to Inmates housed in the Main Jail or Annex; 
4) Inmates who will be housed for less than one week will usually be housed in the Main Jail or 
Annex. 

11. Inmate Work Programs. The County may assign Inmates to work programs such as 
lnsjde and outside work crews, kitchen and facility duties, and other appropriate duties. 

12. Health Care. The County shall provide In-facility medical care commonly associated 
with county corrections operations as guided by American Correctional Association or National 
Commission on Correctional Health Care standards. 

Inmates shall be responsible for co-payment for health services according to County policy. The 
City shall not be responsible to the County for Inmate co-payments. No Inmate shall be denied 
necessary health care because of an inability to pay for health services. 

The County shall notify the City's designee(s) via e-mail or fax If a City Inmate requires medical 
or dental treatment at an outside medical or health care facility. The City shall be responsible to 
promptly notify the County of any changes in its deslgnee(s). 

The. City shall pay for all medical, mental health, dental or .any other medical services that are 
required to care for the City's Inmates outside YCDOC facilities. Except, the county shall bear 
the expense of any such medical care necessitated by improper conduct of the County, or of Its 
officers or agents. 

The County shall notify the City as soon as reasonably possible before the Inmate receives 
medical and/or dental treatment outside of YCDOC facilities. The City acknOwledges that such 
notice may not be reasonably possible prior to emergency care. Lack of prior notice shall not 
excuse the City from financial responsibility for related medical expenses, and shall not be a 
basis for imposing financial responsibility for related medical expenses on the County. 

Outside medical expenses for Inmates housed for more than one Jurisdiction shall be divided 
equally among those jurisdictions. 

13. Inmate Discipline. The County shall discipline Inmates according to the same policies 
and procedures under which other County inmates are disciplined. However, nothing contained 
herein shall be construed to authorize the Imposition of a type of discipline that would not be 
imposed on a comparable County inmate, up to and inciudlng the removal of earned early 
release credits as approved by the City. 

14. Removal from County Facilities. Except for work programs or health care, and 
during emergencies, Inmates shall not be removed from County facilities without written 
authorization from the City or by the order of any court having jurisdiction. other jurisdictions 

Agreement for Inmate Housing ·- 2018 
Page3 

Item 11 - 5

80



may "borrow" a City Inmate only according to the provisions of Attachm.ent D - Borrowing. 
Jn the event of the Inmate's emergency removal, the county shall notify the City by email or fax 
as soon as reasonably possible. No early release or alternative to Incarceration, including 
furloughs, home .detention, or work release shall be granted to any Inmate without written 
authorization by the committing court 

15. Visitation. The County shall provide scheduled visitation for attorneys, spouses, family 
and friends of Inmates. Such visitation may be accomplished as provided in Section 24 of this 
Agreement. 

16. Inmate-Attorney Communication. Confidential telephones or viSitation rooms shall 
be available to I nm ates to communicate with their attorneys. 

17. Inmate Accounts. The county shall establish and maintain an account for each 
Inmate. The. County shall ensure family members and others have a reasonable prOcess to add 
funds to a City Inmate's account, 

Upon returning custody of a Oty Inmate to the City, the county shall transfer the balance of 
that .Inmate's account that is not subject to charges, to the Inmate or to the City in the form of 
a check or a debit card In the name of the Inmate. 

In the event the County contracts with a company/business that furnishes technology for 
wireless inmate account crediting (such as Keefee or JPAY) the City may allow the County (or 
County's contracted representative) to install the equipment necessary for use of the system. 
The City shall not be financially responsible for any aspect of the system, including but not 
limited to installation or maintenance costs. The City shall not receive any compensation or 
profits for such a system. 

18. Detainers. Inmates in a "Detainer" status shall be handled according to Attachment E 
- Detainers. 

19. Releases. The City shall be responsible for computing and tracking all sentence time 
calculations, good time, court dates and release dates. Inmates will be released In accordance 
with Attachment F - Inmate Release. 

The County shall not transfer custody of a City Inmate housed pursuant to this Agreement to 
any party other than the City,_ except-as provided ln this Agreement or as directed by _the City. 

20. Escape. If a City Inmate escapes County custody, the county shall notify the City as 
soon as reasonably possible. The County shall use all reasonable efforts to pursue and regain 
custody of escaped City Inmates, and shall assume all costs connected with the recapture of the 
Qty Inmate. 

21. Death. If a City Inmate dies in County custody, the County shall notify the City as soon 
as reasonably possible. The Yakima County Coroner shall assume custody of the City Inmate's 
body. Unless another agency becomes responsible for investigation, YC.DOC shall investigate 
and shall provide the Qty with a report of its investigation. The Qty may participate in the 
investigation. If another agency becomes responsible for investigation, YCDOC shall liaison or 
otherwise facilitate the City's communication with and receipt of reports from the other agency. 

The City shall provide the County with written instructions regarding the disposition of the City 
Inmate's body. The Qty shall pay for all reasonable expenses for the preparation and shipment 
of the body. The Oty may request in writing that the County arrange for purial and all matters 
related or incidental thereto and the Oty shall be responsible for all costs associate with this 

Agreement for Inmate Housing -- 2018 
Page4 

-------------~------ ---------------

Item 11 - 6

81



request. Except, the County shall bear such expenses necessitated by Improper conduct of 
County, or Its officers or agents. 

22. Reporting Requirements. Ordinarily on business days, the County will deliver the 
following reports to the JAG, Which will disseminate them to the City: 

Here Now Report - a report detailing City Inmates in YCDOC custody. 

Housing Report - a report detailing which city Inmates are housed. at the Yakima County 
Corrections Center. 

Custody Report - a report of total inmate populations confined at all YCDOC facilities. It 
includes current and historical safety and population data. 

Special Housing Report - Identifies cjty inmates who are In special housing assignments. 

23. City's Right of Inspec;tion. The City shall have the right, upon reasonable advance 
notice, to Inspect County correction facilities where City Inmates are housed at reasonable 
times. During such Inspections, the City may interview its Inmates and review its Inmates' 
records. The Oty shall have no right to interview Inmates housed for other jurisdictions or to 
review their medical records, unless It Is properly authorized to do so by the Inmate or the other 
jurisdiction. 

24. Technology. The County and City may each permit the other continuous access to its 
computer database regarding all City Inmates housed by the County. This continuous access 
feature may be accomplished through a computer link between a computer(s) designated by 
the City and appropriate computer(s) of the. County. 

By separate mutual agreement, the County and City may provide video conference capablllties 
for personal visiting, professional visiting, pre-trial conferences, arraJgnments and other court 
and conferencing needs. 

Bed Rate. In consideration of Yakima County's commitment to house Oty Inmates, the City 
shall pay the .County based on the Monthly Average Dally Population (MADP) sliding scale: 

Monthly ~41,crage D'aily Papulation Daily 1late Per IIzmatc 

-j {-11-IADP) 
··--- ------r-- 151 - abo,-e $5S.8E1-

126-150 $54.85 
I 

101-125 $65.85 

76-100 $56.85 

61-75 $5-7,~6 
' ~------

26-50 ' $58.85 
·- ' 0-25 $,59.85 

Agreement for Inmate Hou~ing -- 2018 
Page 5 

·-

--

------

Item 11 - 7

82



The Bed Rate includes all in-facility medical, dental (If available), and mental health services, In 
the event an Inmate requires out of facility medical, dental or mental health services, the City 
shall be responsible for the cost of the services. 

The County shall not charge a booking fee in oonhection with housing the City's!nmates. 

The City may purchase additional beds, as available, at the then- existing bed rate; however, 
the County shall have the right to refuse to accept custody of or house inmates In excess of the 
City's minimum bed commitment. 

The Daily Pee for Inmates housed for more than one jurisdiction shall be divided equally among 
those jurisdictions. 

This daily rate Is established for 2018. Yakima County reserves the right to increase the daily 
rate with the understanding that they will provide the City of Marysville ninety (90) days written 
notification prior to said Increase. 

25. Billing and Payment. The County shall provide the City with monthly statements 
Itemizing the name of each City Inmate, the number of days of housing, Including the date and 
time booked Into the County and date and time released from the County and itemization of any 
additional charges including a description of the service provided, date provided and reason for 
service. 

The County shall provide said statement for each month on or about the 10th day of the 
following month. Payment shall be due to the County within (30) days from the billing date. 
The County may bill the City electronically. Payments not received by the 30"' day shall bear 
Interest at the rate of 1 o/o per month until payment Is received. 

The Daily Fee for City Inmates housed for more than one jurisdiction shall be divided equally 
among those jurisdictions. 

26. Duration of Agreement, This agreement will renew annually for up to five (5) years 
(December 31, 2022) unless there Is written notification from one party to the other that they 
wish to tenminate the contract at the end of the current calendar year. Such notification will be 
sent to the receiving party no later than October 1 ''of the current year. 

27. Independent Contractor. In providing services under this Agreement, the County is 
an Independent c0ntractor and neither It nor its officers, nor its agents nor Its employees are 
employees of the City for any purpose, Including responsibility for any federal or state tax, 
industrial insurance, or Social Security liability. Neither shall the provision of services under this 
Agreement give rise to any claim of career service or civil service rights, which may accrue to .an 
employee of the City under any applicable law, rule or regulation. Nothing in this Agreement Is 
Intended to create an Interest In or give a benefit to third persons not signing as a party to this 
Agreement. 

28, Hold Hannless, Defense, and Indemnification. The County shall hold hanmless, 
defend, and indemnify the City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from and 
against any and all suits, actions, claims, llablllty1 damages, judgments, costs and expenses 
(including reasonable attorney's fees) (also including but not limited to claims related to false 
arrest or detention, alleged mistreatment, injury, or death of any City Inmate, or loss or damage 
to City Inmate property while In County custody) that result from or arise out of the acts or 
omissions of County, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents in connection with or 

Agreement for Inmate Housing -- 2018 
Page6 
Item 11 - 8

83



incidental to the pelformance or non-pelformance of the County's seivlces, duties, and 
obligations under this Agreement. 

The City shall hold harmless, defend, and Indemnify the County, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, and agents from and against any and all suits, actions, claims, liability, damages, 
judgments, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) (also including but not 
limited to claims related to false arrest or detention, alleged mistreatment, Injury, or death of 
any City Inmate, or loss or damage to City Inmate property while In County custody) that result 
from or arise out of the acts or omissions of the City, its elected officials, officers, employees, 
and agents in connection with or lncld.ental to the pelformance or non-performance of the City's 
seivlces, duties, and obligations under this Agreement. 

In the event the acts or omissions of the officials; officers, agents, and/or employees of both 
the City and the County In connection with or incidental to the performance or i1on-perf0rmance 
of the City's and or County's seivices, duties, and obligations under this Agreement are the 
subject of any llability claims by a third party, the City and County shall each be liable for Its 
proportionate share of fault In any resulting suits, actions, claims, liability, damages, judgments, 
costs and expenses and for their own attorney's fees. 

Nothing contained In this Section or this Agreement shall be construed to create a right In any 
third party to indemnification or defense. 

The County and City hereby waive, as to each other only, their Immunity from suit under 
Industrial insurance, Title 51 RCW. This waiver of immunity was mutually negotiated by the 
parties hereto. 

The provisions of this section shall survi\le any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

29. Insurance, The County and City shall provide each other with evidence of Insurance 
coverage, in the form of a certificate or other competent evidence from an insurance provider, 
insurance pool, or of self-insurance sufficient to satisfy the obligations set forth In this 
Agreement. 

The County and City shall each maintain throughout the term of this Agreement coverage in 
minimum liability limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurren.ce and two million 
dollars ($2,000,000) In the aggregate for Its liability exposures, including comprehensive general 
liability, errors and omissions, auto liability and police professional liability. The Insurance policy 
shall provide .coverage on an occurrence basis. 

30. Termination. 

A. Mutual Agreement: This Agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent 
between the County and City with ninety (90) days written notice to the other party and to the 
State Office of Rnancial Management as required by RCW 70.48.090 stating the grounds for 
said termination and specifying plans for accommodating the affected City Inmates. 

B. Imperiling Conditions: The City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement where: 
1) conditions and/or circumstances at Yakima's facilities present an Imminent risk of serious 
injury or death to the City's Inmates [Imperiling Conditions]; 2) the City has sent County written 
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested describing with reasonable specificity the 
Imperiling Conditions; and 3) the County has failed to cure the Imperlllng Conditions within a 
reasonable period of time, which, unless the parties agree in writing to a longer period, shall be 
no more than 30 days after the County receives the City's notice. Termination under this 

Agreement for Inmate Housing -- 2018 
Page7 

Item 11 - 9

84



provision shalf be effective if and when: 1) after at least 30 days, the county has not cured the 
Imperiling Condltion(s); and 2) the Qty has removed Its Inmates; and 3) the City has given the 
County formal written notice of final tennination under this provision. After Termination under 
this provision the Clty shall have no further financial obligations under ltlis Agreement. 

C. Material Breach: Either party shall have the right to tenninate this Agreement if: 1) the 
other party is in material breach of any term of this Agreement; 2) the terminating party has 
sent the breaching party written notice of its intent to terminate this Agreement under this 
section by certified mall, return receipt requested describing with reasonable specificity the 
basis for the termination; and 3) the breaching party has failed to cure the breach within ninety 
(90) days, unless the parties agree in writing to a longer cure period. Tennination shall be 
effective upon and the City shall have no further financial obligations under this Agreement 
from the date of removal of its Inmates from the Yakima Facility or County's receipt of final 
notice that City Is terminating the Agreement after the expiration of the cure period, whichever 
occurs last. 

31. Real or Personal Property. It is not anticipated that any real or personal property will 
be acquired or purchased by the parties solely because ofthls Agreement. 

32. Equal Opportunity. Neither party shall discriminate against any person on the grounds 
of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status, political affiliation or belief 
or ltle presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap In violation of any applicable federal 
law, Washington State Law Against Discrimination (RCW chapter 49.60) or the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (42 USC 12110 et seq.). In the event of the violation of this provision, the other 
party may terminate this Agreement immediately. 

33. Assignment. This Agreement, ot any interest herein, or claim hereunder, shall not be 
assigned or transferred in whole or in part by the County to any other person or entity without 
the prior written consent of the Qty. In the event that such prior written consent to an 
assignment is granted, then the assignee shall assume all duties, obligations, and liabilities of 
County st;ted herein, 

34. Non-Waiver. The failure of either party to insist upon strict performance of any 
provision of this Agreement or to exercise any right based upon a breach thereof or the 
acceptance of any performance during such breach shall not constitute a waiver of any right 
under this Agreement. 

35. Severabllity. If any portion of this Agreement is changed per mutual Agreement or any 
portion is held invalid, the remainder of the Agreement sh011 remain In full force and effect. 

36. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed ln accordance 
with the laws of the State of Washington. Any actions, suit, or judicial or administrative 
proceeding for the enforcement of this Agreement shall be brought and tried In the Federal or 
Superior court for the State of Washington in King County 

37. Approval and Filing. Each party shall approve ltlis Agreement by resolution, ordinance 
or otherwise pursuant to the laws of the governing body of each party. The attested signatures 
of the Clty, Manager or Mayor and the Yakima County Commissioners below shall constitute a 
presumption that such approval was properly obtained. A copy of this Agreement shall be filed 
with the Yakima County Auditor's Office pursuant to RON 39.34.040. 

Agreement for Inmate Housing -- 2018 
Pages 

Item 11 - 10

85



38. General Provisions. Unless otherwise agreed in writing executed by both parties, on 
and after January 1, 2018, and so long as this Agreement remains In effect, this document 
constitutes the entire Agreement between the Oty and the County under which the County 
houses Oty Inmates, and no other oral or written agreements between the parties shall affect 
this Agreement. 

No changes or addiijons to this Agreement shall be valid or binding upon either party unless 
such change or addition be In writing and executed by both parties. 

The County shall not delegate its duties pertaining to housing City Inmates without the written 
tonsent of the City, which consent shall not be withheld unreasonably, 

Any provision of this Agreement that is declared invalid or illegal shall in no way affect or 
invalidate any other provision. 

In the event the County or City defaults on the performance of any terms of this Agreement and 
files a lawsuit, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorney fees, 
costs and expenses. 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts. 

39. Notic;es. Unless stated otherwise. herein, all notices and demands shall .be in writing and 
sent or hand·d.ellvered to the parties to their addresses as follows: 

TO CITY: Rick Smith, Police Chief 
Marysville Police Department 
1635 Grove Street 
Mary$ville, WA 98270 

TO COUNTY: Ed Campbell, Director 
Yakima County Department of Corrections 
111 North Front Street 
Yakima, WA 98901 

Alternatively, to such other addresses as the parties may hereafter designate in writing. Notices 
and/or demands shall be sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or hand • 
delivered. Such notices shall be deemed effective when mailed or hand-delivered at the 
addresses spec;lfied above. 

CITY Of MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON 

By:=~-~~---·---
City Mayor/Manager 

Date:-----------

Attest: 
By: ___________ _ 

City Clerk 

Agreement for Inmate Housing -- 2018 
Page9 

Item 11 - 11

86



Approved as to form: 

By: __________ _ 

City Attorney 

Agreement for Inmate Housing -- 2018 
Page 10 
Item 11 - 12

87



ATTACHMENT A 

MEDICAL ACCEPTAIULnY 

The County shall detennine the medical and mental acceptability of Inmates for tr<msport using 
the following excluding crlte.rla: 

1. Blood or fluid present at an open wound site or bleeding from an open wound. 

2. Signs of untreated broken bones or dislocated joints. 

3. Arry injury or illness. requiring immediate or emergency medical treatment. 

4. Unconsciousness. 

5. Inmates unable to stand and walk under their own power. 

6. Wheel chair bound Individuals. 

7. Signs of alcohol toxicity and signs of current or recent use of any intoxicants; 

8. Signs of alcohol and/or drug withdrawal. 

9. Bed bou.nd individuals. 

10. Individuals with attached N or requiring IV medications. 

11. Individuals requiring the use of oxygen tanks. 

12. Af'IA (Against Medical Advice) from the hospital. 

13. Individuals having had major Invasive surgery within the last 72 hours. Non-invasive 
surgery such as oral surgery, laser-eye surgery and minor surgery may be evaluated on a 
case by case basis. 

14. Post-operative persons who have follow up appointments within the next four weeks. 

15. Wounds with drainage tubes attached. 

16. Persons with permanent catheters. 

17. Open and/or oozing bedsores. 

18. Individuals requiring nebulizers who cannot obtain one. 

19. Persons with Alzheimer's, dementia or other psychological conditions to the point where 
the Inmate cannot perform activities of dally Jiving ("ADL's") or who do not have the 
capacity t:o function safely within a correctional environment. 

20. Persons who are diagnosed as developmentally delayed and who do not have the 
capacity to function safely within a correctional environment or who cannot pertbrm 
ADL's. 

21. Female Inmates more than 5 months pregnant. Or any female inmate considered a high
risk pregnancy. 

22. Persons undergoing chemotherapy and/or radiation treatment. 

23. Persons undergoing dialysis. 

Agreement for Inmate Housing -- 2018 
Page 11 

Item 11 - 13

88



24. Persons with the following untreated medical conditions: 

a) Heart disease 

b) Seizures disorders 

c) Insulin dependent diabetes 

d) Cancer 

e) Asthma 

f) Psychosis 

g) HIV Positive or AIDS 

25. Persons who are HN positive or have AIDS and are taking anti-viral medicaticms. 

26. Persons taking M\lthadone, or Suboxone, a substitute for Methadone. 

27. Persons with suicidal ideatlons or gestures within the past72 hours. 

28. Person, If prescribed, have not taken psychotropic medications for at least 72 hours. 

29. Persons who have attempted suicide within the last 30 days. 

30; Persons who have attempted suicide by overdose or ligature strangulation during current 
Incarceration. 

31. Persons displaying current psychotic episode. 

32. Persons requiring CPAP machines as prescribed must be transported with the machine. 

Agreement for Inmate Houshtg -- 2018 
Page 12 

Item 11 - 14

89



-----ATTACHMENT B 

PROPERTY 
County transport personnel will only accept Inmate property as follows: 

1. Th.e property shall be sealed in a single property bag no larger than a common paper 
grocery bag. · 

2. Money, valuables, and medications shall be placed In a clear envelope and sealed within 
the Inmate's property bag. 

3. Checks and documents (court, warrants, etc) shall be attached to the outside of the 
property bag. 

4. The transporting officer shall account for the property bag and funds being transported. 
Yakima Olunty Department of Corrections transport personnel will not accept or 
transport the following: 

a) BackpackS, suitcases, etc. 

b) Unpackaged food products or food products in packaging that has .been opened. 

c) Any type of weapon (includes pocketknives). 

d) Liquids. 

e) Any items that will not flt Into the property bag. 

f) Material deemed to be contraband. 

Yakima County will limit property returned with the Inmate to the City according to these 
criteria. 

Agreement for Inmate Housing -- 2018 
Page 13 Item 11 - 15

90



ATTACHMENT C 
CLASSIFICATION 

TI1e City shall supply the County with the following Classification related information, If it known 
to or in possession of the Qty: 

1. If the City Inmate has been classified to a special housing unit and/or if the Qty Inmate 
has been· classified as protective custody. 

2. If the Qty Inmate Is a violent offender or has displayed violent behavior during present 
or past incarcerations. 

3. If the City Inmate Is an escape risk. 

Agreement for Inmate Housing -- 2018 
Page 14 
Item 11 - 16

91



ATTACHMENT D 

BORROWING 

One contracting city may "borrow" another contracting city's inmate as follows: 

1. If a City requests the transport of another contracting City's Inmate from the County the 
requesting City must notify each agency with rights to custody of the Inmate, and If each 
agency with rights to custody of the Inmate notifies the County In writing (e-mail} of its 
approval, the County shall provide the requesteq transport. The County will complete a 
custody transfer form that lists all outstanding detalners. The custody transfer 
paperwork will accompany the Inmate. 

2. Once custody of the City Inmate has been transferred to another agency, it is the 
responsibility of the requesting City to determine whether the City Inmate shall be 
returned to the custody of the County, and if so, the requesting City shall make all 
necessary and proper arr;mgements with the county and any agency with rights to 
custo!;ly of the Inmate, for the Inmate's return accorOing to the terms of this agreement. 

3. The county will not track.the City Inmate once he or she has left the county's facility. 

4. If the Inmate Is returned to the custody of the County, the requesting city shall provide 
the county with sentencing/charge Information. The City shall supply all pre-sentence, 
and post-sentence paperwork from agreeing agencies that authorized the borrowing of 
the Inmate. This will aid Yakima County in determining split billing and release dates. 

5. If the agency requesting to borrow a City Inmate Is not In the "Contracting Agency," the 
requesting agency will be responsible to make all transport arrangements Including all 
legal paperwork for the transport with the City of jurisdiction. 

6. The County will transport the City Inmate only to a King County city that also contracts 
with the County for Inmate housing. 

7. Inmates transported by the City, cannot be borrowed out of YCDOC. 

Agreement for Inmate Housing •• 2018 
Page 15 
Item 11 - 17

92



ATTACHMl:l'IT E 

This attachment only applies to Inmates transported by the YCDOC. 

WARRANTS/OTHER COURT ORDERS/DETAINERS 

1. The following shall apply to Qty Inmates who are subject to warrants from other 
jurisdictions or to other court orders for confinement or detainers. When receiving a City 
Inmate, the Transport Officers shall review all paperwork provided by the City for all 
grounds to hold the Inmate and ensure that this Information is entered into the County's 
JMS and is routed to the Out of County Tran sport Section Office Specialist. 

2. Prior to releasing a City Inmate, the County shall check the NCIC and WACIC systems to 
determine ifthe Inmate is subject to any valid warrants or other detainers. 

a} If the Inmate is subject to a warrant that is limited to King County, YCDOC will, 
upon receiving written permission (e mail} from the City, transport the Inmate to 
the custodial agency t'or the jurisdiction that Issued the warrant. However, Yakima 
County will not assume responsibility to serve any such warrants. 

b) If the Qty Inmate is subject to a warrant from a western Washington jurisdiction 
outside King County, YCDOC will release the Inmate at the location determined by 
written (e mall) agreement of the YCDOC and the City under Secaon S of this 
Agreement. 

c) If the Qty Inmate is subject to a warrant from an eastern Washington jurlsdiction, 
YCDOC will send the Inmate to the custodial agency for that jurisdiction on the 
Mini-Chain. · 

d) If, upon return from YCDOC to the Oty, the Inmate is subject to a warrant that 
provides for statewide extradition, YtDOC will either transport the Inmate to the 
detention/correction facility in King County designated by the agency/jurisdiction 
that issued the warrant If it is in King County, or will send the Inmate to the 
agency/jurisdiction that issued the warrant on the Mini-Chain. 

3. City Inmates who have or are subject to Immigration and Custom Enforcement (ICE) 
detainers shall be returned to the City, unless the County and City agree In writing 
(email) to some other course of action. 

Agreement for Inmate Housing -- 2018 
Page 16 
Item 11 - 18

93



ATTACHMENT F 

INMATE RELEASE 

County transport personnel will release City Inmates as follows: 

L Inside a staffed correction or detention facility (jail). 

2. Inside a sl:llffed police agency (sally port or other secured area). 

3. Outside of a Law Enforcement Agency when agency personnel, telephone access, .and 
weather protection (lobby areas) are available to the released Inmate. 

4. The County does not transport on Mondays. 

5, City Inmates for whom bail Is posted, or who otherwise have a right to be released may, 
by signed written waiver, choose to remain In custody and return to City by the regularly 
scl1eduled transport, or to be released to a family member or friend, or to the streets of 
Yakima. 

6. Inmates transported by City must be picked up at least 12-(twelve) hours prior to the 
inmate's scheduled release date and time. If the inmate ls not picked up before the 
scheduled release time, the Inmate will be. automatically scheduled to be transported, at 
the City's cost to lndude. the addition of transport fees for all days served, on the next 
available transport to the City .. 

Agreement for Inmate Housing •• 2018 
Page 17 
Item 11 - 19

94



2018 Inmate Housing Agreement - City of Marysville 

DO!"Ethis __ dayof ______ 2017 

Attest: Tiera L. Girord 
Clerk of the Board 

Appro\•ed as to form: 

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

BOARD OF YAKIMA COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

J. Rand Elliott, Chairman 

Ron Anderson~ Commissioner 

-----··-------
Michael D. l,eita, -Commissioner 
Consbhlrtng /Jw Boord of Ct11m!j• C(jffl!fl/SJJ1mx:rJ 
.for iilkim::i C{!IJ'l/.Y, i1'flSl1mgt!ffl 

Item 11 - 20

95



Index #12
 

96



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/9/17 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Astound Broadband, LLC (dba “Wave”) Telecommunications Franchise 
PREPARED BY:   DIRECTOR APPROVAL:  
Colin Olivers 
DEPARTMENT:   
Legal 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Proposed Franchise 
BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT:   
N/A N/A 
SUMMARY:   

 
Astound Broadband, LLC (dba “Wave”) has approached the City for a franchise to install fiber 
optic telecommunications facilities in the City rights-of-way. 
 
Wave has an existing cable franchise, granted June 22, 2015, for the Lakewood area of the City. 
This is the franchise for which the City recently consented to transfer of control to Radiate 
Holdings. Wave is also the successor to an expired open video system franchise within the entire 
City, granted to Black Rock Cable, Inc. on May 11, 2006. Wave has requested that this franchise 
expressly replace and supersede that expired franchise. 
 
Legal staff worked off of an existing telecommunications franchise and updated and added 
language to conform with current practices. From this updated starting point, City staff and Wave 
have negotiated the attached proposed franchise. The agreement is effective for an initial term 
ending December 31, 2022 and will automatically renew for an additional five years unless either 
party elects for the franchise to terminate. 
 
This telecommunications franchise will also ultimately be controlled by Radiate Holdings 
following Wave’s sale. However, as in the context of the cable franchise, Wave will continue to 
operate as the responsible entity under the franchise. By the terms of this franchise, the City will 
not need to separately consent to the sale of Wave to Radiate Holdings. 
 
The proposed franchise is substantially similar to the proposed franchise ordinance for MCIMetro 
Access Transmission Services Corp. (dba “Verizon Access Transmission Services”). 
 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
City staff recommends that the City Council approve, and authorize the Mayor to execute, the 
proposed franchise. 
 

Item 12 - 1

97



 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Marysville, Washington 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON, 
SETTING FORTH THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
MARYSVILLE AND ASTOUND BROADBAND, LLC, A WASHINGTON 
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, D/B/A WAVE, GRANTING WAVE A 
NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, MAINTAIN, 
REPAIR, REPLACE, AND REMOVE TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES 
WITHIN CITY RIGHTS-OF-WAY. 

WHEREAS, Astound Broadband, LLC, a Washington Limited Liability Company d/b/a Wave 
(the “Company”) has applied for a nonexclusive franchise to construct, operate, maintain, repair, 
replace, and remove wired telecommunications facilities on Rights-of-Way within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Company is the successor to Black Rock Cable, Inc. (“Black Rock”) and 
operates under the Open Video System Franchise granted by the City to Black Rock by 
Ordinance No. 2629, dated November 13, 2001 (the “OVS Franchise”); and 

WHEREAS, the OVS Franchise expired on May 11, 2016, and the City and Company have 
continued to operate under the terms and conditions of the OVS Franchise since then; and 

WHEREAS, the Company and the City have engaged in negotiations regarding the Company’s 
right to utilize the City Rights-of-Way; and 

WHEREAS, the City will authorize the Company to utilize the City Rights-of-Way subject to 
certain conditions and restrictions; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.47.040 and Chapter 35.99 RCW authorize the City to grant nonexclusive 
master permits or franchises for telecommunications facilities in the City Rights-of-Way; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Company intend to replace and supersede the OVS Franchise with the 
franchise granted under this Ordinance; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS AND THE PARTIES DO HEREBY AGREE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Definitions. 

For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following words, terms, and phrases shall have the 
meanings stated in this section. When consistent with the context, words used in the present 
tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words in the singular 
include the plural. To the extent not defined in this section, words shall be given their common 

Item 12 - 2

98



and ordinary meaning. The word “shall” is always mandatory and not merely directory. 

1.1 “Affiliate” means any corporate entity that (1) the Company owns or controls, (2) the 
Company is owned or controlled by, or (3) is under common ownership with the Company. Any 
entity in which the Company has ownership of five percent (5%) or more of the equity 
ownership (either voting, control, or value) or in which the Company has actual working control, 
in whatever manner exercised, is an Affiliate. Both the entity owned or controlled and the entity 
owning or controlling are Affiliates of each other. 

1.2 “Cable Television Service” means the one-way transmission to subscribers of video 
programing or other programing service and subscriber interaction, if any, which is required for 
the selection or use of the video programming or other programming service. 

1.3 “City” means the City of Marysville, Washington, and all the territory within its present 
and future boundaries and including any area over which the City exercises jurisdiction. 

1.4 “City Codes” means the Marysville Municipal Code (“MMC”) and all ordinances, 
resolutions, standards, regulations, procedures, and policies of the City, all as currently existing 
or as hereafter amended or adopted. 

1.5 “Communications Services” means telecommunications services or capacity provided by 
the Company using its Facilities, either directly or by its Affiliates, including, but not limited to, 
the transmission of voice, data, or other electronic information by wire, fiber optic cable, or other 
similar means. For purposes of this subsection, “information” means knowledge or intelligence 
represented by writing, signs, signals, pictures, sounds, or any other symbols. Communications 
Services does not include Cable Television Service or Wireless Telecommunications Services. 

1.6 “Facilities” means the Company’s telecommunications system constructed and operated 
within the City’s Rights-of-Way. Facilities shall include all wires, fiber optic cables, cables, 
amplifiers, conductors, lines, conduits, ducts, manholes, pedestals, meters, and any associated 
converters, equipment, or other appurtenances and facilities for the purpose of providing 
Communications Services under this Franchise. 

1.7 “Franchise” means the nonexclusive rights, privileges, obligations, and authority granted 
to the Company under this Ordinance. The Franchise may also be referred to as the “Master 
Permit” or the “Agreement.” 

1.8 “Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, association, joint venture, 
organization, or entity of any kind and the lawful trustee, successor, assignee, transferee, or 
personal representative thereof. 

1.9 “Rights-of-Way” means the surface of any land and any space above or below the land 
previously or hereafter acquired by or dedicated to the public or the City for the purposes, in 
whole or in part, of public travel. Rights-of-Way includes, but is not limited to, public streets, 
roadways, highways, avenues, lanes, alleys, bridges, sidewalks, easements, and similar public 
property and areas located within the City and under the City’s jurisdiction. Rights-of-Way, for 
purposes of this Franchise, shall only include those areas that have been improved and/or 
maintained by the City. Rights-of-Way shall not include State highways. Rights-of-Way shall not 

Item 12 - 3

99



include structures, including poles and conduits, located within the Rights-of-Way. 

1.10 “Wireless Telecommunications Services” means the wireless transmission of voice, data, 
or other electronic information by antennas and radio units whether macrocells, microcells, small 
cells, distributed antenna systems, or other similar means and associated support facilities 
including towers, poles, and base stations. Wireless Telecommunications Services does not 
include providing Communications Services to a site for connection to Wireless 
Telecommunications Services. 

Section 2. Grant of Franchise. 

2.1 The City hereby grants the Company a Franchise to use and occupy Rights-of-Way for 
the purpose of providing Communications Services, including, without limitation, the right to 
construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, and remove Facilities in accordance with this 
Ordinance. The Company and the City recognize that the Company intends, pursuant to this 
Franchise, to operate and maintain a wired telecommunications system. This Franchise does not 
grant the Company the right to utilize Rights-of-Way to construct, operate, maintain, repair, 
replace, or remove any facilities to provide Wireless Telecommunications Services. However, 
pursuant to this Franchise, the Company may provide Communications Services as backhaul 
support for Wireless Telecommunications Services located on private property or otherwise 
constructed, operated, or maintained pursuant to a valid franchise from the City. In order to 
provide any other services over the Facilities, the Company shall first be required to obtain any 
additional governmental authorizations required by law. This Franchise replaces and supersedes 
the OVS Franchise. 

2.2 In exercising its rights and obligations under this Franchise, the Company shall comply 
with all lawfully enacted City Codes. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this 
Franchise and the City Codes, the more restrictive provision shall control. In addition, in 
exercising its rights and obligations under this Franchise, the Company shall comply with all 
applicable State and Federal laws and regulations. 

2.3 The provisions of this Franchise are subject to the lawful exercise of the City’s police 
powers upon reasonable notice to the Company and nothing contained herein shall be deemed to 
affect the City’s authority to exercise its police powers to the fullest extent afforded by the 
Washington State constitution and State law. In accepting this Franchise, the Company 
acknowledges that its rights hereunder are subject to the police power of the City to adopt and 
enforce, from time to time and in a manner the City deems reasonable, general ordinances 
necessary for the safety, health, and welfare of the public. This Franchise shall not be interpreted 
to prevent the City from imposing additional lawful conditions, including additional 
compensation for the use of the Rights-of-Way should the Company provide services other than 
Communications Services. 

2.4 This Franchise does not grant the Company any vested right to use any portion of the 
Rights-of-Way except for locations approved by the City and then subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Franchise and the City’s approval. 

2.5 The authority granted herein to the Company is a limited authorization to construct, 

Item 12 - 4

100



operate, maintain, repair, replace, and remove Facilities in the Rights-of-Way to provide 
Communications Services and shall not include or be a substitute for: 

 2.5.1 Any other permit or authorization required for the privilege of transacting and 
carrying on a business within the City, including, but not limited to, a City business license; or 

 2.5.2 Any permit, agreement, authorization, or condition that may be required by the 
City for using the Rights-of-Way in connection with operations on or in the Rights-of-Way or 
public property, such as Rights-of-Way use permits and approved traffic control plans; or 

 2.5.3 Any permit, agreement, or authorization for occupying any other property of the 
City or private entity to which access is not specifically granted by this Franchise, including, but 
not limited to, permits, agreements, or authorizations for placing devices on poles, in conduits, or 
in or on other structures. 

2.6 This Franchise only conveys limited rights and interests as to the Rights-of-Way in which 
the City has an actual interest. The Franchise is not a warranty of title or interest, does not 
provide the Company with any representation as to any location of a Right-of-Way or the nature 
of the City’s interest in any Rights-of-Way, and does not provide the Company with any interest 
in any particular location within the Rights-of-Way. The Franchise does not grant the Company 
any right to install any Facilities on any City property other than Rights-of-Way, upon any 
private property without the owner’s consent, or upon any public or privately owned utility poles 
or conduits. To the extent the Company’s use of a Right-of-Way is inconsistent with the terms, 
conditions, or provisions by which the Right-of-Way was created, dedicated, or is presently used, 
the Franchise grants the Company no right to construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, or 
remove Facilities from that Right-of-Way. 

2.7 This Franchise shall not be construed as to deprive the City of any rights or privileges 
that the City now has or may hereafter have to regulate the use and control of the Rights-of-Way 
and public property. Nothing in this Franchise shall limit or expand the City’s right of eminent 
domain under State law and the Company acknowledges that its use of the space in the Rights-
of-Way, but not the actual Facilities themselves, shall have no value for purposes of eminent 
domain compensation. If at any time the City exercises its authority to vacate all or any portion 
of any Right-of-Way pursuant to this Franchise, the City shall not be liable for any damages or 
loss to the Company because of such vacation. The City may, upon ninety (90) days written 
notice to the Company, terminate this Franchise with respect to any such vacated area. 

2.8 The rights and privileges granted under this Franchise are not exclusive. The Franchise is 
subject to all prior rights, interests, easements, or licenses granted by the City or its predecessors 
to any Person to use any property, Rights-of-Way, easement, right, interest, or license. The City 
reserves the right to approve the use of Rights-of-Way for any purpose not incompatible with the 
Company’s rights under this Franchise. The City reserves the right to grant additional franchises 
upon the same or similar terms at any time and to any Person, provided, however, that such 
additional grants will not operate to materially modify, revoke, or terminate any rights granted to 
the Company under this Franchise. The grant of any additional franchise alone shall not 
constitute a modification, revocation, or termination of rights previously granted to the 
Company. 

Item 12 - 5

101



2.9 This Franchise does not establish any priority for the use of the Rights-of-Way by the 
Company or by any present or future franchisees or other permit holders. In the event of any 
dispute as to the priority of use of the Rights-of-Way, the first priority shall be to the City in the 
performance of its various functions, the second priority shall be to the public generally, and 
thereafter the City, in exercise of its powers, in a reasonable and non-discriminatory manner shall 
determine priority between users. 

2.10 To the extent that any of the Rights-of-Way within the City are a part of the State 
highway system and are governed by the provisions of Chapter 47.24 RCW and applicable 
Washington State Department of Transportation regulations, the Company shall comply with 
said requirements in addition to City Codes. The Company shall correct any noncompliant 
Facilities identified by the City or by any other local, State, or Federal governmental entity. 

Section 3. Term. 

3.1 Term. This Franchise shall be in effect from the date of acceptance, as set forth in section 
17, until December 31, 2022, unless earlier terminated or revoked. 

3.2 Renewal. This Franchise will automatically renew for an additional five (5) year period, 
upon the same terms and conditions, unless either party, prior to October 1, 2022, informs the 
other in writing that it wants the Franchise to expire on December 31, 2022. 

3.3 Failure to Renew. If neither party indicates its desire for the Franchise to expire as 
provided in section 3.2 and the parties fail to formally renew this Franchise prior to December 
31, 2027, the Franchise will automatically renew month to month until formally renewed or until 
either party gives written notice, at least ninety (90) days in advance, of its intent to have the 
Franchise expire. 

Section 4. Use of Rights-of-Way. 

4.1 Installation of Facilities. Subject to the City Codes, the Company may construct, operate, 
maintain, repair, replace, and remove its Facilities in, over, under, across, and along the City’s 
Rights-of-Way, as necessary and appurtenant to the provision of its Communications Services. 

4.2 Site Specific Agreements. Prior to constructing, installing, or operating any Facility on 
any City owned structure within a Right-of-Way or installing any Facility which will occupy, 
more than de minimisly (i.e. a fiber optic cable protruding), the surface of a Right-of-Way (such 
as utility poles, monopoles, cell towers, vaults, power supplies, etc.), the Company must first 
enter into a site specific agreement with the City in a form agreed to by the Parties. The City has 
sole discretion to enter into a site specific agreement and may refuse to do so, among other 
reasons, where another facility is available for co-location or where a Facility at the given 
location is not necessary to the Company’s provision of Communications Services. 

4.3 Permits Required for Construction. Prior to doing any work in the Rights-of-Way, the 
Company shall apply for, and obtain, appropriate permits from the City including Right-of-Way 
permits and construction permits. As part of the permitting or approval process, the City may 
impose, in addition to the requirements contained in this Franchise, such reasonable conditions 
and regulations as are necessary: (1) to protect any structures in the Rights-of-Way and the 

Item 12 - 6

102



public’s use of the Rights-of-Way for pedestrian and vehicular traffic; (2) to provide for the 
proper restoration of the Rights-of-Way; and (3) to protect the public health, safety, and welfare. 

 4.3.1 Applications for any required permits or authorizations shall be made, processed, 
and approved in accordance with applicable City Codes in effect at the time of application. The 
Company shall assure that all applications, whether submitted by the Company, its employees, 
agents, or contractors clearly identifies that the work is being done for the benefit of the 
Company and pursuant to this Franchise. 

 4.3.2 All permits or authorizations issued for the Company’s Facilities or related to its 
Communications Services are subject to the provisions of this Franchise and the Company, its 
employees, agents, or contractors shall comply with the provisions of this Franchise whether 
incorporated into such permit or authorization or not. 

 4.3.3 The Company shall pay all generally applicable fees for the permit or 
authorization in accordance with the City Codes in effect at the time of application. 

 4.3.4 The City may require the Company’s Facilities be installed at a particular time, at a 
particular place, or in a particular manner as a condition of access to a particular Right-of-Way 
and may deny access if the Company is not willing to comply with the City’s requirements. 

 4.3.5 If the City reasonably determines that the work covered by an application presents 
a potential for disruption of traffic, injury, damage, or expense to the City if not correctly and 
timely completed, the City may require the Company to provide an assurance device, in a form 
acceptable to the City, prior to issuance of a permit or approval. Such project specific assurance 
device will be in addition to any general assurance devices required by this Franchise. 

 4.3.6 The City, following advance written notice of not less than thirty (30) days, may 
require the Company, at its own expense, to modify or remove any Facilities not authorized by 
this Franchise or installed without prior City approval. The City may remove the Facilities at the 
Company’s sole expense if the Company fails to do so within the time period established by the 
City. 

4.4 General Standards. 

 4.4.1 All work authorized and required hereunder shall be done in a safe, thorough, and 
workmanlike manner. All work authorized and required hereunder shall comply with the City 
permit or authorization, City Codes, and Federal and State law and regulations. 

 4.4.2 All installation of the Facilities shall be durable and installed in accordance with 
good engineering practices and industry standards in effect on the date the permits and 
authorizations are issued for the affected Facilities. 

 4.4.3 The Company, its employees, agents, and contractors shall comply with all 
applicable Federal, State, and City safety requirements, rules, regulations, laws, and practices in 
effect on the date the permits and authorizations are issued for the affected Facilities. By way of 
illustration and not limitation, this includes the National Electric Code, National Electrical Safety 
Code, and Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Standards. 

Item 12 - 7

103



 4.4.4 The Company represents that it is familiar with Chapter 19.122 RCW and 
understands and will comply with local procedures and practices relating to the one call locator 
service program. The Company and the City shall each comply with their respective obligations 
pursuant to Chapter 19.122 RCW. 

4.5 Coordination. The Company agrees to cooperate with the City’s Public Works 
Department to identify and evaluate the portions of Rights-of-Way necessary for the Company to 
serve its customers. Priority shall be given to use of those portions of Rights-of-Way where 
construction can be coordinated with other City and private construction activities, which will 
least impact the existing condition of the Rights-of-Way, will least impact traffic during 
construction, and will least impact adjacent neighborhoods during construction and after 
installation. Sources for planned City and private construction activities include the City’s 
Capital Facilities Plan, Comprehensive Plan, Comprehensive Utility Plan, written construction 
and planning schedules, and pending development, right-of-way, and construction applications. 

 4.5.1 Thirty (30) days after acceptance of this Franchise and annually thereafter, the 
Company shall submit to the City’s Public Works Department a plan that shows all major work 
anticipated to be done in the Rights-of-Way for up to the next five (5) years, to the extent that the 
development of such plans is reasonably advanced. The City will utilize the plan to identify 
conflicts and opportunities for coordination between users of the Rights-of-Way. The Company’s 
plan shall be informational only and shall not obligate the Company to undertake any particular 
project or work. The Company shall identify any portions of its plan that the Company in good 
faith believes is not subject to disclosure under Chapter 42.56 RCW, shall mark such portions 
“Confidential,” and shall provide a citation to the statutory basis for non-disclosure. The City 
will exercise its sole legal judgment in responding to a public records request. The City will 
provide the Company with notification of any anticipated disclosure at least five (5) business 
days prior to such disclosure to provide the Company an opportunity to obtain a court order 
preventing disclosure in the event the City intends to disclose a portion of the Company’s plan 
marked “Confidential.” 

 4.5.2 The City adopts a Capital Facilities Plan from time to time, which identifies the 
roadway projects that the City anticipates constructing during the term of the Capital Facilities 
Plan. The City will provide the Company a copy of the City’s Capital Facilities Plan after 
acceptance of this Franchise and after adoption of an updated plan during the term of this 
Franchise. 

 4.5.3 Within thirty (30) days of acceptance of this Franchise, the Company shall 
provide the City an email address for the City to add to an email list. The City will communicate 
substantial (more than 500 lineal feet) roadway projects to this email list in order to provide the 
Company an opportunity to plan to install Facilities with minimal interruption. 

 4.5.4 Access to Open Trenches. 

  4.5.4.1 The Company will be entitled to reasonable access to open City utility 
trenches, provided that such access does not interfere with the City’s placement of utilities or 
increase the cost to the City thereby. The Company shall pay the City the actual cost to the City 
resulting from providing the Company access to an open trench, including without limitation the 

Item 12 - 8

104



pro rata share of the costs of access to an open trench and any costs associated with the delay of 
the completion of a public works project. 

  4.5.4.2 The Company shall provide the City and other utility providers or 
franchise holders access to its open trenches, provided that: (1) such access does not interfere 
with the Company’s Facilities, (2) the other utility provider or franchise holder agrees to 
reasonable terms of use, including reasonable costs or fees, and (3) the other utility provider or 
franchise holder has agreed to similar terms to provide access to its trenches. 

  4.5.4.3 The City will use reasonable efforts to include the Company in any 
platting process within the City and will exercise reasonable efforts to include, as a condition of 
issuing a permit for open trenching to any utility or developer, that: (a) the utility or developer 
give the Company at least fourteen (14) days advance written notice of the availability of the 
open trench and (b) that the utility or developer provide the Company with reasonable access to 
the open trench. 

 4.5.5 If the Company receives email notice of a substantial roadway project and fails to 
coordinate installation of its Facilities and thereafter seeks to trench, excavate, bore, or cut the 
street or overlay within five (5) years, the Public Works Director or designee may require 
additional roadway restoration. The Company agrees that such additional required roadway 
restoration may include full-width patching extending five (5) feet beyond the Company’s 
disruption of the Right-of-Way. 

 4.5.6 Subject to receiving reasonable advance written notice, the Company shall have 
the opportunity to have a representative attend and participate in meetings of the City regarding 
Rights-of-Way issues that may impact the Company’s Facilities. 

 4.5.7 In all cases, the Company shall utilize existing poles and conduit wherever 
possible and shall not install new poles. Where the Company will place Facilities underground, 
and whenever reasonably practical, the Company shall utilize joint trenching and shared bores or 
cuts and shall work with other providers (such as telecommunications, cable, gas, electric 
utilities, or the City), licensees, permittees, and franchisees to reduce as far as possible the 
number of Right-of-Way disturbances. 

 4.5.8 To the extent practicable, the Company will install its Facilities in a manner that 
allows other users to collocate with the Company. This includes installing larger diameter 
conduit where financially reasonable and making the conduit available for additional facilities 
upon reasonable terms. 

 4.5.9 The Public Works Director, or designee (e.g., the City Engineer), will be 
authorized to approve the use by the Company of such Rights-of-Way requested by the 
Company, and the final decision regarding the use of the Rights-of-Way will remain in the sole 
discretion of the Public Works Director or designee in accordance with Federal and State law. 

4.6 Emergencies. 

 4.6.1 City’s Direction. During unforeseen emergencies that create a threat to the public 
health, safety, or welfare, the City may require the Company to promptly remove, relocate, 

Item 12 - 9

105



adjust, or secure its Facilities, at the Company’s sole expense. If the Company fails, neglects, or 
refuses to promptly remove, relocate, adjust, or secure its Facilities, the City may perform such 
work or cause it to be done at the Company’s sole expense. The City will bill the Company for 
any expense incurred within thirty (30) days and the Company shall promptly reimburse the City 
within thirty (30) days. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 
termination of the Franchise. 

 4.6.2 Company’s Determination. In the event that the Company determines that 
emergency repairs are necessary, the Company shall immediately notify the City of the need for 
such repairs. The Company may thereafter initiate such emergency repairs, and shall apply for 
appropriate permits, within forty-eight (48) hours after the emergency is abated. 

4.7 Location of Facilities. 

 4.7.1 As Built. The Company shall provide to the City upon request and at no cost, a 
copy of all as-built plans, maps, and records, including revealing the final location and condition 
of its Facilities within the Rights-of-Way. Such records shall be provided in a format reasonably 
acceptable to the City. 

 4.7.2 GIS Mapping. The Company shall comply with City requirements regarding 
geographic information systems mapping for users of the Rights-of-Way that are in effect on the 
date the permits and authorizations are issued for the affected Facilities. 

4.8 Safety and Least Interference. 

 4.8.1 The Company shall construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, and remove 
Facilities in a manner that prevent injury to Persons, the City’s property, or property belonging to 
any other Person. The Company, at its own expense, shall construct, operate, maintain, repair, 
replace, or remove its Facilities to keep them in good repair and safe condition. Any work on the 
Facilities shall be properly safeguarded for the prevention of accidents. 

 4.8.2 The Company’s construction, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, or 
removal of its Facilities shall be done in a manner that causes the least interference with the 
public’s travel upon the Rights-of-Way and the rights and reasonable convenience of the abutting 
property owners and residents. The Company’s Facilities shall be constructed, operated, 
maintained, repaired, replaced, and removed in a manner that causes the least interference with 
sewers, water pipes, City facilities, or other facilities that may have been located in the Rights-
of-Way. The Company shall not interfere with travel and use of public places by persons during 
the construction, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, or removal of Facilities and shall 
not obstruct or impede traffic, except to the extent necessary. 

 4.8.3 The provisions of this section 4.8 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 
termination of the Franchise. 

4.9 Notice to Private Property Owners. Except in the case of an emergency involving public 
safety or an outage or service interruption to a large number of users, the Company shall give 
reasonable advance notice to private property owners or residents located within one hundred 

Item 12 - 10

106



feet (100’) of the Company’s Facilities of trenching work that may interfere with the use of 
property. 

4.10 Restoration of Property. 

 4.10.1 The Company, while constructing, operating, maintaining, repairing, replacing, or 
removing its Facilities shall exercise commercially reasonable efforts to protect adjoining public 
and private property from damage. If damage occurs, the Company shall coordinate directly with 
the property owner and shall resolve the issue, consistent with industry practice, in a reasonable 
timeframe. 

 4.10.2 Whenever the Company disturbs or damages any Rights-of-Way or adjoining 
public or private property the Company shall promptly restore, at the Company’s own cost, the 
Rights-of-Way or property to at least its prior condition, excepting normal wear and tear. The 
Company shall use its best efforts to complete the restoration as soon as practicably possible, 
considering the nature of the work to be performed, but in no event more than thirty (30) days 
following completion of the work. 

 4.10.3 The Company shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair, or reconstruction 
of any of its work in the Right-of-Way, in a condition acceptable to the City, until the earlier of 
(a) two years from the completion of the work or (b) until the Right-of-Way in which the work is 
located is reconstructed, repaved, or resurfaced by the City. In no event will the Company be 
obligated to address normal wear and tear or other conditions unrelated to a failure of its work or 
materials. The Company shall endeavor to complete the maintenance, repair, or reconstruction 
within the time specified by the City, which shall not be less than seventy-two (72) hours. If the 
Company fails to maintain, repair, or reconstruct the Right-of-Way to the City’s satisfaction 
within the time specified by the City, the City may cause the maintenance, repair, or 
reconstruction to be done at the Company’s sole expense. The City will bill the Company for any 
expense incurred within thirty (30) days and the Company shall promptly reimburse the City 
within thirty (30) days. 

 4.10.4 Whenever a new street is completed or an overlay of an existing street has been 
completed within five (5) years of a newly proposed trench, excavation, bore, or cut, additional 
roadway restoration shall be required as determined by the Public Works Director or designee. 
The Company agrees that such additional required roadway restoration may include full-width 
patching extending five (5) feet beyond the Company’s disruption of the Right-of-Way. 

 4.10.5 The provisions of this section 4.10 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 
termination of the Franchise. 

4.11 Undergrounding. The Company shall place underground, at the Company’s expense 
unless stated otherwise, all of its Facilities that are located or are to be located above or within 
the Rights-of-Way of the City in the following cases: 

 (a) All other existing utilities are required to be placed underground by Federal or State 
law or regulation or the City Codes; 

Item 12 - 11

107



 (b) The Company is unable to get pole attachment agreement permits from pole owners; 

 (c) Underground easements are obtained from developers of new residential areas; or 

 (d) When required by City Codes or applicable State or federal law. 

 4.11.1 Whenever the City may require the undergrounding of all aerial utilities, except 
electrical utilities, the Company shall underground its aerial Facilities in the manner specified by 
the City, concurrently with and in the area of the other affected utilities. The location of any such 
relocated and underground Facilities will be approved by the City, following consultation with 
the Company. Where other utilities are present and involved in the undergrounding project, the 
Company shall only be required to pay its fair share of the common costs borne by all utilities, in 
addition to the costs specifically attributable to the undergrounding of the Company’s Facilities. 
“Common costs” shall include necessary costs not specifically attributable to the undergrounding 
of any particular facility, such as costs for common trenching and utility vaults. “Fair share” 
shall be determined for a project on the basis of the number and size of all other utility facilities 
being undergrounded. 

 4.11.2 If an ordinance is passed creating a local improvement district which involves 
placing underground all utilities, except electrical utilities, including the Company’s Facilities 
which are currently located overhead, the Company shall participate in such underground project 
and shall remove poles, cables, overhead wires, and other Facilities within such district if 
requested to do so and place such Facilities underground. If such undergrounding of the 
Company’s Facilities is part of such a project, the costs thereof shall be included in such local 
improvement district. 

 4.11.3 In those areas and portions of the City where the transmission or distribution 
facilities of any utilities providing telephone service and any utilities providing electric service 
are underground or hereafter are placed underground, then the Company shall likewise construct, 
operate, and maintain all of its transmission and distribution Facilities underground. Amplifiers 
and connectors in the Company’s transmission and distribution lines may be in appropriate 
enclosures upon or above the surface of the ground in locations approved by the City, provided 
that the Company and the City enter into a site specific agreement as detailed in section 4.2. 
Upon sufficient notice, work shall be done at the same time as other facilities that are placed 
underground and all work shall be done consistent with City Codes and to minimize impact on 
streets and neighborhoods. 

 4.11.4 The Company shall use conduit or its functional equivalent to the greatest extent 
possible for undergrounding. Cable and conduit shall be utilized which meets the highest 
industry standards for electronic performance and resistance to interference or damage from 
environmental factors. The Company shall use and construct, in conjunction and coordination 
with other utility companies or providers, common trenches for underground construction 
whenever available and possible. 

 4.11.5 The provisions of this section 4.11 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 
termination of the Franchise. 

Item 12 - 12

108



4.12 Removal or Relocation 

 4.12.1 Safety and Free Passage. If the City, in its sole discretion, determines that an 
emergency exists or that a Facility unduly burdens or endangers the safe and free passage of 
traffic on the Rights-of-Way, the Company shall modify, replace, relocate, remove, or disconnect 
the Facilities in the time specified by the City’s notice. If the Company fails to modify, replace, 
relocate, remove, or disconnect the Facilities within the time specified by the City or if the City 
determines that the City must immediately undertake the modification, replacement, relocation, 
removal, or disconnection, the City may cause the modification, replacement, relocation, 
removal, or disconnection to be done at the Company’s sole expense. The City will bill the 
Company for any expense incurred within thirty (30) days and the Company shall promptly 
reimburse the City within thirty (30) days. 

 4.12.2 Movement for City Purposes. For any City project, the City may require the 
Company to modify, replace, relocate, remove, or disconnect its Facilities at the Company’s sole 
expense, so long as the requirements are applied in a non-discriminatory manner. The City will 
make a reasonable effort to provide the Company with an alternate location within the Rights-of-
Way. The City will endeavor to provide at least sixty (60) days written notice to the Company 
prior to the modification, replacement, relocation, removal, or disconnection of the Company’s 
Facilities and will attempt to minimize the impact on the Company’s Facilities. If the Company 
fails to modify, replace, relocate, remove, or disconnect the Facilities within the time specified 
by the City, the City may cause the modification, replacement, relocation, or removal to be done 
at the Company’s sole expense. The City will bill the Company for any expense incurred, 
including any costs or expenses incurred by the City due to the Company’s delay within thirty 
(30) days and the Company shall promptly reimburse the City within thirty (30) days. 

 4.12.3 Movement for Other Franchise Holders. If any removal, replacement, 
modification or disconnection of the Company’s Facilities is required to accommodate the 
construction, operation, or repair of the facilities or equipment of another City franchise holder 
or user of the Rights-of-Way, the Company shall, after at least thirty (30) days advance written 
notice, take action to effect the necessary changes requested by the responsible Person. The 
Company may require that the costs associated with the removal, replacement, modification, or 
disconnection of the Facilities be paid by the benefited Person, and the Company may require a 
reasonable deposit of the estimated payment in advance. 

 4.12.4 When no longer needed to provide its Communications Services, the Company 
shall not remove any underground Facilities that require excavation, trenching, or other opening 
of the Rights-of-Way to remove the Facilities. The Company may remove any underground 
Facilities from the Rights-of-Way installed in a manner such that the Facility can be removed 
without excavation, trenching, or other opening of the Rights-of-Way. 

 4.12.5 The provisions of this section 4.12 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 
termination of the Franchise. 

4.13 Temporary Changes for Other Permittees. At the request of any Person holding a valid 
permit and upon reasonable advance written notice, the Company shall temporarily raise, lower, 

Item 12 - 13

109



or remove its Facilities as necessary to permit the moving of a building, vehicle, equipment, or 
other work. The expense of such temporary changes must be paid by the permit holder and the 
Company may require a reasonable deposit of the estimated payment in advance. 

4.14 Reservation of City’s Use of Rights-of-Way. Nothing in this Franchise shall prevent the 
City from constructing sewers, grading, paving, repairing, or altering any Rights-of-Way, laying 
down, repairing, or removing water mains, or constructing or establishing any other public work 
or improvement. All such work shall be done, insofar as practicable, so as not to obstruct, injure, 
or prevent the use and operation of the Company’s Facilities. 

4.15 Tree Trimming. To the extent a City owned tree interferes with the Company’s Facilities, 
the Company may prune or cause to be pruned, using proper pruning practices, the City’s tree 
upon receiving the City’s approval, which will not unreasonably we withheld. In the event of an 
emergency, the Company may trim the tree and thereafter provide the City notice of the 
emergency and the tree trimming with forty-eight (48) hours. 

4.16 Inspection of Construction and Facilities. The City may inspect any of the Company’s 
Facilities after forty-eight (48) hours written notice, or, in case of an emergency, upon demand 
without prior notice. 

4.17 Work by Agents, Contractors, and Subcontractors. The Company’s agents, contractors, 
and subcontractors shall be properly licensed and bonded in accordance with the City Codes and 
State law. Work by agents, contractors, and subcontractors is subject to the same restrictions, 
limitations, and conditions as if the work were performed by the Company. The Company shall 
be responsible for all work performed by its agents, contractors, and subcontractors as if the 
work were performed by the Company. The Company shall ensure that all such work is 
performed in compliance with this Franchise and applicable laws and shall be jointly and 
severally liable for all damages and correcting all damage caused by any agents, contractors, or 
subcontractors. The Company is responsible for ensuring that agents, contractors, and 
subcontractors are familiar with the requirements of this Franchise and applicable laws. 

Section 5. Fees. 

5.1 Recovery of Costs. 

 5.1.1 The Company shall be subject to a one-time administrative fee of two thousand 
dollars ($2,000.00) for the City’s costs relating to the administration of this Franchise. The 
Company agrees to pay such administrative fee upon acceptance of this Franchise. 

 5.1.2 The Company shall reimburse the City within thirty (30) days of receiving an 
itemized billing from the City for incurred costs, itemized by project, for the Company’s 
proportionate share of all actual, identified expenses incurred by the City as a result of the 
presence of the Company’s Facilities in the Rights-of-Way. This may include the City’s 
expenses in planning, constructing, installing, repairing, altering, or maintaining any City 
facility. Additionally, the Company shall reimburse the City’s actual expenses incurred by the 
City that are directly related to receiving and approving a permit, license, or franchise and to 
inspecting plans and construction pursuant to this Franchise. 

Item 12 - 14

110



5.2 Allowable Taxes. Nothing provided herein shall exempt or otherwise limit the 
Company’s obligation to pay any applicable tax required by the Marysville Municipal Code or 
any other applicable law or regulation, so long as such tax is permitted by federal and/or 
Washington law. The Company’s failure to pay any permitted applicable tax required by the 
Marysville Municipal Code or any other applicable law or regulation shall constitute a material 
breach of the Franchise. 

5.3 In the event that any payment due to the City under this Franchise, except for allowable 
taxes, is not received by the City by the date due, interest will be charged from the due date at the 
rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum.  

5.4 Acceptance of Payment. No acceptance of any payment by the City shall be construed as 
an accord that the amount paid is, in fact, the correct amount, nor shall such acceptance of 
payment be construed as a release of any claim which the City may have for further or additional 
sums payable under the provisions of this Franchise. The Company’s payment to the City shall 
not be construed as an acknowledgement by the Company that the amount paid is the correct 
amount and the Company reserves the right to subsequently seek to recover any amount of such 
payments in the event of an erroneous overpayment or for other lawful reasons. 

5.5 Pursuant to RCW 35.21.860, the City is precluded from imposing a franchise fee on a 
“telephone business” as defined in RCW 82.16.010 or a “service provider” as defined in RCW 
35.99.010, for the use of the City’s Rights-of-Way, except for actual administrative expenses 
directly related to the franchise or any tax authorized by State law. The Company hereby 
warrants that its operations, as authorized under this Franchise, are those of a “telephone 
business” as defined in RCW 82.16.010 or as a “service provider” as defined in RCW 35.99.010. 
As a result, the City currently lacks the authority to impose any franchise fee under the terms of 
this Franchise, other than as described herein. 

5.6 The City reserves its right to impose a franchise fee, in accordance with State or Federal 
law, on the Company for purposes other than to recover its administrative expenses, if the 
Company’s operations as authorized by this Franchise change such that the Company’s uses of 
the Rights-of-Way are not those of a “telephone business” as defined in RCW 82.16.010, those 
of a “service provider” as defined in RCW 35.99.010, or if State or Federal law is amended to 
allow the imposition of such a franchise fee. The City further reserves the right to require the 
Company to obtain a separate franchise for its use of City Rights-of-Way to the extent the 
Company’s use is not as a “telephone business” as defined in RCW 82.16.010 or as a “service 
provider” as defined in RCW 35.99.010. 

Section 6. Hold Harmless and Indemnity. 

6.1 The Company shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or 
suits including attorney fees, costs, and expert witness fees, arising out of or in connection with 
the construction, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, and removal of the Company’s 
Facilities or the Company’s actions under this Franchise, whether by the Company, its agents, 
servants, employees, contractors, subcontractors, or assigns, except for injuries and damages 
caused by the sole negligence of the City, its agents, officers, employees, volunteers, or assigns.  

Item 12 - 15

111



In the event any such claim or demand be presented to or filed with the City, the City shall 
promptly notify the Company thereof (and in any event prior to the date that Company’s rights to 
defend such claim or demand would be prejudiced), and the Company shall have the right, at its 
election and at its sole cost and expense, to settle and compromise such claim or demand, 
provided further, that in the event any suit or action is commenced against the City based upon 
any such claim or demand, it shall likewise promptly notify the Company thereof, and the 
Company shall have the right, at its election and its sole cost and expense, to settle and 
compromise such suit or action, or defend the same at its sole cost and expense, by attorneys of 
its own election. 

6.2 Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Franchise is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of the bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Company and 
the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers, the Company’s liability 
hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Company’s negligence. It is further specifically and 
expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Company’s waiver 
of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this 
indemnification. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  

6.3 To the extent not covered by the indemnity requirements of section 6.1, the Company 
shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, 
losses, or suits against, or payable by, the City arising out of or resulting from, directly or 
indirectly, the Company’s failure to remove, adjust, or relocate any of its Facilities in the Rights-
of-Way in a timely manner in accordance with any relocation required by the City. 

6.4 In various provisions of this Franchise, the Company is obligated to take action at the 
direction of the City within a specified time (see i.e. and without limitation, section 4.10.3.3, 
4.12.1) and the City is thereafter empowered to undertake such actions at the sole expense of the 
Company if the Company fails to accomplish the action within the specified time. The City’s 
actions in such a situation are termed the “City’s Remedial Actions” for purposes of this section. 
To the extent not covered by the indemnity requirements of section 6.1, the Company shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers 
harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits against, or payable by, the 
City arising out of or resulting from, directly or indirectly, the actions of the City, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents, and volunteers in undertaking the City’s Remedial Actions under 
this Franchise. The Company and the City agree that the Company’s indemnification for the 
City’s Remedial Actions includes indemnification for the sole negligence of the City, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents, and volunteers and further agree that this indemnification obligation 
is separate, additional to, and severable from the Company’s other indemnification obligations 
under this Franchise. 

6.5 The provisions of this section 6 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or termination of 
the Franchise. 

Section 7. Insurance. 

7.1 General Requirement. The Company shall procure and maintain for the duration of this 

Item 12 - 16

112



Franchise, and until all Facilities are removed from Rights-of-Way or abandoned in place, 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in 
connection with this Franchise or involve the Company. 

7.2 No Limitation. The Company’s maintenance of insurance, its scope of coverage, and 
limits as required herein shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Company to the 
coverage provided by such insurance or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy 
available at law or equity. 

7.3 Minimum Insurance Limits. The Company shall maintain in full force and effect, at its 
own cost and expense, each of the following policies of insurance: 

 7.3.1 Commercial General Liability insurance with limits of no less than Five Million 
dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence and Five Million dollars ($5,000,000) general aggregate for 
personal injury, bodily injury, and property damage. Coverage shall include but not be limited to: 
blanket contractual; premises; operations; independent contractors; stop gap liability; personal 
injury; products and completed operations; broad form property damage; explosion, collapse, 
and underground; and employer’s liability. 

 7.3.2 Commercial Automobile Liability insurance with minimum combined single limit 
of Five Million dollars ($5,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage with 
respect to each of the Company’s owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles assigned to or used in 
the construction, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, or removal of its Facilities. 

 7.3.3 Worker’s Compensation insurance as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of 
the State of Washington. 

 7.3.4 Excess Liability or Umbrella Coverage in the amount of Two Million dollars 
($2,000,000). 

7.4 Endorsements. The Company’s insurance policies, excluding Worker’s Compensation, 
are to contain, or be endorsed to contain:  

 7.4.1 That they shall be primary insurance as respect the City. Any insurance, self-
insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the 
Company’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 7.4.2 That the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be 
covered as, and have the rights of, additional insureds. 

7.5 Verification of Coverage. The Company shall furnish the City with original certificates 
and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the 
additional insured endorsements, evidencing the insurance requirements of the Franchise upon 
acceptance of this Franchise. The certificate for each insurance policy is to be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The certificate for each insurance policy 
must be on standard forms or on such forms as are consistent with standard industry practices. 
The Company hereby warrants that its insurance policies satisfy the requirements of this 
Franchise. 

Item 12 - 17

113



7.6 Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance obtained by the Company is to be placed with 
insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 

7.7 Notice of Cancellation. Provided that the insurer will do so, each policy of insurance shall 
provide that a written notice of cancellation shall be delivered to the City thirty (30) days in 
advance of the effective date thereof. Otherwise, the Company shall provide the City with 
written notice of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 
Regardless, the Company shall provide a replacement policy and shall maintain continuous, 
uninterrupted insurance coverage, in at least the amounts required, for the duration of the 
Franchise. 

7.8 The provisions of this section 7 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or termination of 
the Franchise. 

Section 8. Financial Assurances. 

8.1 Surety Bond. No later than thirty (30) days following acceptance of this Franchise, the 
Company shall establish and provide to the City, as security for the faithful performance by the 
Company of all of the provisions of this Franchise, a performance bond, from a surety or 
financial institution acceptable to the City, in the amount of twenty-five thousand dollars 
($25,000). 

 8.1.1 The performance bond may be drawn upon by the City for purposes including, but 
not limited to, the following: (1) failure of the Company to pay the City sums due under the 
terms of this Franchise; (2) reimbursement of costs borne by the City to correct Franchise 
violations not corrected by the Company; (3) monetary remedies or damages assessed against the 
Company due to default or breach of Franchise requirements. 

 8.1.2 The City will give the Company written notice of its intent to withdraw from the 
surety bond pursuant to this section. Within thirty (30) days following notice that such 
withdrawal has occurred, the Company shall restore the surety bond to the full amount required 
by section 8.1. The Company’s maintenance of the surety bond shall not be construed to excuse 
faithful performance by the Company, limit the liability of the Company to the amount of the 
surety bond, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any other remedy available at law or in 
equity. 

 8.1.3 The Company shall have the right to appeal to the Chief Administrative Official for 
reimbursement in the event the Company believes that the surety bond was drawn upon 
improperly. Any funds the City erroneously or wrongfully withdraws from the surety bond shall 
be returned to the Company. 

8.2 Other Bonds. The Company shall comply with any other bonding requirements provided 
for in the City Codes. Further, if the City reasonably determines that the work covered by an 
application presents a potential for disruption of traffic, injury, damage, or expense to the City if 
not correctly and timely completed, the City may require the Company to provide an assurance 
device, in a form acceptable to the City, prior to issuance of a permit or approval. 

Item 12 - 18

114



Section 9. Civil Penalties and Additional Relief. 

9.1 The Company, and any officers, directors, employees, agents, contractors, or other 
Person acting on behalf of the Company, failing to comply with any of the provisions of this 
Franchise, shall be subject to a civil penalty and abatement in the manner and to the extent 
provided for in the City Codes. 

9.2 In addition to any penalty which may be imposed by the City, and to the extent that a 
violation of this Franchise results in damage to City property or Rights-of-Way, the Company 
shall be responsible for the cost of restoring the affected area to its condition prior to the 
violation. 

9.3 Notwithstanding any other provision herein, the City and the Company may seek legal or 
equitable relief to enjoin any act or practice and abate any condition, which constitutes or will 
constitute a violation of the applicable provisions of this Franchise, when civil or criminal 
penalties are inadequate to effect compliance. In addition to the penalties otherwise set forth in 
this section 9, the Company and the City acknowledge that any pattern of violations with respect 
to any material provision of this Franchise, consisting of three (3) or more such violations within 
a period of twelve (12) consecutive months, may further result in the revocation of any Rights-
of-Way use agreement, Rights-of-Way use permit, facilities lease, other such authorization, or 
this Franchise. 

9.4 Nothing in this section shall be construed as limiting any remedies the City or the 
Company may have, at law or in equity, for enforcement of this Franchise. 

Section 10. Modifications of Terms and Conditions. 

The City and the Company hereby reserve the right to alter, amend, or modify the terms and 
conditions of this Franchise and any permit issued thereunder upon written agreement by both 
parties to such alteration, amendment, or modification. The City Council of the City of 
Marysville must approve any alteration, amendment, or modification of this Ordinance prior to it 
being signed by the City. 

Section 11. Abandonment or Non-Use of Facilities. 

11.1 In the event this Franchise expires, is terminated, or the Company discontinues 
commercial use of any Facility located in the Rights-of-Way for a period of one hundred eighty 
(180) consecutive days or longer, the City may, upon written notice to the Company, require 
removal of any or all such Facilities from the Rights-of-Way within ninety (90) days. If the 
Company fails to remove the specified Facilities within the time specified, the City may cause 
removal of the specified Facilities at the Company’s sole expense. The City will bill the 
Company for any expense incurred within thirty (30) days and the Company shall promptly 
reimburse the City within thirty (30) days. 

11.2 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Franchise, the City may permit, by written 
notice, the Company to abandon any or all Facilities in place. The City’s written notice will 
specify a date certain, no earlier than ninety (90) days after the date of the notice, prior to which 
the Company may remove its Facilities in accordance with this Franchise and after which the 

Item 12 - 19

115



Facilities will be considered abandoned in place. Upon being abandoned in place, the Facilities 
shall become the property of the City and the Company shall submit to the City an instrument, in 
writing and approved by the City Attorney, transferring ownership of the Facilities to the City. 

11.3 The provisions of this section 11 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or termination 
of this Franchise. 

Section 12. Severability. 

If any term, provision, condition, or portion of this Franchise shall be held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional for any reason, the portion declared invalid shall be severable and the remaining 
portions of this Franchise shall be enforceable unless to do so would be inequitable or would 
result in a material change in the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder. 

Section 13. Transferability. 

The rights and privileges granted to the Company as provided in this Franchise may only be 
assigned or transferred to another Person with the prior written approval of the City, which will 
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. However, the Company, following thirty 
(30) days written notice to the City, may assign this Franchise to an Affiliate, provided the 
Affiliate has the legal, technical, financial, and other qualifications to own, hold, construct, 
operate, maintain, repair, replace, and remove the Facilities for the purpose of providing 
Communications Services and agrees, in writing, to be fully liable to the City for compliance 
with all terms and conditions of this Franchise. The City is under no obligation to investigate the 
Company’s then existing compliance with the Franchise and the failure of the City to insist on 
full compliance prior to transfer does not waive any right to insist on full compliance thereafter.   

Section 14. General Enforcement. 

In the event that the City believes that the Company has not complied with any terms of the 
Franchise or the City Codes, other than sections 4.6, 4.10.3, or 4.12.1, the City may discuss the 
violation with the Company or may issue a written notice to cure the default. The City’s notice to 
cure the default will include the actions to be taken to remedy the default and the timeframe, 
which shall be no less than thirty (30) days, within which the Company should accomplish the 
actions. The Company will thereafter have the time specified in the notice to cure the default to 
correct the default or, if the Company believes that the actions cannot be taken within the time 
specified, respond with a timeline for diligently accomplishing the actions and diligently 
complete those actions on the identified timeline. 

Section 15. Termination. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, this Franchise may be terminated, without penalty or 
further liability, as follows: 

 (a) Upon thirty (30) days written notice by the City if the Company fails to cure a 
default for payment of amounts due under this Franchise or the City Codes within that thirty (30) 
day period, provided that the City may not terminate for the non-payment of taxes under section 
5.2 if the Company provides written notice to the City that it contests the legality of the taxes 

Item 12 - 20

116



imposed and provides a good faith basis for challenging the legality of the taxes imposed under 
section 5.2; 

 (b) Upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party if the other party commits a non-
monetary material default and fails to commence curing such default within that thirty (30) day 
period, or such longer period as may be required to diligently complete a cure commenced within 
that thirty (30) day period; or 

 (c) Upon ninety (90) days written notice by the Company for economic reasons or if the 
location or the Facilities are or become unacceptable under the Company’s design or engineering 
specifications for its communications system. 

Section 16. Effective Date. 

16.1 This Franchise and the rights, privileges, and authority granted hereunder and the 
contractual relationship established hereby shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
effective date of this Franchise. 

16.2 The effective date of this Franchise shall be the date of acceptance as specified in section 
17, but in no event prior to five days after publication of this Ordinance by summary. 

Section 17. Franchise Acceptance. 

Within forty-five (45) days of the adoption of this Ordinance by the City Council, the Company 
shall execute and return to the City two fully executed acceptance forms, in the form attached to 
this Ordinance. In the event the Company fails to accept this Franchise, the Franchise shall be 
null and void and the Company shall have no rights or privileges hereunder. 

Section 18. Miscellaneous. 

18.1 This Franchise constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties 
and supersedes all offers, negotiations, and other agreements concerning the subject matter 
contained herein. Any amendments to this Franchise must be in writing, approved by the City 
Council, and executed by both parties. 

18.2 This Franchise shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the permitted successors 
and permitted assignees of the respective parties. 

18.3  Any notice or demand required to be given herein shall be made by United States mail or 
reliable overnight courier to the address of the respective parties set forth below: 

To the City: To the Company: 

City of Marysville 
Attn: Chief Administrative Officer 
1049 State Avenue 
Marysville, WA  98270 
 

Astound Broadband, LLC 
d/b/a Wave 
Attn: Byron Springer, EVP 
401 Kirkland Parkplace, Suite 500 
Kirkland, WA  98033 

Item 12 - 21

117



With a required copy to: 

City of Marysville 
Attn: City Attorney 
1049 State Avenue 
Marysville, WA  98270 

 

The City or the Company may from time to time designate any other address for this purpose by 
written notice to the other party. All notices hereunder shall be deemed received upon actual 
receipt. 

18.4 This Franchise shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington. 

18.5 In any case where the approval or consent of one party hereto is required, requested, or 
otherwise to be given under this Franchise, such party shall not unreasonably delay or withhold 
its approval or consent. 

18.6 All amendments and exhibits annexed hereto form material parts of this Franchise. 

18.7 This Franchise may be executed in duplicate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 
an original. 

18.8 Subject to applicable law, all rights and remedies given to the City by this Franchise or 
retained by the City herein shall be in addition to and cumulative with any and all rights and 
remedies, existing or implied, now or hereafter available to the City, at law or in equity. 

18.9 Venue for any dispute related to this Franchise shall be in Snohomish County Superior 
Court in Everett, Washington. 

18.10 Nothing herein shall be deemed to create a joint venture or principal-agent relationship 
between the parties and neither party is authorized to, nor shall either party, act toward third 
persons or the public in any manner that would indicate any such relationship with the other. 

18.11 The failure of the either party at any time to require performance by the other of any 
provision hereof shall in no way affect the right of such party thereafter to enforce the same, nor 
shall the waiver by such party of any breach of any provision hereof be taken or held to be a 
waiver of any succeeding breach of such provision or as a waiver of the provision itself or any 
other provision. 

 PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this _____ day of 

___________________, 2017. 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 Jon Nehring, Mayor 

Item 12 - 22

118



 
Attest: 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 April O’Brien, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 Jon Walker, City Attorney 
 
Date of Publication:   
 
Effective Date:  ______________________  
 (5 days after publication) 
  

Item 12 - 23

119



Acceptance of Franchise 

In accordance with and subject to Ordinance No. __________, constituting a Franchise 
Agreement between the City of Marysville (“the City”) and Astound Broadband, LLC, d/b/a 
Wave (“the Company”), the Company hereby submits this Acceptance of Franchise to the City. 

The Company hereby unconditionally accepts and agrees to comply with all terms, provisions, 
and conditions of the Franchise Agreement. 

Enclosed herewith is a certificate of insurance in accordance with Section 7.5 of the Franchise 
Agreement. Also enclosed herewith is the Company’s check in the amount of $2,000 in 
accordance with section 5.1.1 of the Franchise Agreement, which amount is for the City’s costs 
relating to the administration of the Franchise Agreement. 

The Company hereby certifies that the undersigned is a duly authorized officer of the Company 
with the authority to execute this Acceptance of Franchise. 

Astound Broadband LLC, dba Wave 

By:  ______________________ 
 
Name:  _____________________ 
 
Its:    _______________________ 

State of Washington ) 
   ss. 
County of King  ) 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that       is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that said person signed this 
instrument, on oath stated that said person was authorized to execute the instrument and 
acknowledged it as the        of    
 , to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the 
instrument. 
 
DATED:  _______________________________. 
 
Notary Seal         

(Signature of Notary) 
        
(Legibly Print or Stamp Name of Notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington 
My appointment expires:       

 
 

Item 12 - 24

120



Index #13
 

121



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/9/17 

AGENDA ITEM: 
MCIMetro Access Transmission Services Corp. Telecommunications Franchise 
PREPARED BY:   DIRECTOR APPROVAL:  
Colin Olivers 
DEPARTMENT:   
Legal 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Proposed Franchise 
BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT:   
N/A N/A 
SUMMARY:   

 
MCIMetro Access Transmission Services Corp. (dba “Verizon Access Transmission Services”) 
has approached the City for a franchise to install fiber optic telecommunications facilities in the 
City rights-of-way. Legal staff worked off of an existing telecommunications franchise and 
updated and added language to conform to current practices. From this updated starting point, 
City staff and Verizon Access Transmission Services have negotiated the attached proposed 
franchise. The agreement is effective for an initial term ending December 31, 2022 and will 
automatically renew for an additional five years unless either party elects for the franchise to 
terminate. The proposed franchise is substantially similar to the proposed franchise ordinance for 
Astound Broadband, LLC (dba “Wave”). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
City staff recommends that the City Council approve, and authorize the Mayor to execute, the 
proposed franchise. 
 

Item 13 - 1

122



 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Marysville, Washington 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON, 
SETTING FORTH THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
MARYSVILLE AND MCIMETRO ACCESS TRANSMISSION SERVICES 
CORP., A DELAWARE CORPORATION, D/B/A VERIZON ACCESS 
TRANSMISSION SERVICES, GRANTING VERIZON ACCESS 
TRANSMISSION SERVICES A NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO 
CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, MAINTAIN, REPAIR, REPLACE, AND REMOVE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES WITHIN CITY RIGHTS-OF-WAY. 

WHEREAS, MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corp, a Delaware corporation d/b/a 
Verizon Access Transmission Services (the “Company”) has applied for a nonexclusive 
franchise to construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, and remove wired telecommunications 
facilities on Rights-of-Way within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Company and the City have engaged in negotiations regarding the Company’s 
right to utilize the City Rights-of-Way; and 

WHEREAS, the City will authorize the Company to utilize the City Rights-of-Way subject to 
certain conditions and restrictions; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.47.040 and Chapter 35.99 RCW authorize the City to grant nonexclusive 
master permits or franchises for telecommunications facilities in the City Rights-of-Way; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS AND THE PARTIES DO HEREBY AGREE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Definitions. 

For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following words, terms, and phrases shall have the 
meanings stated in this section. When consistent with the context, words used in the present 
tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words in the singular 
include the plural. To the extent not defined in this section, words shall be given their common 
and ordinary meaning. The word “shall” is always mandatory and not merely directory. 

1.1 “Affiliate” means any corporate entity that (1) the Company owns or controls, (2) the 
Company is owned or controlled by, or (3) is under common ownership with the Company. Any 
entity in which the Company has ownership of five percent (5%) or more of the equity 
ownership (either voting, control, or value) or in which the Company has actual working control, 
in whatever manner exercised, is an Affiliate. Both the entity owned or controlled and the entity 
owning or controlling are Affiliates of each other. 

Item 13 - 2

123



1.2 “Cable Television Service” means the one-way transmission to subscribers of video 
programing or other programing service and subscriber interaction, if any, which is required for 
the selection or use of the video programming or other programming service. 

1.3 “City” means the City of Marysville, Washington, and all the territory within its present 
and future boundaries and including any area over which the City exercises jurisdiction. 

1.4 “City Codes” means the Marysville Municipal Code (“MMC”) and all ordinances, 
resolutions, standards, regulations, procedures, and policies of the City, all as currently existing 
or as hereafter amended or adopted. 

1.5 “Communications Services” means telecommunications services or capacity provided by 
the Company using its Facilities, either directly or by its Affiliates, including, but not limited to, 
the transmission of voice, data, or other electronic information by wire, fiber optic cable, or other 
similar means. For purposes of this subsection, “information” means knowledge or intelligence 
represented by writing, signs, signals, pictures, sounds, or any other symbols. Communications 
Services does not include Cable Television Service or Wireless Telecommunications Services. 

1.6 “Facilities” means the Company’s telecommunications system constructed and operated 
within the City’s Rights-of-Way. Facilities shall include all wires, fiber optic cables, cables, 
amplifiers, conductors, lines, conduits, ducts, manholes, pedestals, meters, and any associated 
converters, equipment, or other appurtenances and facilities for the purpose of providing 
Communications Services under this Franchise. 

1.7 “Franchise” means the nonexclusive rights, privileges, obligations, and authority granted 
to the Company under this Ordinance. The Franchise may also be referred to as the “Master 
Permit” or the “Agreement.” 

1.8 “Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, association, joint venture, 
organization, or entity of any kind and the lawful trustee, successor, assignee, transferee, or 
personal representative thereof. 

1.9 “Rights-of-Way” means the surface of any land and any space above or below the land 
previously or hereafter acquired by or dedicated to the public or the City for the purposes, in 
whole or in part, of public travel. Rights-of-Way includes, but is not limited to, public streets, 
roadways, highways, avenues, lanes, alleys, bridges, sidewalks, easements, and similar public 
property and areas located within the City and under the City’s jurisdiction. Rights-of-Way, for 
purposes of this Franchise, shall only include those areas that have been improved and/or 
maintained by the City. Rights-of-Way shall not include State highways. Rights-of-Way shall not 
include structures, including poles and conduits, located within the Rights-of-Way. 

1.10 “Wireless Telecommunications Services” means the wireless transmission of voice, data, 
or other electronic information by antennas and radio units whether macrocells, microcells, small 
cells, distributed antenna systems, or other similar means and associated support facilities 
including towers, poles, and base stations. Wireless Telecommunications Services does not 
include providing Communications Services to a site for connection to Wireless 
Telecommunications Services. 

Item 13 - 3

124



Section 2. Grant of Franchise. 

2.1 The City hereby grants the Company a Franchise to use and occupy Rights-of-Way for 
the purpose of providing Communications Services, including, without limitation, the right to 
construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, and remove Facilities in accordance with this 
Ordinance. The Company and the City recognize that the Company intends, pursuant to this 
Franchise, to operate and maintain a wired telecommunications system. This Franchise does not 
grant the Company the right to utilize Rights-of-Way to construct, operate, maintain, repair, 
replace, or remove any facilities to provide Wireless Telecommunications Services. However, 
pursuant to this Franchise, the Company may provide Communications Services as fronthaul and 
backhaul support for Wireless Telecommunications Services located on private property or 
otherwise constructed, operated, or maintained pursuant to a valid franchise from the City. In 
order to provide any other services over the Facilities, the Company shall first be required to 
obtain any additional governmental authorizations required by law. 

2.2 In exercising its rights and obligations under this Franchise, the Company shall comply 
with all lawfully enacted City Codes. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this 
Franchise and the City Codes, the more restrictive provision shall control, provided that if such 
more restrictive provision is contained in this Franchise and is inconsistent with a City ordinance 
adopted after the effective date of this ordinance or any State or Federal law or regulation, such 
provision shall not apply. In addition, in exercising its rights and obligations under this 
Franchise, the Company shall comply with all applicable State and Federal laws and regulations. 

2.3 The provisions of this Franchise are subject to the lawful exercise of the City’s police 
powers upon reasonable notice to the Company and nothing contained in this Franchise shall be 
deemed to affect the City’s authority to exercise its police powers to the fullest extent afforded 
by the Washington State constitution and State law. In accepting this Franchise, the Company 
acknowledges that its rights hereunder are subject to the police power of the City to adopt and 
enforce, from time to time and in a manner the City deems reasonable, general ordinances 
necessary for the safety, health, and welfare of the public. This Franchise shall not be interpreted 
to prevent the City from imposing additional lawful conditions, including additional statutorily 
authorized compensation for the use of the Rights-of-Way should the Company provide services 
other than Communications Services. 

2.4 This Franchise does not grant the Company any vested right to use any portion of the 
Rights-of-Way except for locations approved by the City and then subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Franchise and the City’s approval. 

2.5 The authority granted herein to the Company is a limited authorization to construct, 
operate, maintain, repair, replace, and remove Facilities in the Rights-of-Way to provide 
Communications Services and shall not include or be a substitute for: 

 2.5.1 Any other permit or authorization required for the privilege of transacting and 
carrying on a business within the City, including, but not limited to, a City business license; or 

 2.5.2 Any permit, agreement, authorization, or condition that may be required by the 
City for using the Rights-of-Way in connection with operations on or in the Rights-of-Way or 

Item 13 - 4

125



public property, such as Rights-of-Way use permits and approved traffic control plans; or 

 2.5.3 Any permit, agreement, or authorization for occupying any other property of the 
City or private entity to which access is not specifically granted by this Franchise, including, but 
not limited to, permits, agreements, or authorizations for placing devices on poles, in conduits, or 
in or on other structures. 

2.6 This Franchise only conveys limited rights and interests as to the Rights-of-Way in which 
the City has an actual interest. The Franchise is not a warranty of title or interest, does not 
provide the Company with any representation as to any location of a Right-of-Way or the nature 
of the City’s interest in any Rights-of-Way, and does not provide the Company with any interest 
in any particular location within the Rights-of-Way. The Franchise does not grant the Company 
any right to install any Facilities on any City property other than Rights-of-Way, upon any 
private property without the owner’s consent, or upon any public or privately owned utility poles 
or conduits. To the extent the Company’s use of a Right-of-Way is inconsistent with the terms, 
conditions, or provisions by which the Right-of-Way was created, dedicated, or is presently used, 
the Franchise grants the Company no right to construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, or 
remove Facilities from that Right-of-Way. 

2.7 This Franchise shall not be construed as to deprive the City of any rights or privileges 
that the City now has or may hereafter have to regulate the use and control of the Rights-of-Way 
and public property. Nothing in this Franchise shall limit or expand the City’s right of eminent 
domain under State law and the Company acknowledges that its use of the Rights-of-Way shall 
have no value. If at any time the City exercises its authority to vacate all or any portion of any 
Right-of-Way, the City shall not be liable for any damages or loss to the Company because of 
such vacation. The City may, upon ninety (90) days written notice to the Company, terminate 
this Franchise with respect to any such vacated area.  The City, when vacating a Right-of-Way 
where the Company has lawfully placed its Facilities, may, if practicable, reserve an easement 
for the Company’s continued use and enjoyment. 

2.8 The rights and privileges granted under this Franchise are not exclusive. The Franchise is 
subject to all prior rights, interests, easements, or licenses granted by the City or its predecessors 
to any Person to use any property, Rights-of-Way, easement, right, interest, or license. The City 
reserves the right to approve the use of Rights-of-Way for any purpose not incompatible with the 
Company’s rights under this Franchise. The City reserves the right to grant additional franchises 
upon the same or similar terms at any time and to any Person, provided, however, that such 
additional grants will not operate to materially modify, revoke, or terminate any rights granted to 
the Company under this Franchise. The grant of any additional franchise alone shall not 
constitute a modification, revocation, or termination of rights previously granted to the 
Company. 

2.9 This Franchise does not establish any priority for the use of the Rights-of-Way by the 
Company or by any present or future franchisees or other permit holders. In the event of any 
dispute as to the priority of use of the Rights-of-Way, the first priority shall be to the City in the 
performance of its various functions, the second priority shall be to the public generally, and 
thereafter the City, in exercise of its powers, shall determine priority between users. 

Item 13 - 5

126



2.10 To the extent that any of the Rights-of-Way within the City are a part of the State 
highway system and are governed by the provisions of Chapter 47.24 RCW and applicable 
Washington State Department of Transportation regulations, the Company shall comply with 
said requirements in addition to City Codes. The Company shall correct any noncompliant 
Facilities identified by the City or by any other local, State, or Federal governmental entity. 

Section 3. Term. 

3.1 Term. This Franchise shall be in effect from the date of acceptance, as set forth in section 
17, until December 31, 2022, unless earlier terminated or revoked. 

3.2 Renewal. This Franchise will automatically renew for an additional five (5) year period, 
upon the same terms and conditions, unless either party, prior to October 1, 2022, informs the 
other in writing that it wants the Franchise to expire on December 31, 2022. 

3.3 Failure to Renew. If neither party indicates its desire for the Franchise to expire as 
provided in section 3.2 and the parties fail to formally renew this Franchise prior to December 
31, 2027, the Franchise will automatically renew month to month until formally renewed or until 
either party gives written notice, at least ninety (90) days in advance, of its intent to have the 
Franchise expire. 

Section 4. Use of Rights-of-Way. 

4.1 Installation of Facilities. Subject to the City Codes, the Company may construct, operate, 
maintain, repair, replace, and remove its Facilities in, over, under, across, and along the City’s 
Rights-of-Way, as necessary and appurtenant to the provision of its Communications Services. 

4.2 Site Specific Agreements. Prior to constructing, installing, or operating any Facility on 
any City owned structure within a Right-of-Way or installing any Facility which will occupy 
more than a de minimis amount of the surface of a Right-of-Way (i.e. a fiber optic cable 
protruding), the Company must first enter into a site specific agreement with the City in a form 
agreed to by the Parties. Without limitation, such Facilities may include, but not be limited to, 
utility poles, monopoles, cell towers, vaults, and power supplies. The City has sole discretion to 
enter into a site specific agreement and may refuse to do so, among other reasons, where another 
facility is available for co-location or where a Facility at the given location is not necessary to 
the Company’s provision of Communications Services. 

4.3 Permits Required for Construction. Prior to doing any work in the Rights-of-Way, the 
Company shall apply for, and obtain, appropriate permits from the City including Right-of-Way 
permits and construction permits. As part of the permitting or approval process, the City may 
impose, in addition to the requirements contained in this Franchise, such reasonable conditions 
and regulations as are necessary (1) to protect any structures in the Rights-of-Way and the 
public’s use of the Rights-of-Way for pedestrian and vehicular traffic; (2) to provide for the 
proper restoration of the Rights-of-Way; and (3) to protect the public health, safety, and welfare. 

 4.3.1 Applications for any required permits or authorizations shall be made, processed, 
and approved in accordance with applicable City Codes in effect at the time of application. The 

Item 13 - 6

127



Company shall assure that all applications, whether submitted by the Company, its employees, 
agents, or contractors clearly identifies that the work is being done for the benefit of the 
Company and pursuant to this Franchise. 

 4.3.2 All permits or authorizations issued for the Company’s Facilities or related to its 
Communications Services are subject to the provisions of this Franchise and the Company, its 
employees, agents, or contractors shall comply with the provisions of this Franchise whether 
incorporated into such permit or authorization or not. 

 4.3.3 The Company shall pay all generally applicable fees for the permit or 
authorization in accordance with the City Codes in effect at the time of application. 

 4.3.4 The City may reasonably require the Company’s Facilities be installed at a 
particular time, at a particular place, or in a particular manner as a condition of access to a 
particular Right-of-Way and may deny access if the Company is not willing to comply with the 
City’s reasonable requirements. 

 4.3.5 If the City reasonably determines that the work covered by an application presents 
a potential for disruption of traffic, injury, damage, or expense to the City if not correctly and 
timely completed, the City may require the Company to provide an assurance device, in a form 
acceptable to the City, prior to issuance of a permit or approval. Such project specific assurance 
device will be in addition to any general assurance devices required by this Franchise. 

 4.3.6 The City, following advance written notice of not less than thirty (30) days, may 
require the Company, at its own expense, to modify or remove any Facilities not authorized by 
this Franchise or installed without prior City approval. The City may remove the Facilities at the 
Company’s sole expense if the Company fails to do so within the time period established by the 
City. 

4.4 General Standards. 

 4.4.1 All work authorized and required hereunder shall be done in a safe, thorough, and 
workmanlike manner. All work authorized and required hereunder shall comply with the City 
permit or authorization, City Codes, and Federal and State law and regulations. 

 4.4.2 All installation of the Facilities shall be durable and installed in accordance with 
good engineering practices and industry standards in effect on the date the permits and 
authorizations are issued for the affected Facilities. 

 4.4.3 The Company, its employees, agents, and contractors shall comply with all 
applicable Federal, State, and City safety requirements, rules, regulations, laws, and practices in 
effect on the date the permits and authorizations are issued for the affected Facilities. By way of 
illustration and not limitation, this includes the National Electric Code, National Electrical Safety 
Code, and Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Standards. 

 4.4.4 The Company represents that it is familiar with Chapter 19.122 RCW and 
understands and will comply with local procedures and practices relating to the one call locator 

Item 13 - 7

128



service program. The Company and the City shall each comply with their respective obligations 
pursuant to Chapter 19.122 RCW. 

4.5 Coordination. The Company agrees to cooperate with the City’s Public Works 
Department to identify and evaluate the portions of Rights-of-Way necessary for the Company to 
serve its customers. Priority shall be given to use of those portions of Rights-of-Way where 
construction can be coordinated with other City and private construction activities, which will 
least impact the existing condition of the Rights-of-Way, will least impact traffic during 
construction, and will least impact adjacent neighborhoods during construction and after 
installation. Sources for planned City and private construction activities include the City’s 
Capital Facilities Plan, Comprehensive Plan, Comprehensive Utility Plan, written construction 
and planning schedules, and pending development, right-of-way, and construction applications. 

 4.5.1 Thirty (30) days after acceptance of this Franchise and at least annually thereafter, 
the Company shall submit to the City’s Public Works Department a plan, in a format specified 
by the Department, that shows all major work anticipated to be done in the Rights-of-Way in the 
next five (5) years. The City will utilize the plan to identify conflicts and opportunities for 
coordination between users of the Rights-of-Way. The Company’s plan shall be informational 
only and shall not obligate the Company to undertake any particular project or work. The 
Company shall identify any portions of its plan that the Company in good faith believes is not 
subject to disclosure under Chapter 42.56 RCW, shall mark such portions “Confidential,” and 
shall provide a citation to the statutory basis for non-disclosure. The City will exercise its sole 
legal judgment in responding to a public records request. The City will endeavor to provide the 
Company an opportunity to obtain a court order preventing disclosure in the event the City 
intends to disclose a portion of the Company’s plan marked “Confidential.” 

 4.5.2 The City adopts a Capital Facilities Plan from time to time, which identifies the 
roadway projects that the City anticipates constructing during the term of the Capital Facilities 
Plan. The City will provide the Company a copy of the City’s Capital Facilities Plan after 
acceptance of this Franchise and after adoption of an updated plan during the term of this 
Franchise. 

 4.5.3 Within thirty (30) days of acceptance of this Franchise, the Company shall 
provide the City an email address for the City to add to an email list. The City will communicate 
substantial (more than 500 lineal feet) roadway projects to this email list in order to provide the 
Company an opportunity to plan to install Facilities with minimal interruption. 

 4.5.4 Access to Open Trenches. 

  4.5.4.1 The Company will be entitled to reasonable access to open City utility 
trenches, provided that such access does not interfere with the City’s placement of utilities or 
increase the cost to the City thereby. The Company shall pay the City the actual cost to the City 
resulting from providing the Company access to an open trench, including without limitation the 
pro rata share of the costs of access to an open trench and any costs associated with the delay of 
the completion of a public works project. 

  4.5.4.2 The Company shall provide the City and other utility providers or 
franchise holders access to its open trenches, provided that: (1) such access does not interfere 

Item 13 - 8

129



with the Company’s Facilities, (2) the other utility provider or franchise holder agrees to 
reasonable terms of use, including reasonable costs or fees, and (3) the other utility provider or 
franchise holder has agreed to similar terms to provide access to its trenches. 

  4.5.4.3 The City will use reasonable efforts to include the Company in any 
platting process within the City and will exercise reasonable efforts to include, as a condition of 
issuing a permit for open trenching to any utility or developer, that: (a) the utility or developer 
give the Company at least fourteen (14) days advance written notice of the availability of the 
open trench and (b) that the utility or developer provide the Company with reasonable access to 
the open trench. 

 4.5.5 If the Company receives email notice of a substantial roadway project and fails to 
coordinate installation of its Facilities and thereafter seeks to trench, excavate, bore, or cut the 
street or overlay within five (5) years, the Public Works Director or designee may require 
additional roadway restoration. The Company agrees that such additional required roadway 
restoration may include full-width patching extending five (5) feet beyond the Company’s 
disruption of the Right-of-Way. 

 4.5.6 Subject to receiving reasonable advance written notice, the Company shall make 
reasonable efforts to have a representative attend and participate in meetings of the City 
regarding Rights-of-Way issues that may impact the Company’s Facilities. 

 4.5.7 In all cases, the Company shall utilize existing poles and conduit wherever 
possible and shall not install new poles. Where the Company will place Facilities underground, 
and whenever reasonably practical, the Company shall utilize joint trenching and shared bores or 
cuts and shall work with other providers (such as telecommunications, cable, gas, electric 
utilities, or the City), licensees, permittees, and franchisees to reduce as far as possible the 
number of Right-of-Way disturbances. 

 4.5.8 To the extent practicable, the Company will install its Facilities in a manner that 
allows other users to collocate with the Company. This includes installing larger diameter 
conduit where financially reasonable and making the conduit available for additional facilities 
upon reasonable terms. 

 4.5.9 The Public Works Director, or designee (e.g., the City Engineer), will be 
authorized to approve the use by the Company of such Rights-of-Way requested by the 
Company, and the final decision regarding the use of the Rights-of-Way will remain in the sole 
discretion of the Public Works Director or designee in accordance with Federal and State law. 

4.6 Emergencies. 

 4.6.1 City’s Direction. During unforeseen emergencies that create a threat to the public 
health, safety, or welfare, the City may require the Company to promptly remove, relocate, 
adjust, or secure its Facilities, at the Company’s sole expense. If the Company fails, neglects, or 
refuses to promptly remove, relocate, adjust, or secure its Facilities, the City may perform such 
work or cause it to be done at the Company’s sole expense. The City will bill the Company for 
any expense incurred within thirty (30) days and the Company shall promptly reimburse the City 

Item 13 - 9

130



within thirty (30) days. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 
termination of the Franchise. 

 4.6.2 Company’s Determination. In the event that the Company determines that 
emergency repairs are necessary, the Company shall immediately notify the City of the need for 
such repairs. The Company may thereafter initiate such emergency repairs, and shall apply for 
appropriate permits, within forty-eight (48) hours after the emergency is abated. 

4.7 Location of Facilities. 

 4.7.1 As Built. The Company shall provide to the City upon request and at no cost, a 
copy of all as-built plans, maps, and records, including revealing the final location and condition 
of its Facilities within the Rights-of-Way. Such records shall be provided in a format reasonably 
acceptable to the City. 

 4.7.2 GIS Mapping. The Company shall comply with City requirements regarding 
geographic information systems mapping for users of the Rights-of-Way that are in effect on the 
date the permits and authorizations are issued for the affected Facilities. 

4.8 Safety and Least Interference. 

 4.8.1 The Company shall construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, and remove 
Facilities in a manner that prevent injury to Persons, the City’s property, or property belonging to 
any other Person. The Company, at its own expense, shall construct, operate, maintain, repair, 
replace, or remove its Facilities to keep them in good repair and safe condition. Any work on the 
Facilities shall be properly safeguarded for the prevention of accidents. 

 4.8.2 The Company’s construction, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, or 
removal of its Facilities shall be done in a manner that causes the least interference with the 
public’s travel upon the Rights-of-Way and the rights and reasonable convenience of the abutting 
property owners and residents. The Company’s Facilities shall be constructed, operated, 
maintained, repaired, replaced, and removed in a manner that causes the least interference with 
sewers, water pipes, City facilities, or other facilities that may have been located in the Rights-
of-Way. The Company shall not interfere with travel and use of public places by persons during 
the construction, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, or removal of Facilities and shall 
not obstruct or impede traffic, except to the extent necessary. 

 4.8.3 The provisions of this section 4.8 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 
termination of the Franchise. 

4.9 Notice to Private Property Owners. Except in the case of an emergency involving public 
safety or an outage or service interruption to a large number of users, the Company shall give 
reasonable advance notice to private property owners or residents located within one hundred 
feet (100’) of the Company’s Facilities of work that may interfere with the use of property. 

4.10 Restoration of Property. 

Item 13 - 10

131



 4.10.1 The Company, while constructing, operating, maintaining, repairing, replacing, or 
removing its Facilities shall protect adjoining public and private property from damage. If 
damage occurs, the Company shall promptly notify the property owner within twenty-four (24) 
hours of notice or discovery of any such damage. 

 4.10.2 Whenever the Company disturbs or damages any Rights-of-Way or adjoining 
public or private property the Company shall promptly restore, at the Company’s own cost, the 
Rights-of-Way or property to at least its prior condition, excepting normal wear and tear. The 
Company shall use all reasonable efforts to complete the restoration as soon as practicably 
possible, considering the nature of the work to be performed, but in no event more than thirty 
(30) days following completion of the work. 

 4.10.3 The Company shall be responsible to maintain, repair, or reconstruct the site of 
any work in the Right-of-Way, in a condition acceptable to the City, until the Right-of-Way is 
reconstructed, repaved, or resurfaced by the City. 

  4.10.3.1 In the event that the Company’s work, restoration work, subsurface 
material, pavement, or patch should become depressed, broken, or fail in any way within two (2) 
years following the completion of the work, normal wear and tear excepted, the Company shall 
repair, restore, or cause to be repaired or restored, such condition to the reasonable satisfaction of 
the City. 

  4.10.3.2 The repair or restoration shall be completed within the time 
specified by the City, which shall not be less than seventy-two (72) hours. 

  4.10.3.3 If the Company fails to repair or restore the Right-of-Way to the 
City’s satisfaction within the time specified by the City, the City may cause the repair or 
restoration to be done at the Company’s sole expense. The City will bill the Company for any 
expense incurred within thirty (30) days and the Company shall promptly reimburse the City 
within thirty (30) days. 

 4.10.4 Whenever a new street is completed or an overlay of an existing street has been 
completed within five (5) years of a newly proposed trench, excavation, bore, or cut, additional 
roadway restoration shall be required as determined by the Public Works Director or designee. 
The Company agrees that such additional required roadway restoration may include full-width 
patching extending five (5) feet beyond the Company’s disruption of the Right-of-Way. 

 4.10.5 The provisions of this section 4.10 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 
termination of the Franchise. 

4.11 Undergrounding. The Company shall place underground, at the Company’s expense 
unless stated otherwise, all of its Facilities that are located or are to be located above or within 
the Rights-of-Way of the City in the following cases: 

 (a) All other existing utilities are required to be placed underground by Federal or State 
law or regulation or the City Codes; 

 (b) The Company is unable to get pole attachment agreement permits from pole owners; 

Item 13 - 11

132



 (c) Underground easements are obtained from developers of new residential areas; or 

 (d) When required by City Codes or applicable State or federal law. 

 4.11.1 Whenever the City may require the undergrounding of aerial utilities, the 
Company shall underground its aerial Facilities in the manner specified by the City, concurrently 
with and in the area of the other affected utilities. The location of any such relocated and 
underground Facilities will be approved by the City, following consultation with the Company. 
Where other utilities are present and involved in the undergrounding project, the Company shall 
only be required to pay its fair share of the common costs borne by all utilities, in addition to the 
costs specifically attributable to the undergrounding of the Company’s Facilities. “Common 
costs” shall include necessary costs not specifically attributable to the undergrounding of any 
particular facility, such as costs for common trenching and utility vaults. “Fair share” shall be 
determined for a project on the basis of the number and size of all other utility facilities being 
undergrounded. 

 4.11.2 If an ordinance is passed creating a local improvement district which involves 
placing underground utilities including the Company’s Facilities which are currently located 
overhead, the Company shall participate in such underground project and shall remove the 
Company’s poles, cables, overhead wires, and other Facilities within such district if requested to 
do so and place such Facilities underground. If such undergrounding of the Company’s Facilities 
is part of such a project, the costs thereof shall be included in such local improvement district. 

 4.11.3 In those areas and portions of the City where the transmission or distribution 
facilities of any utilities providing telephone service and any utilities providing electric service 
are underground or hereafter are placed underground, then the Company shall likewise construct, 
operate, and maintain all of its transmission and distribution Facilities underground. Amplifiers 
and connectors in the Company’s transmission and distribution lines may be in appropriate 
enclosures upon or above the surface of the ground in locations approved by the City, provided 
that the Company and the City enter into a site specific agreement as detailed in section 4.2. 
Upon sufficient notice, work shall be done at the same time as other facilities that are placed 
underground and all work shall be done consistent with City Codes and to minimize impact on 
streets and neighborhoods. 

 4.11.4 The Company shall use conduit or its functional equivalent to the greatest extent 
possible for undergrounding. Cable and conduit shall be utilized which meets the highest 
industry standards for electronic performance and resistance to interference or damage from 
environmental factors. The Company shall use and construct, in conjunction and coordination 
with other utility companies or providers, common trenches for underground construction 
whenever available and possible. 

 4.11.5 The provisions of this section 4.11 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 
termination of the Franchise. 

4.12 Removal or Relocation 

Item 13 - 12

133



 4.12.1 Safety and Free Passage. If the City, in its sole discretion, determines that an 
emergency exists or that a Facility unduly burdens or endangers the safe and free passage of 
traffic on the Rights-of-Way, the Company shall modify, replace, relocate, remove, or disconnect 
the Facilities in the time specified by the City’s notice. If the Company fails to modify, replace, 
relocate, remove, or disconnect the Facilities within the time specified by the City or if the City 
determines that the City must immediately undertake the modification, replacement, relocation, 
removal, or disconnection, the City may cause the modification, replacement, relocation, 
removal, or disconnection to be done at the Company’s sole expense. The City will bill the 
Company for any expense incurred within thirty (30) days and the Company shall promptly 
reimburse the City within thirty (30) days. 

 4.12.2 Movement for City Purposes. For any City project, the City may require the 
Company to modify, replace, relocate, remove, or disconnect its Facilities at the Company’s sole 
expense. The City will make a reasonable effort to provide the Company with an alternate 
location within the Rights-of-Way. The City will endeavor to provide at least ninety (90) days 
written notice to the Company prior to the modification, replacement, relocation, removal, or 
disconnection of the Company’s Facilities and will attempt to minimize the impact on the 
Company’s Facilities. If the Company fails to modify, replace, relocate, remove, or disconnect 
the Facilities within the time specified by the City, the City may cause the modification, 
replacement, relocation, or removal to be done at the Company’s sole expense. The City will bill 
the Company for any expense incurred, including any costs or expenses incurred by the City due 
to the Company’s delay within thirty (30) days and the Company shall promptly reimburse the 
City within thirty (30) days. 

 4.12.3 Movement for Other Franchise Holders. If any removal, replacement, 
modification or disconnection of the Company’s Facilities is required to accommodate the 
construction, operation, or repair of the facilities or equipment of another City franchise holder 
or user of the Rights-of-Way, the Company shall, after at least thirty (30) days advance written 
notice, take action to effect the necessary changes requested by the responsible Person. The 
Company may require that the costs associated with the removal, replacement, modification, or 
disconnection of the Facilities be paid by the benefited Person, and the Company may require a 
reasonable deposit of the estimated payment in advance. 

 4.12.4 When no longer needed to provide its Communications Services, the Company 
shall not remove any underground Facilities that require excavation, trenching, or other opening 
of the Rights-of-Way to remove the Facilities. The Company may remove any underground 
Facilities from the Rights-of-Way installed in a manner such that the Facility can be removed 
without excavation, trenching, or other opening of the Rights-of-Way. 

 4.12.5 The provisions of this section 4.12 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 
termination of the Franchise.  RCW 35.99.060 shall apply to any instance under this Franchise 
where the Company is required to remove or relocate its Facilities in whole or in part.  

4.13 Temporary Changes for Other Permittees. At the request of any Person holding a valid 
permit and upon reasonable advance written notice, the Company shall temporarily raise, lower, 

Item 13 - 13

134



or remove its Facilities as necessary to permit the moving of a building, vehicle, equipment, or 
other work. The expense of such temporary changes must be paid by the permit holder and the 
Company may require a reasonable deposit of the estimated payment in advance. 

4.14 Reservation of City’s Use of Rights-of-Way. Nothing in this Franchise shall prevent the 
City from constructing sewers, grading, paving, repairing, or altering any Rights-of-Way, laying 
down, repairing, or removing water mains, or constructing or establishing any other public work 
or improvement. All such work shall be done, insofar as practicable, so as not to obstruct, injure, 
or prevent the use and operation of the Company’s Facilities. 

4.15 Tree Trimming. To the extent a City owned tree interferes with the Company’s Facilities, 
the Company may prune or cause to be pruned, using proper pruning practices, the City’s tree 
upon receiving the City’s approval, which will not unreasonably we withheld. In the event of an 
emergency, the Company may trim the tree and thereafter provide the City notice of the 
emergency and the tree trimming with forty-eight (48) hours. 

4.16 Inspection of Construction and Facilities. The City may inspect any of the Company’s 
Facilities after forty-eight (48) hours written notice, or, in case of an emergency, upon demand 
without prior notice. 

4.17 Work by Agents, Contractors, and Subcontractors. The Company’s agents, contractors, 
and subcontractors shall be properly licensed and bonded in accordance with the City Codes and 
State law. Work by agents, contractors, and subcontractors is subject to the same restrictions, 
limitations, and conditions as if the work were performed by the Company. The Company shall 
be responsible for all work performed by its agents, contractors, and subcontractors as if the 
work were performed by the Company. The Company shall ensure that all such work is 
performed in compliance with this Franchise and applicable laws and shall be jointly and 
severally liable for all damages and correcting all damage caused by any agents, contractors, or 
subcontractors. The Company is responsible for ensuring that agents, contractors, and 
subcontractors are familiar with the requirements of this Franchise and applicable laws. 

Section 5. Fees. 

5.1 Recovery of Costs. 

 5.1.1 The Company shall be subject to a one-time administrative fee of two thousand 
dollars ($2,000.00) for the City’s costs relating to the administration of this Franchise. The 
Company agrees to pay such administrative fee upon acceptance of this Franchise. 

 5.1.2 The Company shall reimburse the City within thirty (30) days of receiving an 
itemized billing from the City for incurred costs, itemized by project, for the Company’s 
proportionate share of all actual, identified expenses incurred by the City as a result of the 
presence of the Company’s Facilities in the Rights-of-Way. This may include the City’s 
expenses in planning, constructing, installing, repairing, altering, or maintaining any City 
facility. Additionally, the Company shall reimburse the City’s expenses related to review, 
inspection, supervision, or enforcement of the Company’s activities pursuant to this Franchise. 

Item 13 - 14

135



5.2 Allowable Taxes. Nothing provided herein shall either expand, exempt, or otherwise limit 
the Company’s obligation to pay any applicable tax required by the Marysville Municipal Code 
or any other applicable law or regulation, provided that the Company shall only be obligated to 
pay taxes and fees that may be properly assessed by the City under applicable Federal and State 
laws and regulations. The Company’s failure to pay any applicable tax required by the 
Marysville Municipal Code or any other applicable law or regulation shall constitute a material 
breach of the Franchise. 

5.3 In the event that any payment due to the City under this Franchise, except for allowable 
taxes, is not received by the City by the date due, interest will be charged from the due date at the 
rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum. 

5.4 Acceptance of Payment. No acceptance of any payment by the City shall be construed as 
an accord that the amount paid is, in fact, the correct amount, nor shall such acceptance of 
payment be construed as a release of any claim which the City may have for further or additional 
sums payable under the provisions of this Franchise. The Company’s payment to the City shall 
not be construed as an acknowledgement by the Company that the amount paid is the correct 
amount and the Company reserves the right to subsequently seek to recover any amount of such 
payments in the event of an erroneous overpayment or for other lawful reasons. 

5.5 Pursuant to RCW 35.21.860, the City is precluded from imposing a franchise fee on a 
“telephone business” as defined in RCW 82.16.010 or a “service provider” as defined in RCW 
35.99.010, for the use of the City’s Rights-of-Way, except for actual administrative expenses 
directly related to the franchise or any tax authorized by State law. The Company hereby 
warrants that its operations, as authorized under this Franchise, are those of a “telephone 
business” as defined in RCW 82.16.010 or as a “service provider” as defined in RCW 35.99.010. 
As a result, the City currently lacks the authority to impose any franchise fee under the terms of 
this Franchise, other than as described herein. 

5.6 The City reserves its right to impose a franchise fee, in accordance with State or Federal 
law, on the Company for purposes other than to recover its administrative expenses, if the 
Company’s operations as authorized by this Franchise change such that the Company’s uses of 
the Rights-of-Way are not those of a “telephone business” as defined in RCW 82.16.010, those 
of a “service provider” as defined in RCW 35.99.010, or if State or Federal law is amended to 
allow the imposition of such a franchise fee. The City further reserves the right to require the 
Company to obtain a separate franchise for its use of City Rights-of-Way to the extent the 
Company’s use is not as a “telephone business” as defined in RCW 82.16.010 or as a “service 
provider” as defined in RCW 35.99.010. 

Section 6. Hold Harmless and Indemnity. 

6.1 The Company shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or 
suits including attorney fees, costs, and expert witness fees, arising out of or in connection with 
the construction, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, and removal of the Company’s 
Facilities or the Company’s actions under this Franchise, whether by the Company, its agents, 
servants, employees, contractors, subcontractors, or assigns, except for injuries and damages 

Item 13 - 15

136



caused by the sole negligence of the City and as otherwise provided in RCW 4.24.115. 

6.2 Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Franchise is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of the bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Company and 
the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers, the Company’s liability 
hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Company’s negligence. It is further specifically and 
expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Company’s waiver 
of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this 
indemnification. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  

6.3 The Company shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless from any and all 
claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits against, or payable by, the City arising out of or 
resulting from, directly or indirectly, the Company’s failure to remove, adjust, or relocate any of 
its Facilities in the Rights-of-Way in a timely manner in accordance with any relocation required 
by the City. The Company’s obligations under this section 6.3 will not apply to the extent (a) the 
Company has been subjected to a force majeure event or other event beyond the reasonable 
control of the Company and (b) the Company has used good faith efforts to remove, adjust, or 
relocate its Facilities in a timely manner. 

6.4 In various provisions of this Franchise, the Company is obligated to take action at the 
direction of the City within a specified time (see i.e. and without limitation, section 4.10.3.3, 
4.12.1) and the City is thereafter empowered to undertake such actions at the sole expense of the 
Company if the Company fails to accomplish the action within the specified time. The City’s 
actions in such a situation are termed the “City’s Remedial Actions” for purposes of this section. 
To the extent not covered by the indemnity requirements of section 6.1, the Company shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers 
harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits against, or payable by, the 
City arising out of or resulting from, directly or indirectly, the actions of the City, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents, and volunteers in undertaking the City’s Remedial Actions under 
this Franchise. The Company and the City agree that the Company’s indemnification for the 
City’s Remedial Actions includes indemnification resulting from the sole negligence of the City, 
its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers, except as otherwise provided in RCW 
4.24.115, and Company further agrees that this indemnification obligation is separate, additional 
to, and severable from the Company’s other indemnification obligations under this Franchise. 

6.5 In any case in which a claim, injury, damage, loss, or suit is instituted against or submitted 
to the City and the City determines that the same was caused in whole or in part by the 
Company, the City or other indemnified party will promptly tender the defense of the claim to 
the Company. The Company shall thereafter have the duty to appear and defend without cost or 
expense to the City. The City may participate in the defense of a claim and, in any event, the 
Company may not agree to any settlement of claims affecting the City without the City’s prior 
written consent. 

6.6 The provisions of this section 6 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or termination of 
the Franchise. 

Item 13 - 16

137



Section 7. Insurance. 

7.1 General Requirement. The Company shall procure and maintain for the duration of this 
Franchise, and until all Facilities are removed from Rights-of-Way or abandoned in place, 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in 
connection with this Franchise or involve the Company. 

7.2 No Limitation. The Company’s maintenance of insurance, its scope of coverage, and 
limits as required herein shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Company to the 
coverage provided by such insurance or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy 
available at law or equity. 

7.3 Insurance Limits. The Company shall maintain in full force and effect, at its own cost and 
expense, each of the following policies of insurance: 

 7.3.1 Commercial General Liability insurance with limits of  Five Million dollars 
($5,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage  and Five Million dollars 
($5,000,000) general aggregate including  personal and advertising injury, blanket contractual; 
premises-operations; independent contractors; products and completed operations; broad form 
property damage for explosion, collapse, and underground. 

 7.3.2 Commercial Automobile Liability insurance with a combined single limit of Five 
Million dollars ($5,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage covering the 
Company’s owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles assigned to or used in the construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, or removal of its Facilities. 

 7.3.3 Worker’s Compensation insurance as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of 
the State of Washington and employer’s liability with a limit of $1,000,000 each 
accident/disease/policy limit. 

 7.3.4 Excess Liability or Umbrella Coverage in the amount of Two Million dollars 
($2,000,000). 

7.4 The Company’s insurance policies shall be primary insurance as respect the City. Any 
insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of 
the Company’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

7.5 The Company’s insurance policies shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the City, 
its officers, officials, and employees are to be covered as, and have the rights of, additional 
insureds. 

7.6 Verification of Coverage. The Company shall furnish the City with original certificates 
and a copy of the blanket additional insured endorsements, evidencing the insurance 
requirements of the Franchise upon acceptance of this Franchise. The certificate for each 
insurance policy is to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf. The certificate for each insurance policy must be on standard forms or on such forms as 
are consistent with standard industry practices. The Company hereby warrants that its insurance 
policies satisfy the requirements of this Franchise. 

Item 13 - 17

138



7.7 Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance obtained by the Company is to be placed with 
insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A-: VII. 

7.8 Notice of Cancellation. Provided that the insurer will do so, each policy of insurance shall 
provide that a written notice of cancellation shall be delivered to the City thirty (30) days in 
advance of the effective date thereof. Otherwise, the Company shall provide the City with 
written notice of any policy cancellation within two business days, or as soon as practicable 
thereafter, of their receipt of such notice. Regardless, the Company shall provide a replacement 
policy and shall maintain continuous, uninterrupted insurance coverage, in at least the amounts 
required, for the duration of the Franchise. 

7.9 The provisions of this section 7 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or termination of 
the Franchise. 

Section 8. Financial Assurances. 

8.1 Surety Bond. No later than thirty (30) days following acceptance of this Franchise, the 
Company shall establish and provide to the City, as security for the faithful performance by the 
Company of all of the provisions of this Franchise, a performance bond, from a surety or 
financial institution acceptable to the City, in the amount of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000). 

 8.1.1 The performance bond may be drawn upon by the City for purposes including, but 
not limited to, the following: (1) failure of the Company to pay the City sums due under the 
terms of this Franchise; (2) reimbursement of costs borne by the City to correct Franchise 
violations not corrected by the Company; (3) monetary remedies or damages assessed against the 
Company due to default or breach of Franchise requirements. 

 8.1.2 The City will give the Company thirty (30) days prior written notice of its intent 
to withdraw from the surety bond pursuant to this section. Within thirty (30) days following 
notice that such withdrawal has occurred, the Company shall restore the surety bond to the full 
amount required by section 8.1. The Company’s maintenance of the surety bond shall not be 
construed to excuse faithful performance by the Company, limit the liability of the Company to 
the amount of the surety bond, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any other remedy 
available at law or in equity. 

 8.1.3 The Company shall have the right to appeal to the Chief Administrative Official for 
reimbursement in the event the Company believes that the surety bond was drawn upon 
improperly. Any funds the City erroneously or wrongfully withdraws from the surety bond shall 
be returned to the Company plus charges or interest imposed by the surety. 

8.2 Other Bonds. The Company shall comply with any other bonding requirements provided 
for in the City Codes. Further, if the City reasonably determines that the work covered by an 
application presents a potential for disruption of traffic, injury, damage, or expense to the City if 
not correctly and timely completed, the City may require the Company to provide an assurance 
device, in a form acceptable to the City, prior to issuance of a permit or approval. 

Item 13 - 18

139



Section 9. Civil Penalties and Additional Relief. 

9.1 The Company, and any officers, directors, employees, agents, contractors, or other 
Person acting on behalf of the Company, failing to comply with any of the provisions of this 
Franchise, shall be subject to a civil penalty and abatement in the manner and to the extent 
provided for in the City Codes. 

9.2 In addition to any penalty which may be imposed by the City, and to the extent that a 
violation of this Franchise results in damage to City property or Rights-of-Way, the Company 
shall be responsible for the cost of restoring the affected area to its condition prior to the 
violation. 

9.3 Notwithstanding any other provision herein, the City and the Company may seek legal or 
equitable relief to enjoin any act or practice and abate any condition, which constitutes or will 
constitute a violation of the applicable provisions of this Franchise, when civil or criminal 
penalties are inadequate to effect compliance. In addition to the penalties otherwise set forth in 
this section 9, the Company and the City acknowledge that any pattern of violations with respect 
to any material provision of this Franchise, consisting of three (3) or more such violations within 
a period of twelve (12) consecutive months, may further result in the revocation of any Rights-
of-Way use agreement, Rights-of-Way use permit, facilities lease, other such authorization, or 
this Franchise. 

9.4 Nothing in this section shall be construed as limiting any remedies the City or the 
Company may have, at law or in equity, for enforcement of this Franchise. 

Section 10. Modifications of Terms and Conditions. 

The City and the Company hereby reserve the right to alter, amend, or modify the terms and 
conditions of this Franchise and any permit issued thereunder upon written agreement by both 
parties to such alteration, amendment, or modification. The City Council of the City of 
Marysville must approve any alteration, amendment, or modification of this Ordinance prior to it 
being signed by the City. 

Section 11. Abandonment or Non-Use of Facilities. 

11.1 In the event this Franchise expires, is terminated, or the Company discontinues 
commercial use of any Facility located in the Rights-of-Way for a period of one hundred eighty 
(180) consecutive days or longer, the City may, upon written notice to the Company, require 
removal of any or all such Facilities from the Rights-of-Way within ninety (90) days. If the 
Company fails to remove the specified Facilities within the time specified, the City may cause 
removal of the specified Facilities at the Company’s sole expense. The City will bill the 
Company for any expense incurred within thirty (30) days and the Company shall promptly 
reimburse the City within thirty (30) days. 

11.2 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Franchise, the City may permit, by written 
notice, the Company to abandon any or all Facilities in place. The City’s written notice will 
specify a date certain, prior to which the Company may remove its Facilities in accordance with 
this Franchise and after which the Facilities will be considered abandoned in place. Upon being 

Item 13 - 19

140



abandoned in place, the Facilities shall become the property of the City and the Company shall 
submit to the City an instrument, in writing and approved by the City Attorney, transferring 
ownership of the Facilities to the City. 

11.3 The provisions of this section 11 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or termination 
of this Franchise. 

Section 12. Severability. 

If any term, provision, condition, or portion of this Franchise shall be held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional for any reason, the portion declared invalid shall be severable and the remaining 
portions of this Franchise shall be enforceable unless to do so would be inequitable or would 
result in a material change in the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder. 

Section 13. Transferability. 

The rights and privileges granted to the Company as provided in this Franchise may only be 
assigned or transferred to another Person with the prior written approval of the City, which will 
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. However, the Company, following thirty 
(30) days written notice to the City, may assign this Franchise to an Affiliate, provided the 
Affiliate has the legal, technical, financial, and other qualifications to own, hold, construct, 
operate, maintain, repair, replace, and remove the Facilities for the purpose of providing 
Communications Services and agrees, in writing, to be fully liable to the City for compliance 
with all terms and conditions of this Franchise. The City is under no obligation to investigate the 
Company’s then existing compliance with the Franchise and the failure of the City to insist on 
full compliance prior to transfer does not waive any right to insist on full compliance thereafter. 

Section 14. General Enforcement. 

In the event that the City believes that the Company has not complied with any terms of the 
Franchise or the City Codes, other than sections 4.6, 4.10.3, or 4.12.1, the City may discuss the 
violation with the Company or may issue a written notice to cure the default. The City’s notice to 
cure the default will include the actions to be taken to remedy the default and the timeframe 
within which the Company should accomplish the actions. The Company will thereafter have the 
time specified in the notice to cure the default to correct the default or, if the Company believes 
that the actions cannot be taken within the time specified, respond with a timeline for diligently 
accomplishing the actions and diligently complete those actions on the identified timeline. 

Section 15. Termination. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, this Franchise may be terminated, without penalty or 
further liability, as follows: 

 (a) Upon thirty (30) days written notice by the City if the Company fails to cure a 
default for payment of amounts due under this Franchise or the City Codes within that thirty (30) 
day period; 

 (b) Upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party if the other party commits a non-

Item 13 - 20

141



monetary default and fails to commence curing such default within that thirty (30) day period, or 
such longer period as may be required to diligently complete a cure commenced within that 
thirty (30) day period; or 

 (c) Upon ninety (90) days written notice by the Company for economic reasons or if the 
location or the Facilities are or become unacceptable under the Company’s design or engineering 
specifications for its communications system. 

Section 16. Effective Date. 

16.1 This Franchise and the rights, privileges, and authority granted hereunder and the 
contractual relationship established hereby shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
effective date of this Franchise. 

16.2 The effective date of this Franchise shall be the date of acceptance as specified in section 
17, but in no event prior to five days after publication of this Ordinance by summary. 

Section 17. Franchise Acceptance. 

Within forty-five (45) days of the adoption of this Ordinance by the City Council, the Company 
shall execute and return to the City two fully executed acceptance forms, in the form attached to 
this Ordinance. In the event the Company fails to accept this Franchise, the Franchise shall be 
null and void and the Company shall have no rights or privileges hereunder. 

Section 18. Miscellaneous. 

18.1 This Franchise constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties 
and supersedes all offers, negotiations, and other agreements concerning the subject matter 
contained herein. Any amendments to this Franchise must be in writing, approved by the City 
Council, and executed by both parties. 

18.2 This Franchise shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the permitted successors 
and permitted assignees of the respective parties. 

18.3  Any notice or demand required to be given herein shall be made by United States mail or 
reliable overnight courier to the address of the respective parties set forth below: 

To the City: To the Company: 

City of Marysville 
Attn: Chief Administrative Officer 
1049 State Avenue 
Marysville, WA  98270 
 
 
 
 

MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corp. 
d/b/a Verizon Access Transmission Services 
Attn: Franchise Manager 
600 Hidden Ridge 
Mailcode: HQE02G295 
Irving, TX  75038 
 
 
 

Item 13 - 21

142



With a required copy to: 

City of Marysville 
Attn: City Attorney 
1049 State Avenue 
Marysville, WA  98270 

With a required copy to: 
 
Verizon Business Network Services 
Attn: Vice President and Deputy General Counsel, 
Network Operations 
1320 North Courthouse Road, Ste. 900 
Arlington, VA  22201 
 

The City or the Company may from time to time designate any other address for this purpose by 
written notice to the other party. All notices hereunder shall be deemed received upon actual 
receipt. 

18.4 This Franchise shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington. 

18.5 In any case where the approval or consent of one party hereto is required, requested, or 
otherwise to be given under this Franchise, such party shall not unreasonably delay or withhold 
its approval or consent. 

18.6 All amendments and exhibits annexed hereto form material parts of this Franchise. 

18.7 This Franchise may be executed in duplicate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 
an original. 

18.8 Subject to applicable law, all rights and remedies given to the City by this Franchise or 
retained by the City herein shall be in addition to and cumulative with any and all rights and 
remedies, existing or implied, now or hereafter available to the City, at law or in equity. 

18.9 Venue for any dispute related to this Franchise shall be in Snohomish County Superior 
Court in Everett, Washington. 

18.10 Nothing herein shall be deemed to create a joint venture or principal-agent relationship 
between the parties and neither party is authorized to, nor shall either party, act toward third 
persons or the public in any manner that would indicate any such relationship with the other. 

18.11 The failure of the either party at any time to require performance by the other of any 
provision hereof shall in no way affect the right of such party thereafter to enforce the same, nor 
shall the waiver by such party of any breach of any provision hereof be taken or held to be a 
waiver of any succeeding breach of such provision or as a waiver of the provision itself or any 
other provision. 

 

 

 

 

Item 13 - 22

143



 PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this _____ day of 

___________________, 2017. 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 Jon Nehring, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 April O’Brien, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 Jon Walker, City Attorney 
 
Date of Publication:   
 
Effective Date:  ______________________  
 (5 days after publication) 
  

Item 13 - 23

144



Acceptance of Franchise 

In accordance with and subject to Ordinance No. __________, constituting a Franchise 
Agreement between the City of Marysville (“the City”) and MCImetro Access Transmission 
Services Corp., d/b/a Verizon Access Transmission Services (“the Company”), the Company 
hereby submits this Acceptance of Franchise to the City. 

The Company hereby unconditionally accepts and agrees to comply with all terms, provisions, 
and conditions of the Franchise Agreement. 

Enclosed herewith is a certificate of insurance in accordance with Section 7.5 of the Franchise 
Agreement. Also enclosed herewith is the Company’s check in the amount of $2,000 in 
accordance with section 5.1.1 of the Franchise Agreement, which amount is for the City’s costs 
relating to the administration of the Franchise Agreement. 

The Company hereby certifies that the undersigned is a duly authorized officer of the Company 
with the authority to execute this Acceptance of Franchise. 

MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corp., d/b/a Verizon Access Transmission 
Services 

By:  ______________________ 
 
Name:  _____________________ 
 
Its:    _______________________ 

State of   ) 
   ) ss. 
County of   ) 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that       is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that said person signed this 
instrument, on oath stated that said person was authorized to execute the instrument and 
acknowledged it as the        of    
 , to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the 
instrument. 
 
DATED:  _______________________________. 
 
Notary Seal         

(Signature of Notary) 
        
(Legibly Print or Stamp Name of Notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of     
My appointment expires:       

 
 

Item 13 - 24

145



Index #14
 

146



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/9/17 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  

Dedication of Right of Way for Road Purposes 

PREPARED BY:   DIRECTOR APPROVAL:  

Jon Walker  

DEPARTMENT:    

Legal 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

BUDGET CODE:  AMOUNT:   

  

  
SUMMARY: 

 
The City owns a triangular-shaped parcel abutting State Avenue.  The westerly 11.00 feet 
of the parcel has been used for roadway purposes.  By dedicating this portion of the 
parcel, the remainder of the parcel may be used for another purpose or sold and the right-
of-way retained for roadway purposes.   
 
 
 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
Staff recommends the Council consider approving the ordinance dedicating right-of-way for 
public use.   

Item 14 - 1

147



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Marysville, Washington 

ORDINANCE NO. -----

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON, DEDICATING RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR PUBLIC USE. 

WHEREAS, The City of Marysville owns the parcel 30050900204500, a triangular 
parcel abutting State A venue; and 

WHEREAS, the parcel is further described in the statutory warranty deed filed under 
auditor's file number 200802130132. 

WHEREAS, the City of Marysville acquired this parcel to construct road improvements 
on State A venue; and 

WHEREAS, the westerly 11.00 feet of the parcel is being used for road right-of-way 
purposes and should be dedicated to that purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the westerly 11.00 feet is legally described in Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the public health, safety, and welfare will benefit by dedicating the westerly 
11.00 feet of the parcel to public use as right-of-way. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The westerly 11.00 feet of parcel 30050900204500 as described in Exhibit 
B is hereby dedicated to public use as right-of-way for State A venue. 

SECTION 3. The proper officers of the City of Marysville shall record a certified copy 
of this ordinance with the Snohomish County Auditor and execute documents required to 
dedicate the westerly 11.00 feet of the parcel as right-of-way. 

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of 
this ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any 
other section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this ordinance. 

SECTION 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective five days after the 
date of its publication by summary. 

PASS ED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this ___ day of 

- ------------' 2017. 

Item 14 - 2

148



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

JON NEHRING, MAYOR 

Attest: 

APRIL O'BRIEN, DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

Approved as to form: 

JON WALKER, CITY ATTORNEY 

Date of publication: _ _ ___ _ 
Effective Date (5 days after publication): __ _ 

Item 14 - 3

149



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

The westerly 11. 00 feet of the tract of land described below, being a line 41 . 00 
feet easterly from, as measured perpendicular to and parallel with, the centerline 
of State Avenue: 

That portion of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 9, 
Township 30 North, Range 5 East, W.M., described as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the east line of said Northeast Quarter of the Northwest 
Quarter, a distance of 376.00 feet South of the northeast corner of said 
subdivision; thence West to the east right-of-way line of State Avenue (Pacific 
Highway); thence southeasterly, along said east right-of-way line, a distance of 
324.70 feet; thence East to the east line of said subdivision; thence North, along 
said east line, a distance of 311.60 feet to the point of beginning. 

EXCEPT that portion lying easterly of the west line of the Northern Pacific 
Railway Company Right-of-Way. 

9/22/2017 

Item 14 - 4

150



Index #15
 

151



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/9/17 
 
AGENDA ITEM:   Smokey Point Stay Out of Drug Area (SODA) 

 

PREPARED BY:   DIRECTOR APPROVAL:  

Jon Walker  

DEPARTMENT:    

Legal 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

BUDGET CODE:  AMOUNT:   

  

  
SUMMARY: 

 
The City established a Stay Out of Drug Area (SODA) in the downtown core and it has 
been a valuable tool in crime prevention.  Police have focused resources in the Smokey 
Point area through their Northern Lights operation to interdict drugs and prevent other 
crimes in this area.  Statistics collected by Police has identified over 1,000 crimes that are 
directly or indirectly related to drug activity in the area.  The City of Arlington recently 
established a SODA adjacent to the Smokey Point area and it is anticipated that this may 
result in some individuals involved with drugs moving into Marysville.  By establishing a 
SODA in the Smokey Point area, Police will have an additional tool to address criminal 
activity in that area.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
Staff recommends the Council consider adopting the resolution establishing a SODA in the 
Smokey Point area. 

Item 15 - 1

152



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Marysville, Washington 

 
RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON, ESTABLISHING THE BOUNDARIES OF A NEW SMOKEY 
POINT “STAY OUT OF DRUG AREAS” (SODA). 

 
 

WHEREAS, section 6.28.040 of the municipal code authorizes the City Council to 
establish, modify, or eliminate a Stay Out of Drug Area (SODA) by resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Marysville Police Department has provided information to the Council 
supporting the need for a new SODA in the Smokey Point area of Marysville; and 

 
WHEREAS, statistics from the Marysville Police Department show that in the last two 

and one-half years this area has experienced nearly 300 drug-related incidents; and 
 
WHEREAS, these statistics also show that the area has experienced over 600 thefts and 

nearly 400 nuisance and trespass incidents during this time period and those types of crimes are 
typically associated with individuals involved with drugs; and 
 

WHEREAS, this area has been the focus of the police department’s ongoing Northern 
Lights operation to interdict drugs and prevent other crimes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Arlington has recently adopted a SODA adjacent to this 

proposed SODA; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the establishment of the Arlington SODA will increase 

the likelihood of individuals involved with drugs moving into the area encompassed by this 
proposed SODA; and 

 
WHEREAS, establishing this Smokey Point SODA will enhance public health, safety, 

and welfare. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MARYSVILLE that the following boundaries are established as the Stay Out of Drug Area 
(SODA): 

 
The entire area including, but not limited to, both sides of the full width of streets, all real 

property, both private and public, alleys, sidewalks, common areas, planting strips, parks, 
railroad tracks, marinas, trails, beaches and parking areas within the area described below:   

 
1.    Beginning as a point where 152nd Street NE crosses Hayho Creek in a westerly 

direction along the south side of 152nd Street NE to Smokey Point Boulevard; 

Item 15 - 2

153



2.    North along the west side of Smokey Point Boulevard to 156th Street NE; 
3.    West along the south side of 156th Street NE to the Burlington Northern railroad 

tracks; 
4.    Northwesterly along the west side of the railroad tracks to 172nd Street NE; 
5.    East along the north side of 172nd Street NE to 19th Avenue NE; 
6.    North along the west side of 19th Avenue NE to the city limits; 
7.    East along the city limits until the boundary runs north-south; 
8.    North along the city limits until the boundary runs west-east; 
9.    East along the city limits to Interstate 5/city limits; 
10.  South along the city limits until the boundary runs west-east; 
11.  East along the city limits to the main branch of Hayho Creek; 
12.  South along the east side of Hayho Creek to the point of beginning.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MARYSVILLE the map attached as Exhibit A depicts these boundaries and may be used to 
notify individuals of the boundaries of the Smokey Point SODA. 
 
 

ADOPTED by the City Council at an open public meeting this _________ day of 
____________________, 2017. 
 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 

 
By       

JON NEHRING, MAYOR 
 
Attest: 
 
 
By        

APRIL O’BRIEN, DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By        

JON WALKER, CITY ATTORNEY 
  

Item 15 - 3

154



 
 

EXHIBIT  A 

Item 15 - 4

155



181ST  PL  NE

21
ST AV
E

 D
R

 22
ND

172ND  ST  NE

27
TH

 AV
E

 28
TH

AV
E29
TH

180TH ST
179TH  PL

 178TH PL

177TH
PL

178TH
ST

AV
E

176TH ST

29THAVE

175THPL

39
TH DR 178TH PL

TO T E M
PA

RK LN

 33
RD

AVE
34

TH AV
E

 176THPL

 38
TH

 D
R

189TH PL NE

23
RD

    
    

    
    

    
    

AV
E  

    
    

    
    

    
 N

E

188TH        ST         NE

180TH  ST  NE

142ND
 PL

29
TH

AV
E

142ND
ST

 17TH DR

DR
 N

E
20

TH
18

TH
DR

NE

182ND PL NE

178TH  ST  NE

ST

27
TH

AV
E

28
TH DR

 36
TH

 D
R

PL
181ST

 178TH PL

 176TH PL

 173RD PL

 38
TH

 D
R

 175TH PL
 176TH PL

 39
TH

   D
R 

NE

SM
OK

EY
  P

OI
NT

  B
LV

D

FORTYFIVE    RD

148TH    ST   NE

184TH PL

186TH PL

PENDERGRASS
WAY

176TH
PL

156TH          ST          NE

150TH
 PL NE

156TH
ST NE

143RD PL
 142ND PL

140TH ST NE 140TH PL

41ST 16
TH

   D
R 

  N
E

151ST  PL  NE

 23
RD

    
AV

E  
  N

E

 144TH ST NE

152ND ST NE

162ND ST

166TH PL

33RD
AVE NE

39
TH

 AV
E N

E

170TH

INTERSTATE 5

 TW
IN

 LA
KE

S A
VE

BNRR
 31

ST
 AV

E

25
TH

 D
R

 26
TH

 AV
E

26
TH

 D
R 

NE

140TH
PL

141ST
PL

169TH PL NE 169TH ST

25
TH

 AV
E

 31
ST

 D
R

INTERSTATE 5
AVE
29TH

35
TH

 AV
E N

E

PL
183RD

36
TH DR

36
TH DR

31
ST

   A
VE

   N
E

 180TH ST

DR

 179TH  PL  NE

 177TH PL  177TH
 PL

37
TH

33
RD AV
E

 179TH ST

 177TH PL

 175TH PL
 174TH PL

AVE

43
RD

   A
VE

 N
E

144TH ST NE

NE
19

TH
AV

E
(B

JO
RN

 R
D)

BNRR

164TH ST NE

19
TH

   A
VE

   N
E

 SP
RI

NG
 LA

NE

 43
RD

 AV
E N

E

PL
184TH

PL185TH

168TH PL
169TH ST

166TH ST
 166TH PL
 167TH ST

165TH PL

 168TH ST NE

 40
TH

AV
E

 41
STDR 42

ND AV
E

DR
NE 40

TH
 AV

E

 188TH   ST   NE 188TH  ST  NE27TH DR NE

27
TH

 19TH DR NE

168TH PL

 186TH PL

40
TH

 AV
E N

E

THOMASCIR
GREGORY'S

LANDINGPE
TE

R'S
LA

ND
ING

44
TH

 AV
E N

E

151ST PL
151ST
150TH
149TH
149TH

ST

PL
ST

26
TH

 D
R

182ND ST NE
183RD ST

181 S T ST

174TH PL NE

40TH
DR

34
TH DR

NE

168TH PL NE

178TH
PL

30TH AVE NE

159TH ST NE

TWIN   LAKES   AVE

172ND    ST    NE

25
TH

   A
VE

   N
E

174TH 
ST  NE

n

n

n

³

a

English
Crossing
Elementary
School

Lakewood
Junior
High School

Lakewood
Elementary
School

Fire 
Station

Smokey PointLakewood

Post Office

Stimson Crossing

Sheriff Office

Stillaguamish
Filtration Plant

Everett
Clinic Cascade

Skagit Health
Alliance

City of Marysville

THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY 
OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY OF FITNESS OF 
THIS MAP FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, EITHER 
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED.   NO REPRESENTATION OR 
WARRANTY IS MADE CONCERNING THE ACCURACY, 
CURRENCY, COMPLETENESS OR QUALITY OF DATA 
DEPICTED.  ANY USER OF THIS MAP ASSUMES ALL 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR USE THEREOF, AND FURTHER 
AGREES TO HOLD THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE HARMLESS 
FROM AND AGAINST ANY DAMAGE, LOSS, OR LIABILITY 
ARISING FROM ANY USE OF THIS MAP. 

0 750 1,500 2,250 3,000375
Feet

Map Plotted:  September, 2017

P:\GIS\CHudson\Projects\Maps\Administration\COM_SODA_North_BW_09192017.mxd

´

SODA (Stay Off Drugs Area)
Legend

Park
City Property
City of Marysville City Limits

Street
Burlington Norther RR
Trails

a Police Station

n School

³ Fire Station
SODA (Stay Off Drugs Area)

CITY LIMITS

CITY LIMITS

HA
YH

O 
CR

EE
K

Item 15 - 5

156



Index #16
 

157



ILA SHD_MARYSVILLE PER CAPITA         1 of 5 
SHD-16-011/ILA SHD Per Capita draft 11-29-2016 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE SNOHOMISH HEALTH DISTRICT 

AND 
THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

PER CAPITA CONTRIBUTION FOR HEALTH DISTRICT SERVICES 
 
 
This Interlocal Agreement for Per Capita Contribution for Health District Services is entered into by and 
between the SNOHOMISH HEALTH DISTRICT, a Washington Municipal Corporation (the District) and 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE a municipal corporation of the State of Washington (the City) – collectively (the 
Parties), for the purpose of providing for a per capita contribution by the City for Health District Services.  
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, This Agreement is made pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 39.34 
RCW; and  
 
 WHEREAS, to promote the public health in Snohomish County, Washington, the Board of County 
Commissioners of Snohomish County, Washington, established a Health District on January 1, 1959, 
embracing all of the territory within Snohomish County, Washington, and all cities and towns therein; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in 1966 the Snohomish Health District became the first local health jurisdiction in the 
state to organize a city-county cooperative health program with cities indicating a willingness to 
participate financially in support of Health District programs; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on January 1, 1967, eleven of 18 cities and towns agreed to voluntarily contribute 
$0.50 per capita to the Health District in return for public health services; and  
 
 WHEREAS, per capita contributions from towns and cities continued and in 1986, with such 
contributions ranging from $1.60 to $2.70 per capita until the early 1990s; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in 1993, counties assumed exclusive financial responsibility for public health relying 
on Motor Vehicle Excise Tax (MVET) revenues; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in 2000, the Washington State Legislature repealed MVET and backfilled only 90% 
of lost public health funds; and  
 
 WHEREAS, state funding for local public health has decreased 65.7% from a peak of $27.29 per 
capita in 2000 to $9.36 per capita in 2014; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Health District has experienced a 22% decrease from its 2005 funding level while 
the county population has increased by 14 percent in the same 10-year period; and  
 
 WHEREAS, since the “peak” of 2008, the Health District has reduced its staffing by 37 percent 
(85 FTE) due to static or declining revenues in the face of increased costs; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Health District ranks 34th out of 35 local health jurisdictions in the state for public 
health expenditures per resident; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Health District’s ability to perform its most essential functions have been severely 
compromised since the great recession; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Health District serves an essential public safety function whether ensuring safe 
food, schools, and septic systems, responding to disasters, or preventing and responding to disease 
outbreaks; and  
 

Item 16 - 1

158



ILA SHD_MARYSVILLE PER CAPITA         2 of 5 
SHD-16-011/ILA SHD Per Capita draft 11-29-2016 

 WHEREAS, threats to the public’s health in the form of foodborne illness such as E.coli and 
salmonella, communicable diseases such as pertussis, tuberculosis, measles, Zika, and Ebola and 
natural disasters such as the Oso/SR530 mud slide respect no municipal boundaries; and  
 
 WHEREAS, public health is a shared responsibility and regional public health threats require 
regional responses and close partnerships with every city and town in Snohomish County; and  
 
 WHEREAS, consistent with RCW 70.05, the Snohomish County Council is responsible for 
establishing the Snohomish Health District Board of Health, with jurisdiction coextensive with the 
boundaries of the county, to supervise all matters pertaining to the preservation of life and health of the 
people within its jurisdiction; and  
 
 WHEREAS, an effective, regional public health response to the threats to public health in 
Snohomish County requires the cooperation, participation and support of Snohomish County and all of 
the cities and towns in Snohomish County; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Snohomish County and the cities and towns therein seek to improve and sustain 
healthy years of life of their residents by engaging in an enhanced partnership with the Health District. 
This partnership will provide stable funding for public health priorities that would be established to meet 
the unique needs of each community; and 
 

WHEREAS, to further this partnership, the District commits to improvements recommended in the 
Ruckelshaus report, including finding a sustainable funding model, updating the strategic plan and 
governance, and establishing county-wide priorities for current funding levels.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements set forth below and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the City and the District 
agree as follows: 
 
1. Purpose. 

A. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by this reference. 
  
B. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish and define the terms and conditions for the 

cooperative efforts to be undertaken by the City and the District to promote, facilitate, and 
undertake various programs and activities. 

 
2. Term.   

The initial term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017.  The term 
may be extended by mutual written agreement of the parties. 

 
3. Scope of Services.   
 

A.  Responsibilities of the City. 
The City shall contribute $1.00 per capita ($64,940) to the Snohomish Health District 
commencing January 1, 2017.  Payment may be made in one lump sum on or before 
December 31, 2017, or in four (4) equal payments before the end of each quarter in 
2017. 

 
B. Responsibilities of the District. 

The Health District shall provide basic essential public health services and functions such 
as ensuring safe food, and inspecting septic systems, responding to disasters, or 
preventing and responding to disease outbreaks.   
 
The District will provide quarterly reports to the city identifying services provided to 
Marysville residents and businesses on or before May 31, 2017, August 31, 2017, 
November 30, 2017, and February 28, 2018.   

Item 16 - 2

159



ILA SHD_MARYSVILLE PER CAPITA         3 of 5 
SHD-16-011/ILA SHD Per Capita draft 11-29-2016 

 
Additional specific services provided by the Health District to the City may be developed 
jointly by the parties. 
 

C.   No Separate Entity. 
No separate entity is created by this agreement to carry out its purposes.  The agreement 
will be jointly administered by the Chief Administrative Officer of the City and the Director 
of the District.   

 
 
4. Legal Requirements.   

Both parties shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws in performing this 
Agreement. 

 
5. Public disclosure laws.  

The City and the District each acknowledge, agree and understand that the other party is a public 
agency subject to certain disclosure laws, including, but not limited to Washington’s Public 
Records Act, chapter 42.56 RCW.  Each party understands that records related to this Agreement 
and the District’s performance of services under this Agreement may be subject to disclosure 
pursuant to the Public Records Act or other similar law. 

 
6. Insurance. 

Both parties shall maintain membership in a self-insured municipal insurance pool. 

 
 
 
7. Indemnification. 

The District shall protect, save harmless, indemnify and defend the City its elected officials, 
officers, employees and agents, from and against any loss or claim for damages of any nature 
whatsoever, including claims by third parties or District employees against which it would 
otherwise be immune under Title 51 RCW or other law, arising out of any act or omission of the 
District in performance of this Agreement, its elected or appointed officials, officers, employees or 
agents, except to the extent the loss or claim  is attributable  to the negligence or misconduct of 
the City, its elected officials, officers, employees or agents.   
 
The City shall protect, save harmless, indemnify and defend the District, its  elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees and agents from and against any loss or claim for 
damages of any nature whatsoever, including claims by third parties or City employees against 
which it would otherwise be immune under Title 51 RCW or other law, arising out of any act or 
omission of the City in performance of this Agreement, its elected or appointed officials, officers, 
employees or agents, except to the extent the loss or claim is attributable to the negligence or 
misconduct of the District, its elected or appointed officials, officers, employees or agents. 

 
8. Notices. 

Any notice/payment to be given to the District under this Agreement shall be either mailed or 
personally delivered to:  

 
Snohomish Health District  
3020 Rucker Avenue, Ste 306 
Everett, WA 98201 

 
Any notice/invoice to the City shall be mailed or hand delivered to: 
 

City of Marysville 
1049 State Ave 

Item 16 - 3

160



ILA SHD_MARYSVILLE PER CAPITA         4 of 5 
SHD-16-011/ILA SHD Per Capita draft 11-29-2016 

Marysville, WA 98270 
 

Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written notice in the 
U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 

 
9. Venue.   

The laws of the State of Washington shall apply to the construction and enforcement of this 
Agreement. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceedings for the enforcement of this 
agreement or any provision hereto shall be in the Superior Court of Snohomish County, Everett, 
Washington. 

 
 10. Disputes.   

The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation and compromise, any 
unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a mutually agreed-upon 
alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

 
11. No third party beneficiaries; no joint venture.  

This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the City and District and shall not confer third-party 
beneficiary status on any non-party to this Agreement.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall 
be construed as creating any type or manner of partnership, joint venture or other joint enterprise 
between the parties.  District employees who provide services under this Agreement shall at all 
times be acting in their official capacities as employees of the District. 

 
12. Entire Agreement.   

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding the subject 
matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior oral or written agreements between the parties 
regarding the subject matter contained herein.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended 
in any manner except by written agreement executed by both parties. Both parties recognize that 
time is of the essence in the performance and the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
13. Severability. 

A. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to 
be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be 
affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as if the 
Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 
B. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory provision of the 

State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be deemed inoperative and 
null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be deemed modified to conform to such 
statutory provision. 

 
14. Filing.   

As provided by RCW 39.34.040, this Agreement shall be filed with the Snohomish County 
Auditor, or, alternatively, posted on the website of each party. 

 
15. Execution in Counterparts.  

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 
original and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

 

Item 16 - 4

161



ILA SHD_MARYSVILLE PER CAPITA         5 of 5 
SHD-16-011/ILA SHD Per Capita draft 11-29-2016 

16. Effective Date.  January 1, 2017 
 
City of Marysville      Snohomish Health District  
 
                  
Jon Nehring, Mayor      Peter M. Mayer, Deputy Director  
 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
              
City Clerk       
 
 
Approved as to Form:      Approved as to Form: 
 
              
City Attorney       Grant Weed, Health District Attorney 

Item 16 - 5

162


	Agenda
	1
	Item 1
	CC 091117 DRAFT.pdf
	Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2017.


	2
	Item 2
	3
	Item 3
	4
	Item 4
	5
	Item 5
	6
	Item 6
	7
	Item 7
	8
	Item 8
	9
	Item 9
	11
	Item 11
	12
	Item 12
	13
	Item 13
	14
	Item 14
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/9/17

	15
	Item 15
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/9/17

	16
	Item 16



